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Acronyms Used in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

CLEC Competitive local exchange carr

DSL Digital subscriber line

EBITDA Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation amatigzation
ETFL East Texas Fiber Line, In

FASB Financial Accounting Standards Bo:
FCC Federal Communications Commissi
GAAP Generally accepted accounting princif
ICC lllinois Commerce Commissic

ICTC lllinois Consolidated Telephone Compz
ILEC Incumbent local exchange carr

IP Internet protoco

IPO Initial public offering

IPTV Internet protocol digital televisio

ISP Internet service provide

LIBOR London interbank offer rat

NECA National Exchange Carrier Associati
NOL Net operating los

PAPUC Pennsylvania Public Utility Commissic
PAUSF Pennsylvania Universal Service FuL
PUCT Public Utility Commission of Texa
PURA Texas Public Utilities Regulatory A
SFAS Statement of Financial Accounting Stande
TXUCV TXU Communications Ventures Compa
UNE Unbundled network eleme

UNE-P Unbundled network element platfol
VOIP Voice over Internet Protoc:
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Terminology Used in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Access line equivalentrepresent a combination of voice services and aetaits. The calculations represent a conversion o
data circuits to an access line basis. Equival@rsalculated by converting data circuits (basie interface (BRI), primary
rate interface (PRI), DSL, DS-1, DS-3, and Ethéraatd SONET-based (optical) services (OC-3 and @elthe equivalent
of an access line.

Competitive local exchange carrie(€LECS) are telecommunications providers formedrafhactment of the
Telecommunications Act of 1996 to provide localletge service that competes with ILECs and othtabkshed carriers.

Digital telephone, or VOIP servicinvolves the routing of voice calls, at least imtpaver the Internet through packets of data
instead of transmitting the calls over the teleghsystem.

An exchangeis a geographic area established for administrati@hpricing of telecommunications services.

Hosted VOIPis our broadband phone product that utilizes oftrsseitch to provide an Internet Protocol basedeaervice to
business and residential customers. The produetde® the flexibility of utilizing new telephonedienology and features
provided by our hosted soft switch but does notiiregan investment in a new telephone system tahesadvanced features.

Incumbent local exchange telephone compan(ILECs) are the local telephone companies thatigeal/local telephone
exchange service on the effective date of the Daeaunications Act of 1996, or their predecessohss @iesignation is
important because, in light of their competitivevadtage, ILECs have statutory obligations that iotekephone companies do
not have. For example, ILECs are required to giherocarriers access to certain equipment (knowmbsndled network
elements) or to house equipment for other carflerewn as colocation), on reasonable and nondigeatory terms. For more
information, see Part I—Item 1—"Business—Regulatényvironment.”

Metro Ethernetis the use of carrier Ethernet technology in matlitgn area networks. Metro Ethernet services argiged
over a standard, widely used Ethernet interfacecamdconnect business local area networks to wieke etworks or to the
Internet. Metro Ethernet offers cosffectiveness, reliability, scalability and bandthignanagement superior to most proprie
networks.

MPLS or Multiprotocol Label Switchingrefers to a highly scalable data carrying mechaiimswhich data packets are assigned
labels. Packet-forwarding decisions are made solelthe contents of this label, without the needxamine the packet itself.
This allows for end-to-end circuits across any tgpgansport medium, using any protocol.

Rural telephone companieprovide communications services to geographic dtesgtsare not heavily populated. This
designation is important because rural telephongpemies are eligible to receive government subsidieompensate for the
disproportionate cost of providing service in loandity areas. In addition, ILECs that are rurapgébne companies, as defined
in the Telecommunications Act of 1996, are exemminfsome obligations to provide access to compstito

Unified messagingds the integration of multiple messaging technadsgnto a single system. With this application ceanail,
fax, cellular and other messages are sent to tladl @rthox. From the email system, the messagededreard, read or
forwarded to others.




Table of Contents

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Any statements contained in this report that atestaiements of historical fact, including stateteexbout our beliefs and
expectations, are forward-looking statements. Wewsrds like “anticipate,” “believe,” “expect,” “tand,” “plan,” “estimate,”
“target,” “project,” “should,” “may,” and “will” toidentify forward-looking statements throughousthéport.

Forwardlooking statements reflect, among other things,aomrent expectations, plans, strategies, andipated financie
results. There are a number of risks, uncertaingied conditions that may cause our actual resuldiffer materially from thos
expressed or implied by these forward-looking stetiets. Many of these circumstances are beyondlitlydo control or
predict. Moreover, forward-looking statements neaefy involve assumptions on our part.

All forward-looking statements attributable to uspersons acting on our behalf are expressly qedlifi their entirety by
the cautionary statements that appear through@uteport. Furthermore, forward-looking statemesqtsak only as of the date
they are made. Except as required under the fedecakities laws or the rules and regulations ef3bcurities and Exchange
Commission, we are not under any obligation to tgday forward-looking information—whether as autesf new
information, future events, or otherwise. You slioubt place undue reliance on forward-looking stestets.

Please see Part I—Item 1A—"Risk Factors” of thisomt, as well as the other documents that we fith the SEC from
time to time, for important factors that could cawsir actual results to differ from current exptgotes and from the forward-
looking statements discussed in this report.

MARKET AND INDUSTRY DATA

Market and industry data and other information ubedughout this report are based on independeisiny publications,
government publications, publicly available infottioa, reports by market research firms, or othdilighed independent
sources. Although we believe these sources ambteliwe have not verified the information. Somtaadso is based on
estimates that members of management derive fremitidustry knowledge and review of internal sye

We cannot know, or reasonably determine, our matkate in each of our markets or for our servieeabse there is
significant overlap in the telecommunications indyst is difficult to isolate information regandy individual services. For
example, wireless providers both compete with ardpement our local telephone services.

PART |
Item 1. Business

“Consolidated Communications” or the “Company” refeo Consolidated Communications Holdings, Ineither alone ¢
with its wholly-owned subsidiaries, as the conteduires. The words “we,” “our,” or “us,” also ref® the Company and its
subsidiaries.

On December 31, 2007, the Company acquired aletapital stock of North Pittsburgh Systems, T results of
operations for North Pittsburgh are included in@wnpany’s Telephone Operations segment for DeceBihe2007, and
thereafter.

Website Access to Securities and Exchange CommigssiBeports

The Company’s website can be foundvatw.consolidated.comFrom our website, you can obtain, free of chaoge,
annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports omt10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendsienthose reports as
soon as practicable after they are filed with,usnished to, the Securities and Exchange Commission
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Overview

Consolidated Communications owns established inemilocal exchange telephone companies (“ILECsi) phovide
communications services to residential and busioestomers in lllinois, Texas, and Pennsylvania: IQECs are “rural
telephone companies,” which essentially means pineyide service in areas that are not heavily pateadl.

We offer a wide range of telecommunications sesjiggcluding local and long distance service, amstalling features,
private line services, high-speed Internet acadigétal TV, carrier access services, network cayasgrvices over our regional
fiber optic network, and directory publishing. lddition, we operate a number of complementary lassias, including
telemarketing and order fulfillment, telephone $&s to county jails and state prisons, equipmaleiss operator services, and
mobile services.

With our acquisition of North Pittsburgh in 2007e are the 1% largest local telephone company in the United Statée
have 264,323 local access lines, 74,687 Competithoal Exchange Carrier (“CLEC”) access line eqlénss, 91,817 high-
speed Internet subscribers (which we refer to gisadlisubscriber lines, or DSL), 16,666 InternadtBcol digital television
(which we refer to as IPTV) subscribers and 6,5b@al telephone service (commonly known as Voigerdnternet Protocol,
or “VOIP”) subscribers.

For the years ended December 31, 2008, and 200Aaw/8418.4 million and $329.2 million of revenuespectively. In
addition, we generated net income of $5.3 millexclusive of an after tax extraordinary gain of2billion for the year ended
December 31, 2008, and we generated net incomglod $nillion for the year ended December 31, 2@37of December 31,
2008, we had $880.3 million of total long-term detst of current portion. In addition, as of Decem®1, 2008, we had
retained earnings of $0.0 million and stockholdergiity of $70.1 million.

History of the Company

Founded in 1894 as the Mattoon Telephone Compargegreat-grandfather of our Chairman, Richardémpkin, we
began as one of the nation’s first independenpbeire companies. After several acquisitions, théédda Telephone Company
was incorporated as lllinois Consolidated TelephGoenpany, or ICTC, on April 10, 1924. In 1997, Mold&JSA acquired
ICTC and all related businesses from the Lumpkiniffg but Mr. Lumpkin and two private equity firmSpectrum Equity and
Providence Equity, repurchased ICTC and severataélbusinesses five years later.

On April 14, 2004, we acquired TXU Communicationsntures Company, or TXUCV, from TXU Corporation. URV
owned rural telephone operations in Lufkin, Conare] Katy, Texas, which had been operating in tinosekets for over
90 years. This acquisition approximately tripled #ize of the Company.

On July 27, 2005, we completed the initial publifteong of our common stock. At the same time, $pau Equity sold it
entire investment and Providence Equity sold 5@emrof its investment. In July 2006, the Compaspurchased the remaini
shares owned by Providence Equity.

On December 31, 2007, we completed the acquisitidtorth Pittsburgh. Through its subsidiaries, Mdeittsburgh
advanced communication services to residentiabarsthess customers in several counties in westmndylvania and a CLE
that operates in the Pittsburgh metropolitan area.

Our Strengths
Stable local telephone busine

Demand for local telephone services from our regideand business customers has been stable elesihging
economic conditions. We operate in a supportiveletgry environment, and competition in our marketémited. As a result
of these favorable conditions, our local telephbusiness generates relatively consistent cashffiaw year to year. Our
longstanding relationship with our local teleph@ustomers enables us to pursue increased revenaeqgess line by selling
additional services through a bundling strategst thcludes our triple play offering of voice, DSAnd IPTV services.




Table of Contents

Attractive markets

The geographic areas we serve are characterizadblanced mix of growing suburban areas and stabi territories.
In the past we had limited competition for basiccecservices from wireless carriers and non-faefifbased providers using
VOIP, but cable providers have started offeringceagervices. Both Suddenlink and Comcast, cablgettaors in Texas,
launched a competing voice product in the secordtguof 2008. The cable operator Mediacom alsddwasched a voice
product in our lllinois markets in 2007. In 200&\WWave Communications launched a competing voiodymt in the portion
of our lllinois market that is not serviced by Madom. In our North Pittsburgh territory, each af ttvo incumbent cable
providers, Armstrong and Comcast, launched a catiyeeVVOIP offering in 2006.

Our Lufkin, Texas, and central lllinois markets baxperienced only nominal population growth oherpast decade. As
of December 31, 2008, 106,419, or approximatel2%0).of our local access lines were located in timeaekets. Until the cable
operators launched voice services, we had experielimited competition in these markets becausdaivecustomer density
and predominantly residential character of the heaee discouraged competing networks from makiegstpnificant capital
investment required to offer service.

Our Conroe and Katy, Texas markets are suburbBeonutskirts of the Houston metropolitan area. ABecember 31,
2008, 99,044, or approximately 37.5%, of our laxadess lines were located in these markets. Camb&aty have
experienced above-average population and busingskement growth over the past decade compare@tad and the United
States as a whole. According to the most recergussrthe median household income in the primarytyon our Conroe
market was $50,000 per year, and in our Katy manket $60,000 per year. In contrast, median anrausdéhold income was
$39,927 in Texas and $42,148 in the United States.

At the time of the acquisition, North Pittsburghdhthree operating subsidiaries: an ILEC, a CLE®@, @m Internet service
provider (ISP). North Pittsburgh operates in aitiety of approximately 285 square miles, includpaytions of Allegheny,
Armstrong, Butler, and Westmoreland counties. Qlrerpast decade, North Pittsburgh’s ILEC territoag experienced
population growth because suburban communities haga expanding into its serving area. (The sonthest point of this
territory is only 12 miles from Pittsburgh.) Foeteame reason, the ILEC has benefited from grawbusiness activity and
favorable market demographics. Approximately 58,88®2.3%, of our access lines are located irNiieh Pittsburgh
territory.

North Pittsburgh’s CLEC business furnishes telecamigation and broadband services south of the IlsE&ritory to
customers in Pittsburgh and its surrounding subasbsell as to the north in the City of Butler atsdsurrounding areas.
Verizon is the ILEC in the Pittsburgh area, whilalgarg (formerly Sprint) is the ILEC in Butler.

Technologically advanced network

We have invested significantly over the last selwggars in building a technologically advanced retncapable of
delivering a broad array of reliable, high qualitice, data, and video services to our lllinois dedtas customers on a cost-
effective basis. For example, approximately 95%uwftotal local access lines were DSL-capable d&eafember 31, 2008.
Approximately 96% of these DSL-capable lines aabde of speeds of 3 megabits per second (Mbpgieater. We believe
our superior Internet Protocaol, or IP, backbonevoek gives us a lower cost, better quality, andifie platform that will
enable us to develop and deliver new broadbandcapipins to our customers over our existing netwgeanerating additional
revenues per customer. We will need to providdmeboxes for subscribers, but otherwise we bel@wecurrent network can
support increased IPTV subscribers with limiteditoldal network preparation.

Our Pennsylvania market offers many of the samarackd IP network capabilities, with DSL availaldel©0% of the
customer base. Metro-Ethernet, VOIP services, éiner@dditional IP services leverage the extensi?e.S (Multi-Protocol
Label Switching) core network, making it more diat and scalable. The wide-ranging network andresite use of fiber
provide an easy reach into existing and new ai@abringing the fiber network closer to the custompeemises, we can
enhance service offerings, quality and higher badtiservices.
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Broad service offerings and bundling of servic

We offer our residential and business customemsgespoint of contact for access to a broad aofayoice, data, and
video services. We provide local and long distaser®ice, multiple speeds of DSL service, and asblRITV video offering
with over 200 all-digital channels, high definiti¢iiD") offerings, and digital video recorder (“DVIRservices. We also offer
custom calling services, carrier access serviggiabitelephone service to residential and busirestomers, and directory
publishing.

Bundling our service offerings enables us to offied sell a more complete package of services, wdiiohltaneously
increases our average revenue per user and adasfeathe consumer. We also believe that bundéags to increased
customer loyalty and retention. As of DecemberZ8)8, we had 42,054 customers who subscribed wicedrundles that
included local service and a selection of othevises including custom calling features, DSL, aRa@V.

Favorable regulatory environment

We benefit from federal and Texas and Pennsylvstai@ subsidies designed to promote “universaisgivor widely
available quality telephone service at affordabslegs in rural areas. For the year ended Decenmhe2(®8, we received
$32.1 million in payments from the federal univérsvice fund, $17.9 million from the Texas unsarservice fund, and
$5.2 million from the Pennsylvania universal seevignd. In the aggregate, these payments constifilBe2% of our revenues
for the year ended December 31, 2008. For thegmaded December 31, 2007, we received $27.0 milimm the federal
universal service fund and $19.0 million from thex@s universal service fund, constituting 14.0%ewo€nues for the year.

Experienced management team with proven track ret

With an average of over 20 years of experienceth begulated and non-regulated telecommunicatiistnesses, our
management team has demonstrated that it can dptiefitable growth while providing high levels ofistomer satisfaction.
Specifically, our management team has a provel texord of:

e providing superior quality services to rural custrain a regulated environme
* implementing successful business integrations agdisitions; anc

. launching and growing new services, such as D®LIBRTV, along with managing CLEC businesses and
complementary services, such as operator, telertiagk@and order fulfillment services and directpuyblishing.

Business Strategy
Increase revenues per custom

We continue to focus on increasing our revenuespstomer, primarily by improving our DSL and IPTvarket
penetration, increasing the sale of other valuesddirvices, and encouraging customers to subdoritng service bundles.

Over the last three years we have expanded oucedyundle by introducing IPTV in selected lllin@ied Texas markets.
After making necessary upgrades to our networkpamdhasing programming content, we launched IPT®UNPennsylvania
markets in April 2008, four months after acquirthg company. All of our markets currently offer kfBbpgramming and DVR
service that further increases our average revpauaser. As of December 31, 2008, over 90% ofv@eo customers have
taken our triple play offering. In total, we had @66 video subscribers and the capability of offgihe service to over 142,800
households in our territories.
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Improve operating efficienc

Over the years, we have made significant operatimjmanagement improvements. In particular, werakrgd many of
our business and back office operations into onetfonal organization with common work groups, @sges, and systems.
Following our acquisition of North Pittsburgh, aflits financial, human resource, and supply clsgstems were immediately
integrated into our existing systems. Because esdlefficiencies, management and customer sereisempnel can focus on
running the business and better serving our cus®me cost-effective manner. We also identifiedesal “fast track” projects
that allowed us to improve our cost structure wtdlenching new products and improving the custoexg@erience. By mid-
2009 we will convert the North Pittsburgh ILEC bity system to a common platform currently used lnylliinois and Texas
operations.

Maintain capital expenditure discipline

Across all of our territories we have successfaignaged capital expenditures to optimize returrauthh disciplined
planning and targeted capital investment. For exangpecific investments in our IP core and acoetworks allow us to
continue to have significant flexibility to expandr new service offerings such as IPTV and digagdphone services in a very
cost-efficient manner while maintaining our repigtatas a high-quality service provider.

Pursue selective acquisitior

Although we focused on integrating North Pittsbuig2008, in the longer term we will continue targue a disciplined
process of selectively acquiring access lines erating companies. When we evaluate potential aitoprs, we consider
whether:

*  the market is attractiv

e the network is of appropriate qualit

e we can integrate the acquired company efficiel

«  there are potential operating synergies;

« the transaction is cash flow accretive from day.!
Source of Revenues

The following chart summarizes our primary sourskgevenues for the last two years:

2008 2007
% of Total % of Total
$ (millions) Revenues $ (millions) Revenues

Revenues
Telephone Operatior

Local calling service $ 104.¢ 25.(% $ 82.¢ 25.2%

Network access servic 94.¢ 22.€ 70.2 21.2

Subsidies 55.2 13.2 46.C 14.C

Long distance service 24.C 5.7 14.C 4.2

Data and Internet servic 62.7 15.C 38.C 11.5

Other service 36.¢ 8.8 35.¢ 10.€
Total Telephone Operatiol 378.( 90.: 286.¢ 87.1
Other Operation 40.4 9.7 42.4 12.¢
Total operating revenut $ 418. 10(% $ 329.2 10(%
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Telephone Operations

Our Telephone Operations segment consists of talihg services, network access services, sulssittiag distance
services, data and Internet services (including DBLV and digital telephone service), and othevises. As of December 31,
2008, our Telephone Operations segment had appatedyn

e 264,323 local access lines in service, of whighraximately 61.3% served residential customers3hd% served
business customer

e 165,953 long distance lines, which represented¥%28netration of our local access lin
e 91,817 DSL lines; an
e 16,666 IPTV subscriber

Our Telephone Operations segment generated appatedin$91.9 million of cash flows from operatingiaities for the
year ended December 31, 2008, and $82.5 millioth@ryear ended December 31, 2007. As of Decenihe2(®8, ou
Telephone Operations had total assets of appro&lyndi,227.3 million.

Local calling servicesnclude dial tone and other basic services. We igdigecharge residential and business customers a
fixed monthly rate for access to the network andofiginating and receiving telephone calls witthieir local calling area.

Custom calling features consist of caller namermmdber identification, call forwarding, and callitireg. Value-added
services consist of teleconferencing and voice.iéd usually charge a flat monthly fee for custatiiicg features and value-
added services. Otherwise, we bundle the seleetites with local calling services at a discourrzte.

We offer private lines that provide direct connes between two or more local locations—primarilytisiness
customers—at flat monthly rates. In our Pennsylaamd Texas markets, we offer small- and mediumdsimisinesses a hosted
VOIP package, which utilizes our current switch afidws the customer the flexibility of utilizingew telephone technology
and features without investing in a new telephorstesn to get the features. The package bundlebdecdace, calling features,
IP business telephones, and unified messaginghwiiegrates multiple messaging technologies irgmgle system, such as
allowing the customer to receive and listen to gaitessages through email. We have introduced &asiproduct to our
residential customers in Texas and lllinois andeexpo extend the offering it our Pennsylvaniadestial customers in 2009.

Network access servicadlow customers to make or receive calls in ouviserarea. Our longlistance customers typica
pay a monthly fee for this service. In additiorhestcarriers pay network access charges for ottigiga@r terminating calls
within our service areas. These charges, whichemglated, also apply to private lines that conmaemistomer in one of our
service areas to a location outside of our seraieas. Network access charges include subscriteechiarges (a fee for being
connected to the telephone network), local numbeiapility fees (whereby consumers can keep tiedéphone number when
changing carriers), and universal services sur@sarg

We record the details of long distance and priliatecalls through our carrier access billing sgsgnd bill the applicable
carriers on a monthly basis. The network accessgyehates for intrastate long distance calls angafe lines within lllinois,
Texas, and Pennsylvania are regulated and applovtt lllinois Commerce Commission (the “ICC”)etRublic Utility
Commission of Texas (“PUCT"), and the Pennsylvahidlic Utility Commission (“PAPUC"), respectivelfhe access charge
rates for interstate long distance calls and peiViaes are regulated and approved by the Federah@inications Commission
(the “FCC”). See “Regulatory Environment—FederagBRation” and “Regulatory Environment—Access Chatfe

Subsidiesconsist of federal and state subsidies designpdoimote widely available, quality telephone senate
affordable prices in rural areas. Subsidies comm fpools to which telecommunications providersludmg local, long
distance, and wireless carriers, contribute on athip basis. Subsidies are allocated and distribtdgerural carriers monthly
based upon their respective costs for providingllservice. In lllinois we receive federal but stdte subsidies; in Texas and
Pennsylvania we receive both federal and statadiebs
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Long distance servicesnable customers to originate calls that termipatside their local calling area. We offer a variet
of long distance plans, including an unlimited icajlplan, and offer a combination of subscriptionl asage fees.

Data and Internet serviceiclude revenues from ndpoeal private lines and for providing access toltiternet and IPTV
We also offer a variety of data connectivity seegicincluding Asynchronous Transfer Mode and gigathiernet products and
frame relay networks. In our Pennsylvania marketsalgo provide virtual hosting services, collocatservices, custom web
site delevopment, and e-commerce enabling techiedog

Other servicesnclude revenues from telephone directory publighimholesale transport services on our fiber optic
network in Texas, billing and collection serviceside wiring service, and maintenance.

Wireless partnershipnvestments are included as a component of otlvenie in our Telephone Operations segment. This
includes our limited partnership interests in Boalel Communications, a competitive access provated,five cellular
partnerships: GTE Mobilnet of South Texas, GTE Mudtiof Texas RSA #17, Pittsburgh SMSA, Pennsylwa$A 6(1), and
Pennsylvania RSA 6(ll).

We own approximately 2.3% of GTE Mobilnet of Soii#xas, which serves the greater Houston metropdditaa.
Because we have a minor ownership interest andotamftuence operations, we account for this inrestt using the cost
basis; income is recognized only on cash distrimstipaid to us up to our proportionate earninghérmpartnership. We
recognized income on cash distributions of $4.lionilfrom this partnership for the year ended Deben81, 2008, and $4.2
million for the year ended December 31, 2007.

We own approximately 17.0% of GTE Mobilnet of TeXRSA #17, which serves areas in and around Coileas.
Because we have some influence over the operaticidirmancial policies of this partnership, we aaaoior the investment
under the equity method, recognizing income basetthe proportion of the earnings generated by grnprship that would be
allocated to us. Cash distributions are recordealrasluction in our investment amount. For the pealed December 31, 2008,
we recognized income of $2.6 million and receivasdhcdistributions of $0.9 million from this partskip. For the year ended
December 31, 2007, we recognized income of $2.komiand received cash distributions of $1.9 millio

San Antonio MTA, L.P., a wholly-owned partnershipGelico Partnership (doing business as VerizoneWss), is the
general partner for both GTE Mobilnet of South Teaad GTE Mobilnet of Texas RSA #17.

In connection with the acquisition of North Pittsph, we acquired 3.6% of Pittsburgh SMSA, 16.6728%ennsylvania
RSA 6(1), and 23.67% of Pennsylvania RSA 6(Il) Wess partnerships, all of which are majority owaed operated by
Verizon Wireless. These partnerships cover teregothat almost entirely overlap the markets sebyetorth Pittsburgh’s
ILEC and CLEC operations. Because of our limiteftlgnce over Pittsburgh SMSA, we account for thegiment using the
cost basis. We recognized income on cash distobsitirom Pittsburgh SMSA of $5.6 million for theayeended December 31,
2008. The Pennsylvania RSA 6(1) and RSA 6(Il) parships are accounted for under the equity metrecognized incorr
of $7.5 million and received cash distributionsb@f0 million from these partnerships for the yazatedd December 31, 2008.

Boulevard Communications, L.L.P. is a Pennsylvéim&ed liability partnership equally owned by NbrPittsburgh and a
company in the Armstrong Holdings, Inc. group ofng@anies. Boulevard provides point-to-point dataises to businesses in
western Pennsylvania, including access to ISPs)axiions to interexchange carriers, and high-speéaltransmission. We
account for the Boulevard investment under thetggquethod.




Table of Contents

Other Operations

Our Other Operations segment, which does not ircard/ North Pittsburgh operations, consists of fiemplementary
businesses:

«  Public Servicepprovides local and long distance service and autednealling service for correctional facilitie

*  Business Systersells and installs telecommunications equipmerth s key, private branch exchange (PBX), and
IP-based telephone systems, to business customeexas &nd lllinois

e Market Responsprovides telemarketing and order fulfillment sees

e Operator Servicesffers both live and automated local and long dis¢éeoperator services and national directory
assistance on a wholesale and retail b

«  Mobile Servicepprovides one-way messaging service predominanthutdllinois business customers. A portion of
the 2008 revenues included our lllinois cellulaeagy and Texas Mobile Virtual Network Operator (“M@")
operations, which were discontinued in 2008. Beigigin 2009, the remaining product, paging servioel be
classified as a product in our Telephone Operatiagsnent rather than as a business within Otherafipes.

Our Other Operations segment generated approxiyn®deb million of cash flows from operating actige# for the year
ended December 31, 2008, and ($0.4) million foryihar ended December 31, 2007. As of December(®B, Dther
Operations had total assets of approximately $a#lign.

Customers and Markets

Our lllinois local telephone markets consist ofg&mgraphically contiguous exchanges serving predantiy small towns
and rural areas. We cover an area of approximatélyl square miles, primarily in five central 1bis counties: Coles,
Christian, Montgomery, Effingham, and Shelby. Wevide basic telephone services in this territorigh\88,679 local access
lines, or approximately 25.6 lines per square naiteof December 31, 2008. Approximately 57.9% oflocal access lines
serve residential customers, with the remaindesisgibusiness customers. Our lllinois businessoeusts are predominantly
small retail, commercial, light manufacturing, as®ivice industry accounts, as well as universaies hospitals.

Our 21 exchanges in Texas serve three principajrggbic markets—Lufkin, Conroe, and Katy—in an apgmately
2,054 square mile area. We provide basic telepBengces in this territory, with 136,784 local assdines, or approximately
66.6 lines per square mile, as of December 31, 28pBroximately 65.5% of our Texas local accessdiserve residential
customers, with the remainder serving businesomests. Our Texas business customers are predotgina@ufacturing and
retail industries; our largest business customeraspitals, local governments, and school distric

The Lufkin market is centered primarily in Angelioaunty in east Texas, approximately 120 milesheast of Houston,
and extends into three neighboring counties. Tha & a center for the lumber industry and incluatbsr significant industries
such as education, health care, manufacturing|,retal social services.

The Conroe market is located primarily in Montgoyn€ounty and is centered approximately 40 milesmof Houston.
Parts of the Conroe operating territory extend Iséaitwithin 28 miles of downtown Houston, includipgrts of the affluent
suburb of the Woodlands. Major industries in therket include education, health care, manufactunetgil, and social
services.

The Katy market is located in parts of Fort Bendrii$, Waller, and Brazoria counties and is cewntegproximately 30
miles west of downtown Houston along the busy aquherding 1-10 corridor. Most of the Katy market@nsidered part of
metropolitan Houston, with major industries inchgliadministrative, education, health care, manageérpeofessional, retail,
scientific and waste management services.

The Pennsylvania ILEC territory covers 285 squailesrand serves portions of Allegheny, Armstrongtl&, and
Westmorland counties in western Pennsylvania. Béhernmost point of the ILEC territory is just di#les from Pittsburgh.
We provide basic telephone services in this teyjtaith approximately 58,860 local access linesagproximately 206.5 lines
per square mile, as of December 31, 2008. Apprabein®5.7% of our North Pittsburgh local accessdiserve residential
customers and the remainder serve business custofer CLEC operations expand south to serve Bitgsband north to
serve the city of Butler. The CLEC primarily targsmall to mid-sized businesses, educational initits, and healthcare
facilities.

10






Table of Contents

Sales and Marketing
Telephone Operations
The key components of our overall marketing stnaieghe Telephone Operations segment include:
e positioning ourselves as a single point of confiaicbur customel’ communications need
e providing customers with a broad array of voice dath services, and bundling services where pes

. providing excellent customer service, includirgtur, 7-day a week centralized customer supparbordinate
installation of new services, repair and mainteedooctions;

« developing and delivering new services;

. leveraging our history and involvement with locammunities and expanding “Consolidated Commuitinat and
“Consolidate” brand recognitior

Our consumer sales strategy is focused on incrgasinpenetration of broadband services, incluf&gd, IPTV and
digital telephone, in all of our service areas. &¥e also focused on cross-selling our serviceldping additional services to
maximize revenues and increase revenues per ugkneeasing customer loyalty through superioviset local presence, and
motivated service employees.

Our Telephone Operations segment currently hae #akes channels: call centers, communication creed
commissioned sales people. Our customer serviteamters serve as the primary sales channelesilential and business
customers with one or two phone lines. Commissiaaes representatives provide customized proptsédsger business
customers. In 2006, we formed a new group of cosimmied sales people, called our “Feet on the Stie@tn. This team
canvasses our territory offering residential cusimsour full suite of products, leading with ouple-play bundled offering of
voice, DSL, and IPTV services. In addition to beingtrong sales point of contact, this sales cHalse helps us to identify
and address customer service issues, if any, ooszfve face-to-face basis. This team of individwan be scaled up or down
to match our business needs, including, for exanifplee launch a new product.

Our customers also can visit one of our eight comipations centers to address various communicatieeds, including
paying bills or ordering new service. We believatttihe availability of communication centers halpbe decrease customers’
late payments and bad debt.

Our Telephone Operations’ sales efforts are supddyy direct mail, bill inserts, newspaper advertjspublic relations
activities, sponsorship of community events, antsite promotions.

Directory Publishing is supported by a dedicatddsstorce, which spends months each year focusedom of the
directory markets in order to maximize advertissiades. We believe the directory business has beeffiaient tool for
marketing our other services and for promoting drdevelopment and awareness.

Transport Services has a sales force of commisdisalkes people specializing in wholesale trangpoducts.
Other Operations

Each of our Other Operations businesses executesates and marketing strategy primarily througlinaiependent sales
and marketing team comprising dedicated field sate®unt managers, management, and service refatges. Salespeople
enhance these efforts by attending industry trddevs and assuming leadership roles in industrygsdocluding the U.S.
Telecom Association, the Associated Communicatdospanies of America, and the Independent Telephode
Telecommunications Alliance.
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Information Technology and Support Systems

Our information technology and support systemd &af seasoned organization that supports dayyosgerations and
develops system enhancements. The technology guppour Telephone Operations segment is centemeaaore of
commercially available and internally maintainedtsyns.

In 2005 and 2006 we successfully migrated mosth@key business processes of our lllinois and Testaphone
operations onto single company-wide systems artbpfas including common network provisioning, netlvonanagement,
workforce management systems, and financial systen2007, we upgraded and integrated our telephdlieg system in
lllinois. All of North Pittsburgh’s financial, hunmaresource, and supply chain systems were immdgiategrated into our
existing systems, while provisioning, network magragnt, and trouble management were integratedntonom platforms
throughout 2008 and the ILEC billing platform whié integrated in mid-2009. Our core systems andwene platform are
readily expandable.

Network Architecture and Technology

All of our local networks are based on a Carriewi®g Area, or CSA, architecture. CSA architectallews access
equipment to be placed closer to customer premiga@ish means customers can be connected to thpraegat over shorter
copper loops than would be possible if all custawegre connected directly to the carrier's mainadwiThe access equipment
is connected back to the main switch on a high dap#iber circuit, resulting in extensive fiber pleyment throughout the
network, which enables us to provide broadband@esun excess of 20 Mbps to our customers.

A single engineering team is responsible for theral architecture and interoperability of the vais elements in the
combined network of our lllinois, Texas, and Pertveryia telephone operations. Our network operataamer, or NOC, in
Lufkin, Texas, monitors the performance of our gmise wide communications network around the clddks center is
connected to our NOC in Mattoon, lllinois, whichatiewith customer-specific issues. We believe os allow our
Telephone Operations to maintain high network parémce standards using common network systemslatidrms, which
allows us to efficiently handle weekend and aftemis coverage between all of our markets and niticéeatly allocate
personnel to manage fluctuations in our workloadives.

Our network is supported by advanced 100% digutéiches, with a fiber network connecting 63 of 68rexchanges.
These switches provide all of our local telephongt@mers with access to custom calling featurdsevadded services, and
dial-up Internet access. We have four additionalchwes: one that supports feature-rich VOIP, twdickted to long distance
service, and one that supports our Public SendodsOperator Services businesses.

After years of making network improvements and d@yieg content relationships, we introduced IPTWgm (which is
functionally similar to digital cable television) selected lllinois markets in 2005, Texas marke006, and Pennsylvania
markets in 2008. As of December 31, 2008, IPTV aaslable to approximately 142,800 homes in ourkais: Our IPTV
subscriber base grew from 12,241 as of Decembe2®)7, to 16,666 as of December 31, 2008. We wiidito provide set-top
boxes to future subscribers, but we do not antieipaving to make any material capital upgradesutanetwork infrastructure
in connection with our expansion of IPTV.

In Texas we also operate a transport network, wbictsists of approximately 2,500 route-miles oéfibptic cable.
Approximately 54% of this network consists of casiheath that we own, either directly or throughtHaxas Fiber Line
Incorporated (our majority-owned subsidiary) andtBzend Fibernet (a partnership partly owned by Bsy most of the
remaining route-miles of the network, we purchasteands on third-party fiber networks under conr@ommonly known as
indefeasible rights of use. In limited cases, ve® dkase capacity on third-party fiber networksdmplete routes. These assets
also support our IPTV video product in Texas.

In the past ten years, North Pittsburgh has indester $160 million to develop a high quality 10@®gital switching
network, comprising nine central offices and 86 GSFhe CSA architecture has enabled North Pitt$btogrovide DSL
service, with speeds up to 3 Mbps, to all of itsems lines. In addition, North Pittsburgh has dggddiiber optic cable
extensively throughout its network, resulting ih@0% Synchronous Optical Network (SONET) that sugpall of the inter-
office and host-remote links, as well as the majaf business parks within its ILEC serving area.
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Prior to being acquired by Consolidated Communicesj North Pittsburgh completed a capital consmagbroject to
deploy fiber closer to the homes and businessesves. As of December 31, 2008, approximately pé#oent of North
Pittsburgh’s potential access lines have fiber with000 feet, which will allow for DSL deploymeat speeds ranging between
20 to 25 mbps and support our IPTV product in Pglwasia. North Pittsburgh also has upgraded ita tt@nsmission network
to a gigabit Ethernet backbone using a Multiplet®&rol Label Switching (MPLS) network that will moedficiently and
effectively handle the increased bandwidth demdirmas its next-generation DSL products and its bes@class Ethernet
offerings.

The Pennsylvania CLEC operates an extensive netwibinkover 300 route miles of fiber optic faciliién the Pittsburgh
metropolitan area. The CLEC has placed equipme?? Merizon central offices and one Embarq cemfiade, and primarily
serves its customers using UNE loops. In the Rittgto market, the CLEC operates a carrier hotelgbates as the hub for its
fiber optic network. We offer space in this carfietel to ISPs, long distance carriers, other CLE®S other customers who
need a carrier-class location to house voice atalatguipment and access to a number of networgisidimg ours.

Employees

As of December 31, 2008, we had a total of 1,31pleyees, of which 1,195 were full-time and 120 weagt-time.
Approximately 343 of the employees located in digare represented by the International Brothedtaidelectrical Workers
under a collective bargaining agreement that eggitevember 15, 2008. On February 3, 2009 the Iat@nal Brotherhood of
Electrical Workers ratified a new four year collgetbargaining agreement, which will expire on Naneer 15, 2012.
Approximately 316 of the employees located in Texad Pennsylvania are represented by the CommigrisatVorkers of
America under collective bargaining agreementsexptre October 15, 2010, and September 30, 2@&pectively. We beliey
that management currently has a good relationshipthe employees of the Company.

Competition
Local telephone marke

In general, telecommunications service in rurahare more costly to provide than service in urli@as; the lower
customer density necessitates higher capital exppead on a per customer basis. As a result, iegaly is not economically
viable for new entrants to overlap existing netvgarkrural territories.

Despite the barriers to entry, rural telephone camgs face some competition for voice services feafle providers,
wireless providers, and competitive telephone corigza Cable providers are upgrading their netwauitds fiber optics and
installing facilities to provide fully interactiitansmission of broadband voice, data, and videenconications. Competitive
telephone companies have been granted permissistateyregulators to offer local telephone serinica&reas already served by
a local telephone company. Although they have ebtgne so, electric utility companies have exgstinsets and low cost
access to capital that may allow them to enter kkedaapidly and accelerate network development.

Industry participants increasingly are embracing®ervice, which essentially involves the routiigoice calls, at lea:
in part, over the Internet through packets of diagéead of transmitting the calls over the teleghsystem. While current VOIP
applications typically complete calls using ILEGrastructure and networks, as VOIP services beamore widespread and
technology advances, more calls may be placed wufithsing the telephone system. On March 10, 20@4FCC issued a
Notice of Proposed Rulemaking with respect t-enabled services. Among other things, the FC@iisiclering whether VOIP
services are regulated telecommunications sereicaaregulated information services. The FCC hago/essue a decision on
the matter. We cannot predict the outcome of th€’B@ulemaking or how it will affect the revenudsoair rural telephone
companies. The proliferation of VOIP, particulatdythe extent such communications do not utilizereiworks, may reduce
our customer base and cause us to lose accesani@esher funding.
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Mediacom, which serves portions of our lllinoisriries, offers VOIP that competes with our bagiice services. In
2008, NewWave Communications launched a competzeyproduct in the portions of our lllinois teaty that is not served
by Mediacom. In addition, both Suddenlink and Costceable competitors in Texas, launched a comgetiice product this
year. These companies also compete with us foomests interested in video and DSL services. InNmuth Pittsburgt
territory, each of the two incumbent cable providérmstrong and Comcast, offer a competitive VOIfering. Armstrong an
Comcast also offer aggressive triple play packajesice, video, and broadband service. In genegedlle companies have
modern networks and the capacity to serve a sufitanmber of customers. We estimate that cabhepamies now cover 85
of our territory.

Wireless service

Rural telephone companies usually face less wsalempetition than non-rural providers of voicevgsss because
wireless networks in rural areas generally are des®loped. Our service areas in Conroe and Katyad are exceptions to this
general rule because they are close to Houstoa.r&sult, we are facing increased competition fraireless service providers
in those markets. Our Pennsylvania markets alsexgesed to increased competition from wirelesgiceproviders because
of the concentration of interstate and major higysva the territory. We have experienced the Idsscoess lines by customers
choosing to eliminate their wireline service indawf a wireless provider. We believe that wirelssbstitution will continue to
be a competitive threat in the years to come.

Internet service

The Internet services market is highly competitwe there are few barriers to entry. Internet sesA-meaning wired an
wireless Internet access and on-line content sesvieare provided by cable providers, Internet sergioviders, long distance
carriers, and satellitbased companies. Many of these companies providetdiccess to the Internet and a variety of sujyy
services. In addition, many companies offer actestosed, proprietary information networks.

Cable providers have aggressively entered thenaterccess markets over the last few years. Bath sizbstantial
transmission capabilities, traditionally carry datdarge numbers of customers, and have a biflirggem infrastructure that
permits them to add new services. Industry souggpsct, and we agree, that competition for Inteseetices will continue to
be very competitive.

Long distance servic

The long distance telecommunications market islisigobmpetitive. Competition in the long distancesimess is based
primarily on price, although service bundling, kaeny, customer service, billing service, and qyadit influence customers’
choices.

Other competition

Our other lines of business are subject to suliatartmpetition from local, regional, and natiocampetitors. In
particular, our directory publishing and transgmrsinesses operate in competitive markets. We éxipaiccompetition in all of
our businesses will continue to intensify as neshit®logies and new services are offered. Customéhgse businesses can
and do change vendors frequently. Long-term cotgrmae unusual, and those that do exist have datiorlclauses that allow
quick termination. Where long-term contracts arplace, customers are renewing them for shorterger

14




Table of Contents

Regulatory Environment

The following summary does not describe all exgstind proposed legislation and regulations affegtime
telecommunications industry. Regulation can chaagély, and ongoing proceedings and hearings caltdr the manner in
which the telecommunications industry operatescémot predict the outcome of any of these devedagsnnor their
potential impact on us. S“Risk Factors—Regulatory Risks.”

Overview

The telecommunications industry is subject to esitenfederal, state, and local regulation. UnderTtlecommunications
Act of 1996 (“Telecommunications Act”), federal asigite regulators share responsibility for impletimgnand enforcing
statutes and regulations designed to encourageatdiop and to preserve and advance widely availapliality telephone
service at affordable prices.

At the federal level, the Federal Communicationsn@ussion, or FCC, generally exercises jurisdictiwer facilities and
services of local exchange carriers such as oat telephone companies to the extent they are taspobvide, originate, or
terminate interstate or international communicaiorhe FCC has the authority to condition, modiBncel, terminate, or
revoke our operating authority for failure to cosnplith applicable federal laws or FCC rules, retjolss, and policies. Fines
other penalties also may be imposed for any ofetvésations.

State regulatory commissions, such as the ICQimois, PAPUC in Pennsylvania, and the PUCT in Bexgenerally
exercise jurisdiction over carriers’ facilities agervices to the extent they are used to providginate, or terminate intrastate
communications. In particular, state regulatoryrmigs have substantial oversight over interconaeand network access by
competitors of our rural telephone companies. ditawh, municipalities and other local governmegéacies regulate the putk
rights-of-way necessary to install and operate ngta State regulators can sanction our rural kelap companies or revoke
our certifications if we violate relevant laws egulations.

Federal regulation

Our rural telephone companies and competitive legkahange companies must comply with the CommunitaiAct of
1934, which requires, among other things, thattetenunications carriers offer services at just @adonable rates and on
non-discriminatory terms and conditions. The 198@adments to the Communications Act (containetién t
Telecommunications Act discussed below) dramaticginged, and likely will continue to change, ldredscape of the
industry.

Removal of entry barrier:

The central aim of the Telecommunications Act ispen local telecommunications markets to competivhile
enhancing universal service. Before the Telecomoatinins Act was enacted, many states limited thécgs that could be
offered by a company competing with an incumbelepteone company. The Telecommunications Act pregmhgse state and
local laws.

The Telecommunications Act imposes a number oféoteection and other requirements on all localmomications
providers. All telecommunications carriers haveutydo interconnect directly or indirectly with tii&cilities and equipment of
other telecommunications carriers. Local excharggears, including our rural telephone companies,raquired to:

. allow other carriers to resell their servic
e provide number portability where feasib

e ensure dialing parity, meaning that consumersctaose their default local or long distance teteghcompany
without having to dial additional digit

e ensure that competitors’ customers receive neridiénatory access to telephone numbers, operatwice, directory
assistance, and directory listir

-  afford competitors access to telephone poles, dootsluits, and righ-of-way; and

»  establish reciprocal compensation arrangemeritsather carriers for the transport and terminatibn
telecommunications traffic
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Furthermore, the Telecommunications Act imposemonmbent telephone companies (other than rur@pbeine companies
that maintain their so-called “rural exemption"asg subsidiaries do) additional obligations to:

*  negotiate interconnection agreements with othatararin good faith

. interconnect their facilities and equipment wathy requesting telecommunications carrier, at aofirtically feasible
point, at nondiscriminatory rates and on nondistratory terms and condition

. offer their retail services to other carriers fesale at discounted wholesale ra

e provide reasonable notice of changes in the inédion necessary for transmission and routing nfices over the
incumbent telephone comp¢'s facilities or in the information necessary faemoperability; anc

. provide, at rates, terms, and conditions thajusie reasonable, and nondiscriminatory, for thesical collocation of
other carriers’ equipment necessary for intercotioe®r access to UNEs at the premises of the itheantntelephone
company.

Access charge

A significant portion of our rural telephone comjEm revenues come from network access chargedhyydiohg distance
and other carriers for originating or terminatirail€ within our service areas. The amount of nekvamrcess charge revenues
our rural telephone companies receive is basedtes set or approved by federal and state regulatonmissions, and these
rates are subject to change at any time.

Intrastate network access charges are regulatethi®y commissions. Network access charges in lnwidl market
currently mirror interstate charges for everything local switching. Interstate and intrastate meknaccess charges in our
North Pittsburgh market also are very similar. dmttast, as required by Texas regulators, our Taxas telephone compani
impose significantly higher network access chafgemtrastate transmissions than for intersta@smissions.

The FCC regulates the prices we may charge fonsbeof our local telephone facilities to originatederminate interstate
and international transmissions. The FCC has stredtthese prices as a combination of flat monthgrges paid by custome
and usage-sensitive charges or flat monthly radéegefs paid by long distance or other carriers.

The FCC regulates levels of interstate network s&charges by imposing price caps on Regional@adirating
Companies, referred to as RBOCs, and other lagermibent telephone companies. These price capsecadjbisted based on
various formulas, such as inflation and produgfivéind otherwise through regulatory proceedingsutmbent telephone
companies, such as our local telephone compan@ggetact to base network access charges on prise leat are not required
to do so.

Historically, all of our rural telephone companiesse elected not to apply federal price caps. &ustthey employ rate-of-
return regulation for their network interstate asceharges, whereby they earn a fixed return dnithestment—currently
11.25%—over and above operating costs. In Dece2®@7, we filed a petition with the FCC seeking éorpit our lllinois and
Texas companies to convert to price cap regula@am.petition was approved on May 6, 2008 andfiscéif’e on July 1, 2008.
This conversion gives us greater pricing flexilifior interstate services, especially the increglgicompetitive special access
segment. It also provides us the potential to imeeeour net earnings by becoming more productidardroducing new
services. On the other hand, we were requireddoce our interstate access charges in lllinoisifsogmtly, and because our
lllinois intrastate access charges generally mimtarstate rates, this conversion also may résddtwer intrastate revenues in
lllinois. In addition, we will receive somewhat rexkd subsidies from the interstate Universal Serkiend program.

Our Pennsylvania rural telephone company is anaaeeschedule rate of return company, which mearnstérstate acce
revenues are based upon a statistical formula dpedlby the National Exchange Carrier AssociatibiECA”) and approved
by the FCC, rather than upon its actual costgsI2006 and 2007 annual revisions of the averdgedste formulas, NECA
proposed and the FCC approved structural changésvere fully phased in during 2008, reducing oemfsylvania rural
telephone company’s annual interstate revenueppsoaimately $3.7 million compared to periods ptiothe phase in of the
structural changes. NECA and the FCC may makeduxthanges to the formulas in future years, whalchave an
additional impact on our revenues. Our Pennsylvauria telephone company has the option to becontstacompany,
meaning its rates would be subject to its own iitlial cost and demand data studies, but this optmuid be irrevocable if
exercised. We cannot predict whether or when itld/be advantageous to make this conversion.
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Traditionally, regulators have allowed network asceates for rural areas to be set higher thaadhal cost of
terminating or originating long distance calls asraplicit means of subsidizing the high cost abyding local service in rural
areas. Following a series of federal court decisimting that subsidies must be explicit rathenthmaplicit, the FCC adopted
reforms in 2001 that reduced per-minute networleascharges and shifted a portion of cost recovdrigh historically was
imposed on long distance carriers, to flat-ratenthly subscriber line charges imposed on end-usgomers. While the FCC
also increased explicit subsidies to rural teleghoompanies through the universal service fundafggegate amount of
interstate network access charges paid by longrdistcarriers to access providers, such as ourtelephone companies, has
decreased and may continue to decrease.

Unlike the federal system, lllinois does not pr@vah explicit subsidy in the form of a universalgze fund. Therefore,
while subsidies from the federal universal serfioel offset the decrease in revenues resulting tftenreduction in interstate
network access rates in lllinois, there was noesgonding offset for the decrease in revenues fh@mmeduction in intrastate
network access rates. In Pennsylvania and Texa#titastate network access rate regime applicdalder rural telephone
companies does not mirror the FCC regime, so tipaanof the reforms was revenue neutral. The Tkegslature is expected
to consider potential changes to rates duringdpislative session beginning in January 2009.

In recent years, carriers have become more aggesissdisputing the FCC's interstate access cheatgs and the
application of access charges to their telecomnatioies traffic. We believe these disputes havesiased in part because
advances in technology have made it more diffimutletermine the identity and jurisdiction of tieffgiving carriers an
increased opportunity to challenge access costhéartraffic. For example, in September 2003, ¥g& Holdings Corporation
filed a petition with the FCC to preempt an ordeth@ Minnesota Public Utilities Commission assegtjurisdiction over
Vonage. The FCC determined that it was impossiblditide Vonage’s VOIP service into interstate amtdastate components
without negating federal rules and policies. Acaagty, the FCC found it was an interstate servioesubject to traditional
state telephone regulation. While the FCC ordemdidspecifically address whether intrastate acckasyes were applicable to
Vonage's VOIP service, the fact that the service feaind to be solely interstate raises that cond#iecannot predict what
other actions other long distance carriers may kefere the FCC or with their local exchange casriencluding our rural
telephone companies, to challenge the applicalufigccess charges. We have not received any $aiahsdo date, but we
cannot guarantee that none will arise. Due tortbeesing deployment of VOIP services and othértelogical changes, we
believe these types of disputes and claims aréyltkeincrease.

On July 25, 2006, the FCC issued for comment CCkBo@1-92, Missoula Intercarrier Compensation Ptarihe
Missoula Plan—a proposal for a comprehensive refafrmetwork access charges and other forms of casgten for the
exchange of traffic among telecommunications cesri€onsolidated Communications has publicly suigabthe Missoula
Plan; our state regulators have filed commentgpposition. The FCC has taken no action on the majto date. We continue
to actively participate in shaping intercarrier gmmsation and universal service reforms througtoour efforts as well as
through industry associations and coalitions.

On October 23, 2006, Verizon Pennsylvania, Inc. smaeral of its affiliates filed a formal complaimith the PAPUC
claiming that our Pennsylvania CLEC's intrastatécved access rates violate Pennsylvania law. FEetaled description of
the dispute, see “Regulatory Risks” included imiteA. “Risk Factors.”

Unbundled network element rules

The unbundling requirements have been some of tst aontroversial provisions of the TelecommunaradiAct. In its
initial implementation of the law, the FCC generattquired incumbent telephone companies to leagdarange of UNE’s to
CLEC's. Those rules were designed to enable cotapgtio deliver services to their customers in coation with their
existing networks or as recombined service offexiog an unbundled network element platform, comgnknbwn as an UNE-
P. These unbundling requirements, and the dutyféo ONEs to competitors, imposed substantial costthe incumbent
telephone companies and made it easier for custotoehift their business to other carriers. At@ourt challenge and a
decision vacating portions of the UNE and UNE-Rsyuthe FCC issued revised rules in February 2085r¢instated some
unbundling requirements for incumbent telephonepmames that are not protected by the rural exemphat eliminated
certain other unbundling requirements.
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Each of the subsidiaries through which we operatdaxal telephone businesses is an incumbenthelecompany and
provides service in rural areas. As discussed ghibheeTelecommunications Act exempts rural teleghosmpanies from
certain of the more burdensome interconnectionirements. However, the Telecommunications Act gesithat the rural
exemption will cease to apply as to competing cablapanies if and when the rural carrier introduddeo services in a
service area. In that event, a competing cableabpeproviding video programming and seeking tovate telecommunications
services in the area may interconnect. Since ebohracsubsidiaries now provides video servicegirtmajor service areas, 1
rural exemption no longer applies to cable compamypetitors in those service areas. AdditionallyTéxas, the PUCT has
removed the rural exemption for our Texas subsebawrith respect to telecommunications servicesigtied by Sprint
Communications, L.P. on behalf of cable companiés.believe the benefits of providing video servioaswveigh the loss of
the rural exemptions as to cable operators.

Under its current rules, the FCC has eliminatedundbng requirements for ILECs providing broadbaedvices over fibe
facilities, but continues to require unbundled asa® massnarket narrowband loops. ILECs are no longer reglio unbundl
packet switching services. In addition, the FCOnfibthat CLECs generally are not at a disadvantagertain wire center
locations in regard to high bandwidth (DS-1 and 8)3eops, dark fiber loops, and dedicated inteceffiransport facilities.
However, where a disadvantage persists, ILECs moatio be required to unbundle loops and trangpoilities.

The FCC rules regarding the unbundling of netwdeknents did not have an impact on our lllinois Eethnsylvania ILE!
operations because these ILE®ave rural exemptions. Our Pennsylvania CLECaimers do not currently utilize line sharii
and utilize their own switching for business custosithat are served by high-capacity loops, selih@nation of unbundling
requirements for these network elements had nateffe our operations or revenues from our existingtomer base. In
July 2008, our Pennsylvania CLEC renewed, for eglyear term, a commercial agreement with Veripah ltas set the terms
of the pricing and provisioning of lines servedizithg UNE-P. Our Pennsylvania CLEC currently pigns 3.63% of our
CLEC access utilizing UNE-P. Although the costs@NE-P will increase over time pursuant to the termthefagreement, ol
relatively low use of UNE-P and our ability to mége some of the lines to alternative provisioniogrses will limit the overall
impact on our current cost structure. The CLECéwgerienced moderate increases in the overalltegsbvision high capaci
loops, interoffice transport facilities, and daitefr as a result of the FCC’s changes to unbundéagirements for those
facilities.

In 2006, Verizon filed a petition requesting theG-@ refrain from applying a number of regulati@ashe Verizon
operations in six major metropolitan markets, idahg the Pittsburgh market area. Among other thingsizon urged the FCC
to forbear from applying loop and transport unbimgitegulations, claiming there was sufficient catiton in the Pittsburgh
market to mitigate the need for these rules. Th€ EBEnied Verizon’s petition in December 2007, bati¥on (and other
ILECs) remain free to petition the FCC for simitelief, in Pittsburgh and other markets, in thaifat If any such petitions are
granted in markets in which our CLEC operates,omst to obtain access to loop and transport faslitould increase
substantially.

Promotion of universal servic

In general, telecommunications service in rurahare more costly to provide than service in urd@@as. The lower
customer density means that switching and othdlitfas serve fewer customers and loops are typidahger, requiring great:
expenditures per customer to build and maintains@yporting the high cost of operations in ruratkets, federal universal
service fund subsidies promote widely availablaligyitelephone service at affordable prices irabareas. In 2008 we recei
$55.2 million in aggregate payments from the fedena/ersal service fund, the Pennsylvania univiessavice fund and the
Texas universal service fund. In 2007 we receiv&@l@million from the federal universal service duand the Texas universal
service fund.
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Federal universal service fund subsidies are paliglto carriers that are designated eligible tetagwnications carriers,
ETCs, by a state commission. Each of our rurapted@e companies has been designated an ETC. Hqwekar the
Telecommunications Act, competitors can obtainsdume level of federal universal service fund subsids we do, per line
served, if the applicable state regulator determthat granting such federal universal service fuiosidies to competitors
would be in the public interest and the competitiifer and advertise certain services as requiyeith® Telecommunications
Act and the FCC. The ICC has granted several pe$itior ETC designations, but to date no other Efi€operating in our
lllinois service area. We are not aware that amyiexs have filed petitions to be designated an HTGur Pennsylvania or
Texas service areas. Under current rules, the diessbur rural telephone companies receive araffetted by any payments
competitors. The FCC proposed on January 29, 2008nend its rules to reduce the support availablen more than one
carrier provides service in a particular market,we are unable to predict whether or when it madgpa this proposal.

The formula the FCC uses to calculate universaiceifund subsidies is in flux. In November 200% FederaBtate Joir
Board on Universal Service offered some proposaetee FCC to address the long-term reform issugadahe high-cost
universal service support system and to make fuedgahrevisions in the structure of existing ungadiservice mechanisms.
On January 29, 2008, the FCC issued a public nagigeesting comments on the Joint Board’s proposals

We cannot predict the outcome of any FCC rulemakingimilar proceedings. The outcome of any procegpdr other
legislative or regulatory changes could affectah®unt of universal service support our rural tetae companies receive.

State regulation of CCI lllinois

lllinois Telephone Operations’ long distance, oparaervices, and payphone services subsidiaryshbkl necessary
certifications in lllinois (and the other statesahich it operates). This subsidiary is requiredilmtariffs with the ICC, but
generally can change the prices, terms, and condiitated in its tariffs on one day’s notice, viatlor notice of price increases
to affected customers. Our lllinois Telephone Opena’ other services are not subject to any sigaift state regulations in
lllinois, and our Other lllinois Operations are sobject to any significant state regulation owsiflany specific contractually
imposed obligations.

Our lllinois rural telephone company is certifiegdthe ICC to provide local telephone services. Hrity operates as a
distinct company from a regulatory standpoint ancbgulated under a rate of return system for staita revenues. Although, as
explained above, the FCC has preempted certaim iggtilations pursuant to the Telecommunicatiorts IAiois retains the
authority to impose requirements on our Illinoisafitelephone company to preserve universal serpicdect public safety and
welfare, ensure quality of service, and protectscomers. For instance, our lllinois rural telephoompany must file tariffs
setting forth the terms, conditions, and pricest®mtrastate services; these tariffs may belehgked by third parties. Our
lllinois rural telephone company has not had a girrate proceeding before the ICC since 1983.

The ICC has broad authority to impose service gualid service offering requirements on our lllsairal telephone
company, including credit and collection policieglgractices, and can require our lllinois rurépbone company to take
actions to ensure that it meets its statutory alilgn to provide reliable local exchange serviaw. €&ample, as part of its
approval of the reorganization we implemented innection with our 2005 IPO, the ICC imposed varioosditions, including
(1) prohibitions on payment of dividends or othasle transfers from ICTC to us if ICTC fails to meetxceed agreed
benchmarks for a majority of seven service qualigtrics, and (2) the requirement that ICTC havessto $5.0 million or its
currently approved capital expenditure budget (Wwaier is higher) for each calendar year througbrabination of available
cash and credit facilities. During 2008 we sat@fach of the applicable lllinois regulatory reguiients necessary to permit
ICTC to pay dividends to us.

The lllinois General Assembly has made major rewisiand added significant new provisions to theigus of the Illinois
Public Utilities Act governing the regulation anbligations of telecommunications carriers on asidlree occasions since
1985. Most recently, in 2007, the lllinois legisie¢ addressed competition for cable and video cesvand authorized statew
licensing by the ICC to replace the existing systéimdividual town franchises. This legislatiosalimposed substantial state-
mandated consumer service and consumer proteetiprirements on providers of cable and video sesvi€kee requirements
generally became applicable to us on January 18,2081 we are operating in compliance with the faw Although we have
franchise agreements for cable and video servicaf the towns we serve, this statewide franclgisiathority will simplify the
process in the future. The lllinois General Assgndoincluded its session in May 2008 and made ndiaddl changes to the
current state telecommunications law, which cutyemis a sunset date of July 1, 2009. We expettttedllinois legislature
will consider additional amendments in 2009.
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State regulation of CCI Texa

Our Texas rural telephone companies are eachiedrhify the PUCT to provide local telephone servingbeir respective
territories. In addition, our Texas long distanoe &ransport subsidiaries are registered with tHEP as interexchange carrie
The transport subsidiary also has obtained a seprgvider certificate of operating authority (“SB&”) to better assist the
transport subsidiary with its operations in murétigreas. Recently, to assist with expanding sesvidferings, Consolidated
Communications Enterprise Services, Inc. also abthan SPCOA from the PUCT. While our Texas rwatgighone company
services are extensively regulated, our other sesyisuch as long distance and transport sendoesiot subject to any
significant state regulation.

Our Texas rural telephone companies operate aanaisbmpanies from a regulatory standpoint. Eacdeparately
regulated by the PUCT in order to preserve univessavice, protect public safety and welfare, easyrality of service, and
protect consumers. Each Texas rural telephone aoynpast file and maintain tariffs setting forth tteems, conditions, and
prices for its intrastate services.

Currently, both of our Texas rural telephone cong@have immunity from adjustments to their ratesluding their
intrastate network access rates, because thegeél&ntentive regulation” under the Texas Publiditits Regulatory Act, or
PURA. In order to qualify for incentive regulatiasyr rural telephone companies agreed to fulfittaie infrastructure
requirements. In exchange, they are not subjethatienge by the PUCT regarding their rates, oVegaknues, return on
invested capital, or net income.

PURA prescribes two different forms of incentivgukation in Chapter 58 and Chapter 59. Under eiffestion, the rates,
including network access rates, an incumbent telepltompany may charge for basic local servicesrgdiy cannot be
increased from the amount(s) on the date of eleatithout PUCT approval. Even with PUCT approvatreases can only
occur in very specific situations. Pricing flexibilunder Chapter 59 is extremely limited. In cast; Chapter 58 allows greater
pricing flexibility on non-basic network servicesjstomer-specific contracts, and new services.

Initially, both of our Texas rural telephone comjgsrelected incentive regulation under Chapterrgbfalfilled the
applicable infrastructure requirements, but thegnged their election status to Chapter 58 in 2008ch gives them some
pricing flexibility for basic services, subject RUCT approval. The PUCT could impose additionalastructure requirements
or other restrictions in the future. Any requirenseor restrictions could limit the amount of calhttis available to be
transferred from our rural telephone companiefi¢oparent entities, and could adversely affectatility to meet our debt
service requirements and repayment obligations.

In September 2005, the Texas legislature adoptgtfisiant telecommunications legislation. Amongeatkhings, this
legislation created a statewide video franchisedtmcommunications carriers; established a framkewwoderegulate the retail
telecommunications services offered by incumbeculltelecommunications carriers, and imposed caaatirequirements to
reduce intrastate access charges; and directddltBd to initiate a study of the Texas Universah@er Fund. The PUCT stu
submitted to the legislature in 2007 recommendatittie Small Company Area High-Cost Program, whkimbers our Texas
telephone companies, should be reviewed by the PitddiT a policy perspective regarding basic lockghone service rates
and lines eligible for support. The PUCT has ordgrassed the large company fund and has no imneealans to conduct a
small company review. The Texas legislature mayeslissues of importance to rural telecommuninataarriers in Texas,
including the Texas Universal Service Fund, in2B89 legislative session.

Texas universal service

The Texas universal service fund is administereBlBZA. PURA, the governing law, directs the PUCTatiopt and
enforce rules requiring local exchange carriersotatribute to a state universal service fund tlepdrtelecommunications
providers offer basic local telecommunications genat reasonable rates in high cost rural ardas. TExas universal service
fund is also used to reimburse telecommunicatioosigers for revenues lost by providing Tel-Assista and to reimburse
carriers for providing lifeline service. Our Texasal telephone companies receive disbursements tings fund.
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State regulation of North Pittsburgl

The PAPUC regulates the rates, the system of finhaccounts for reporting purposes, and certgirees of service
quality, billing procedures and universal servigading, among other things, related to our rudgpieone company and
CLEC's provision of intrastate services. In additithe PAPUC sets the rates and terms for intetiion between carriers
within the guidelines ordered by the FCC.

Price regulation in Pennsylvani:

North Pittsburgh’s intrastate rates are regulatedtua statutory framework referred to as Act 183der this statute,
North Pittsburg’s rates for non-competitive intrastate servicesallowed to increase based on an index that messur
economy-wide price increases. In return, NorthsBittgh committed to continue to upgrade its netwwordnsure that all its
customers would have access to broadband seraicdgp deploy a ubiquitous broadband (defined 3441Mbps) network
throughout its entire service area by Decembe8Q8, which it did.

Pennsylvania universal service and access chatr

On September 30, 1999, as part of a proceedingebalved a number of pending issues, the PAPUEreddILECs,
including North Pittsburgh, to rebalance and redat@state toll and switched access rates. Inghate order, the PAPUC also
created a Pennsylvania Universal Service Fund (FAWShelp offset the resulting loss of ILEC revesuln 2003, the PAPUC
ordered ILECs to further rebalance and reducestdta access charges and left the PAUSF in plawdinmefurther review. In
2008, North Pittsburgh’s annual receipts from amaticbutions to the PAUSF total $5.2 million and ®nillion, respectively.
The CLEC receives no funding from the PAUSF butenily contributes $0.2 million annually. Since A&3 was adopted in
2004, the PAPUC may not require a LEC to reduca$thte access rates except on a revenue newrsl ba

In 2004, PAPUC instituted a third review of accelsarges. This proceeding may affect access chatge for North
Pittsburgh and the CLEC, as well as the amountiadiihg that North Pittsburgh receives from the PAU®d the amounts that
both companies contribute to that fund. Since 2888 PAPUC has twice agreed to stay those procgedihile awaiting an
FCC ruling in its Unified Compensation docket. Thquest for a third stay is now pending beforeRA®UC and is opposed
by several parties. Parties have filed testimord/the hearing will begin in February 2009. It i known when the PAPUC
will rule. During the period of the stay, the curttf@®AUSF continues under the existing regulations.

Local government authorization

In lllinois, we historically have been requireddbtain franchises from each incorporated munidipah which our rural
telephone company operates. An lllinois state ttgitescribes the fees that a municipality may isegfor the privilege of
originating and terminating messages and placiaiijtfas within the municipality. lllinois Teleph@Operations also may be
required to obtain permits for street opening amustruction, or for operating franchises to instaltl expand fiber optic
facilities. These permits or other licenses or egrents typically require the payment of fees.

Similarly, Texas incumbent telephone companie®litslly had been required to obtain franchisemfeach incorporate
municipality in which they operate. Texas law nowypdes that incumbent telephone companies do eed mo obtain
franchises or other licenses to use municipal sigifitway for delivering services. Instead, paymeéatswunicipalities for rights-
of-way are administered through the PUCT and thincigeporting process by each telecommunicatiomgger. Incumbent
telephone companies still need to obtain permasfmunicipal authorities for street opening andstarction, but most burde
of obtaining municipal authorizations for accessights-of-way have been streamlined or removed.
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Our Texas rural telephone companies still operateyant to the terms of municipal franchise agredmiea some
territories served by Consolidated Communicatidrisast Bend Company. As the franchises expire, #reynot being renews

Like lllinois, Pennsylvania operates under a strtein which each municipality may impose varioess.
Broadband and Internet regulatory obligatior

To date, the FCC has treated ISPs as enhancedespreviders rather than common carriers. As dtidSIPs are exempt
from most federal and state regulation, includimg tequirement to pay access charges or contribule federal universal
service fund. Currently, there is only a small bolyaw and regulation that governs access toparmerce on, the Internet. As
the Internet becomes more significant, governmeall éevels may adopt new rules and regulationapply existing laws and
regulations to the Internet. The FCC is reviewing appropriate regulatory framework governing tigbed access to the
Internet through telephone and cable providers'roomications networks. We cannot predict the outcofrthese proceedings,
and they may affect our regulatory obligations #raform of competition for these services.

In 2005, the FCC adopted a comprehensive regulftanyework for facilities-based providers of wiradibroadband
Internet access service after determining that sectice is an information service. This decisitatps the federal regulatory
treatment of DSL service in parity with the federegjulatory treatment of cable modem service. Rigsitbased wireline
carriers are permitted to offer broadband Inteameess transmission arrangements for wireline taadl Internet access
services on a common carrier basis or a cmmmon carrier basis. Revenues from wireline braadtlnternet access service
not subject to assessment for the federal univeesaice fund.

VOIP can be used to carry voice communications averoadband Internet connection. The FCC has thitdsome
VOIP arrangements are not subject to regulatiaelaphone services. In particular, in 2004, the FGEd that certain VOIP
services are jurisdictionally interstate, which methat states cannot regulate those applicatiotieecservice providers. A
number of state regulators filed judicial challesng® that decision. The FCC has pending a procgetat will address whether
various regulatory requirements apply to VOIP pdevs, including the payment of access chargestandupport of programs
such as universal service and Enhanced-911. Exdarmsteof VOIP technology could reduce the accesstees received by
local exchange carriers like our ILEC’s and our CLEVe cannot predict whether or when VOIP provideay be required to
pay or be entitled to receive access charges ordufport, the extent to which users will substivi@IP calls for traditional
wireline communications, or the impact of the growft VOIP on our revenues.

Video service over broadband is lightly regulatgdhe FCC and states. Such regulation is limitecoimpany registratiol
broadcast signal call sign management, fee cablectiervice and billing requirements and adminiisteamatters such as Equal
Employment Opportunity reporting. IPTV rates aré megulated.

ltem 1A. Risk Factors
Risks Relating to Current Economic Conditions

The current volatility in economic conditions andi¢ financial markets may adversely affect our indog business, and
financial performance.

The second half of 2008 brought unprecedented glisns in the financial markets, including volatilin asset values and
constraints on the availability of credit. At thense time, the U.S. economy slowed significantlye Thpact, if any, that these
developments might have on our business is unoetiat current economic and financial market cood#t have accentuated
each of the risks discussed below and magnifieid plogential effect on us. Moreover, disruptionghe financial markets could
adversely affect our ability to obtain additioneddit or refinance existing loans.
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Adverse changes in the value of assets or obligatiassociated with our employee benefit plans caadidersely affect ou
results.

The current economic environment has had an advarszct on the fair value of pension assets andcailse an increase
in our future funding requirements. If unfavorabt®mnomic conditions persist, our funding requirets@ould further increase
and impair our liquidity.

Poor economic conditions in our service areas cogkilise us to lose subscriber connections and rewen

Substantially all of our customers and operatioedacated in lllinois, Pennsylvania, and Texast Qistomer base is
small and geographically concentrated, particultmyesidential customers. Because of our geogedphus, the successful
operation and growth of our business depends piliyn@ar economic conditions in the service areaswfrural telephone
companies. The economies of these areas, in tigmegpendent upon many factors, including:

*  demographic trend:

. in lllinois, the strength of the agricultural rkats and the light manufacturing and services itrihss continued
demand from universities and hospitals, and thelle’government spendin

* in Pennsylvania, the strength of sr- to mediun-sized businesses, health care, and education syeaaid

. in Texas, the strength of the manufacturing, thezdre, waste management, and retail industridsantinued
demand from schools and hospiti

Poor economic conditions and other factors beyandtontrol in these service areas could cause lsnden our local
access lines and revenues.

Risks Relating to Dividends
This section discusses reasons why we may be ut@apkey dividends at our historic levels, or at all
Our board of directors could, in its discretion, part from or change our dividend policy at any time

We are not required to pay dividends; our stockéiddio not have contractual or other rights toivectem. Our board «
directors may decide at any time, in its discretiordecrease the amount of dividends, changevokeethe dividend policy, or
discontinue paying dividends entirely. If we do pay dividends, for whatever reason, shares otoonmmon stock could
become less liquid and the market price of our comstock could decline.

Our ability to pay dividends, and our board of dices’ determination to maintain our dividend pwgliwill depend on
numerous factors, including:

« the state of our business, the environment irtkvhie operate, and the various risks we face, diegucompetition,
technological change, changes in our industry,ragdlatory and other risks summarized in this AhfReport on
Form 1(-K;

e changes in the factors, assumptions, and othesiderations made by our board of directors inewing and
adopting the dividend policy, as described ur‘Dividend Policy and Restrictio” in Item 5 of this Annual Repor

« our results of operations, financial conditionplidjty needs, and capital resourc

e our expected cash needs, including for intenedtaay future principal payments on indebtednemsital
expenditures, taxes, and pension and other postregnt contributions; ar

e potential sources of liquidity, including borrowingder our revolving credit facility or possiblesassales
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We might not have sufficient cash to maintain curredividend levels.

While our estimated cash available to pay divideiodshe year ended December 31, 2008, was suffiteepay dividends
in accordance with our dividend policy, if our fretestimated cash available were to fall beloweoqectations, or if our
assumptions as to estimated cash needs proveeatose may need to:

. reduce or eliminate dividend

- fund dividends by incurring additional debt (e textent we are permitted to do so under the aggees governing
our thenexisting debt), which would increase our leverafggt repayment obligations, and interest experesgeds:
our interest coverage, and reduce our capacitydur idebt for other purposes, including to fundifatdividend
payments

« amend the terms of our credit agreement, if endérs agree, to permit us to pay dividends or rotker payments
the agreement would otherwise restr

- fund dividends by issuing equity securities, vihdould be dilutive to our stockholders and negdyiaffect the price
of our common stock

- fund dividends from other sources, such as bgtasdes or working capital, which would leave uthwess cash
available for other purposes; a

« reduce other expected uses of cash, such as cagi@hditures

Over time, our capital and other cash needs withiiably be subject to uncertainties, which codfda whether we pay
dividends and at what level. In addition, if welsé@raise additional cash by incurring debt ouisg equity securities, we

negatively affect our results of operations, finahcondition, liquidity, and ability to maintaimd expand our business.
Because we are a holding company with no operatione can only pay dividends if our subsidiariesrisder funds to us

As a holding company we have no direct operationsaur principal assets are the equity interestbole in our
subsidiaries. However, our subsidiaries are leghififinct and have no obligation to transfer futalss. As a result, we are
dependent on our subsidiaries’ results of operatieristing and future debt agreements, goverrtaitg aw and regulatory
requirements, and ability to transfer funds toaisieet our obligations and to pay dividends.

Restrictions in our debt agreements or applicabtate legal and regulatory requirements may prevestfrom paying
dividends.

Our ability to pay dividends will be restricted byrrent and future agreements governing our deblyding our credit
agreement, as well as the corporate law and regylegquirements in several states.

Based on the results of operations from Octob@0@5, through December 31, 2008, we would have bbinto pay a
dividend of $78.7 million under the restricted payrmcovenants in our credit agreement. After gieffgct to the dividend of
$11.4 million, which was declared in November 2608 paid in February 2009, we could pay a dividei$67.3 million
under the credit facility.

Under Delaware law, our board of directors mayaghorize a dividend unless it is paid out of aunptus (calculated in
accordance with the Delaware General Corporatia, lar, if we do not have a surplus, it is paid ofibur net profits for the
fiscal year in which the dividend is declared amel preceding fiscal year. Statutes governing lifremd Pennsylvania
corporations impose similar limitations on the @pibf our subsidiaries that are incorporated iosth states to declare and pay
dividends.
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State regulators could require our rural telephmmapanies to make capital expenditures and comlid the amount of
cash those entities may lawfully transfer to ug.&@mple, the ICC imposed various conditions srafiproval of the
reorganization consummated in connection with @@.IThose conditions prohibit our subsidiary, ICTTGm paying dividenc
or making other cash transfers to us if ICTC failedneet or exceed agreed-upon benchmarks for erityapf seven service
quality metrics for the prior reporting year. Indigbn, ICTC must have access to the higher of $allon or its currently
approved capital expenditure budget for each caleyelar through a combination of available cashandunts available und
credit facilities. In addition, the lllinois Publlgtilities Act prohibits ICTC from paying dividendexcept out of earnings and
earned surplus, if ICTC'’s capital is or would beeoimpaired by the payment, or if payment of thed#imd would impair
ICTC's ability to render reasonable and adequatéc®eat reasonable rates, unless the ICC otheffivids that the public
interest requires payment of the dividend, sultfgeny conditions that regulator may impose. Th&@BE& has placed debt and
transaction cost recovery restrictions for a thyear period that could have an impact to the paymoedividends.

We expect that our cash income tax liability wildrease in 2009, which will reduce our after-taxstaavailable to pay
dividends.

Under the Internal Revenue Code, a corporation lwikes in excess of taxable income in a taxabieg@énown as a
“net operating loss,” or NOL) generally may caing foss back or forward and use it to offset taxa@ttome in a different
period. The amount of an NOL that may be used feebtaxable income in a particular year may bétdich such as when a
corporation has experienced an “ownership changdéuSection 382 of the Internal Revenue Code.

As of December 31, 2008, we have utilized all @mdefral net operating losses, net of valuation aloes, that we can
carry forward to future periods. Pursuant to Sec882, there were some limitations on the amouidssfes we could use
because of our IPO and prior ownership changeseSiar NOLs have been used or have expired, webeitequired to pay
additional cash income taxes. The increase in asin ncome tax liability will reduce our after-teash available to pay
dividends and may require us to reduce dividendrgas in the future.

Risks Relating to Our Common Stock

If we continue to pay dividends at the level curtBnanticipated under our dividend policy, our aliif to pursue growtt
opportunities may be limited.

We believe that our dividend policy could limit,thot preclude, our ability to grow. If we continpaying dividends at
the level currently anticipated, we may not re@isufficient amount of cash to fund a material egi@n of our business,
including any acquisitions or growth opportunitieguiring significant and unexpected capital exjitemes. For that reason, ¢
ability to pursue any material expansion of ouriless may depend on our ability to obtain thirdyp&nancing. We cannot
guarantee that such financing will be availableg@n reasonable terms or at all, particularhha¢urrent economic
environment.

Our organizational documents could limit or delayather party’s ability to acquire us and, therefgreould deprive our
investors of a possible takeover premium for thsirares.

A number of provisions in our amended and restegetificate of incorporation and bylaws will makalifficult for
another company to acquire us. Among other thitigse provisions:

« divide our board of directors into three classe@sch results in roughly one-third of our directdreing elected each
year;

. require the affirmative vote of holders of 75%mmore of the voting power of our outstanding comratotk to
approve any merger, consolidation, or sale of afubstantially all of our asse

. provide that directors may only be removed farseaand then only upon the affirmative vote of baddof two-thirds
or more of the voting power of our outstanding camnrstock;

. require the affirmative vote of holders of twadrtls or more of the voting power of our outstandiegnmon stock to

amend, alter, change, or repeal specified provésadrour amended and restated certificate of irm@tpon and
bylaws;
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. require stockholders to provide us with advanatice if they wish to nominate any candidates fecgon to our
board of directors or if they intend to propose amatters for consideration at an annual stockhsldezeting; ani

* authorize the issuance of so-called “blank chgukferred stock without stockholder approval upooh terms as the
board of directors may determir

We also are subject to laws that may have a sireffact. For example, federal, Illinois, and Pervaygia
telecommunications laws and regulations generatihipit a direct or indirect transfer of controlemnour business without prior
regulatory approval. Similarly, Section 203 of tbelaware General Corporation Law restricts ourigtib engage in a busine
combination with an “interested stockholder.” Thésgs and regulations make it difficult for anotltempany to acquire us
and therefore could limit the price that investaiight be willing to pay in the future for sharesonfr common stock. In
addition, the rights of our common stockholderd b subject to, and may be adversely affectedhgyrights of holders of any
class or series of preferred stock that we mayeigsthe future.

The concentration of the voting power of our commstock could limit a shareholdes’ ability to influence corporate matter

On December 31, 2008, Central Illinois Telephonkicivis controlled by our Chairman, Richard A. Lukim owned
approximately 19.1% of our common stock. In additiour executive management owned approximateB6 243 a result,
these investors will be able to significantly irdhce all matters requiring stockholder approvaluiding:

e the election of director:

e significant corporate transactions, such as a mengether sale of our company or its ass
e acquisitions that increase our indebtedness oreatinu-generating asset

e corporate and management polici

« amendments to our organizational documents;

e other matters submitted to our stockholders forreygd.

This concentrated share ownership limits the gbilftother shareholders to influence corporate enatiWe may take
actions that many stockholders do not view as beiakfwhich may adversely affect the market praé¢@ur common stock.

Risks Relating to Our Indebtedness and Our CapitaStructure

We have a substantial amount of debt outstandinglanay incur additional indebtedness in the futunghich could restrict
our ability to pay dividends and fund working capltand planned capital expenditures.

As of December 31, 2008, we had $880.3 millionotédltlong-term debt outstanding, excluding the entiportion, and
$70.1 million of stockholders’ equity. This amowftieverage could have important consequencesjding:

e we may be required to use a substantial porti@upcash flow from operations to make interesirpants on our
debt, which will reduce funds available for opayas, future business opportunities, and divide

« we may have limited flexibility to react to changesur business and our indust
« it may be more difficult for us to satisfy our othabligations;

« we may have a limited ability to borrow additibfiands or to sell assets to raise funds if neddeavorking capital,
capital expenditures, acquisitions, or other puesg

 we may become more vulnerable to general adws@eomic and industry conditions, including charnigaaterest
rates; an(

« we may be at a disadvantage compared to our caimnzetinat have less del
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We currently expect our cash interest expense &ppeoximately $58.0 million to $61.0 million in @9. Interest expense
is significantly higher than it has been in yeamsceding the acquisition of North Pittsburgh beeawes incurred additional
indebtedness to consummate the merger. We canamdmgee that we will generate sufficient revenoesetvice and repay our
debt and have adequate funds left over to achiesastain profitability in our operations, meet eorking capital and capital
expenditure needs, compete successfully in our etsrkr pay dividends to our stockholders.

If we cannot generate sufficient cash from our apens to meet our debt service and repayment atidigs, we may need
to reduce or delay capital expenditures, the dewvetnt of our business generally, and any acquisititi we became unable to
meet our debt service and repayment obligationsyaudd be in default under the terms of our crediteement, which would
allow our lenders to declare all outstanding boings to be due and payable. If the amounts outstgnahder our credit
facilities were to be accelerated, we cannot asgouehat our assets would be sufficient to repefpil the money owed.

As of December 31, 2008, our credit agreement whalge permitted us to incur approximately $74.7iomlof additional
debt. However, additional debt would exacerbateities described above.

Our credit agreement contains covenants that limianagement’s discretion in operating our businegsdacould prevent us
from capitalizing on opportunities and taking othexorporate actions

Among other things, our credit agreement limitsestricts our ability (and the ability of certaihaur subsidiaries) to:
« incur additional debt and issue preferred st

* make restricted payments, including paying dividead, redeeming, repurchasing, or retiring ourtehptock;
¢ make investments and prepay or redeem ¢

e enter into agreements restricting our subsidi’ ability to pay dividends, make loans, or transfeseds to us

e create liens

« sell or otherwise dispose of assets, includingtabptock of subsidiarie:

e engage in transactions with affiliate

e engage in sale and leaseback transact

« make capital expenditure

e engage in a business other than telecommunicatmmt

e consolidate or merg

In addition, our credit agreement requires us to@y with specified financial ratios, including i@d regarding total
leverage and interest coverage. Our ability to dgmyith these ratios may be affected by events hdyaur control. These
restrictions limit our ability to plan for or reaitt market conditions, meet capital needs, or etlser constrain our activities or
business plans. They also may adversely affecabllity to finance our operations, enter into asifions, or engage in other
business activities that would be in our interest.

A breach of any of the covenants contained in oedit agreement, or in any future credit agreemamour inability to
comply with the financial ratios could result in event of default, which would allow the lendersigxlare all borrowings
outstanding to be due and payable. If the amourttgtanding under our credit facilities were to beederated, we cannot ass
that our assets would be sufficient to repay ihthé money owed. In such a situation, the lendetdd foreclose on the assets
and capital stock pledged to them.
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We may not be able to refinance our existing detitécessary, or we may only be able to do so aighér interest expense.

Our credit facilities mature in full in 2014, anétwinay not be able to refinance those loans. Altemelg, any renewal or
refinancing may occur on less favorable terms.dfage unable to refinance or renew our creditifees| our failure to repay all
amounts due on the maturity date would cause ailiefader the credit agreement. If we refinancearadit facilities on terms
that are less favorable to us than the terms o€mristing debt, our interest expense may incre@sifisantly, which could
impair our ability to use our funds for other pusps, such as to pay dividends.

Risks Relating to Our Business
The telecommunications industry is constantly chang and competition is increasing.
The telecommunications industry has been, and \Wwevieawill continue to be, characterized by sevémahds, including:
* increased competition within established markeimfproviders that may offer competing or alterraservices

< the blurring of traditional dividing lines betweeand the bundling of, different services, sucloaal dial tone, long
distance, wireless, cable, and data and Intermeices; anc

e anincrease in mergers and strategic alliana@sattow one telecommunications provider to offreased services
or access to wider geographic mark

We expect competition to intensify as a result@frcompetitors and the development of new techiedogroducts, and
services. Consequently, we may need to spend &ignify more in capital expenditures than we cuiyeanticipate to keep
existing customers and to attract new ones.

Many of our voice and data competitors, such ategatoviders, Internet access providers, wirelesgise providers, and
long distance carriers, have brand recognitionfarahcial, technical, marketing, and other resositbat are significantly
greater than ours. In addition, due to consolithasind strategic alliances within the industry, \earwot predict the number of
competitors we will face at any given time. Incehsompetition could lead to price reductions, leissustomers, reduced
operating margins, or loss of market share.

The use of new technologies by other companies imayease our costs and cause us to lose customadsravenues.

The telecommunications industry is subject to rawid significant changes in technology, frequemt service
introductions, and evolving industry standards.fifedogical developments may make our servicesdesgetitive. We may
need to respond by making unbudgeted upgradegmifisant capital expenditures, or by developingditidnal services, which
could be expensive and time consuming. If we taiktispond successfully to technological changebsolescence, or fail to
make use of important new technologies, we cowdd lmustomers and revenues and be limited in olityaii attract new
customers. The successful development of new swehich is an element of our business stratsgyncertain and depend
on many factors, and we may not generate antidpa&eenues from such services, which would reducgmfitability. We
cannot predict the effect of these changes on aumpetitive position, costs, or profitability.

In addition, we expect that an increasing amoumtusfrevenues will come from providing DSL, digitalephone and
IPTV services. The market for high-speed Intermeeas is still developing, and we expect currempgtitors and new market
entrants to introduce competing services and teldpwnew technologies. Likewise, the ability toidel high-quality video
service over traditional telephone lines is a réeegivance that is still developing. The marketsii@se services could fail to
develop, grow more slowly than anticipated, or lmeesaturated with competitors with superior priaimgervices. In addition,
federal or state regulators may expand their cootrer DSL, digital telephone service and IPTV dffgs. We cannot predict
the outcome of these regulatory developments orthey may affect our obligations or the form of quetition for these
services. As a result, we could have higher casiscapital expenditures, lower revenues, and greatapetition than expect:
for DSL, digital telephone and IPTV services.
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We will incur additional integration and restructung costs in connection with the completed NorthttBburgh merger.

We have incurred and will continue to incur sigrafit integration and restructuring costs in corineatith the North
Pittsburgh merger. Although we expect to realifeieihcies from the integration of the businesses will offset incremental
transaction, integration, and restructuring coster dime, we cannot give any assurance that weacflieve this net benefit in
the near term.

Future acquisitions could be expensive and may betsuccessful.

Our acquisition strategy entails numerous risk® plarsuit of acquisition candidates could be experand may not be
successful. Our ability to complete future acqigsis will depend on whether we can identify suigastquisition candidates,
negotiate acceptable terms, and, if necessaryydmthose acquisitions. We may be competing iretkesleavors with other
parties, some of which may have greater financidl@her resources than we do. Whether any paatiadquisition is closed
successfully, the pursuit of an acquisition woukelly require considerable time and effort from rmagement, which would
detract from their ability to run our current bussis. We may face unexpected challenges in recedviggequired approvals
from the applicable regulator(s), which could dedayrevent an acquisition.

If we are successful in closing an acquisition,waild face several risks in integrating the acquivasiness. For examp
we may face unexpected difficulties entering magketwvhich we have little or no direct prior exparée or generating expec
revenue and cash flow from the acquired comparassets.

Any of these potential problems could have a maltedverse effect on our business and our abdigchieve sufficient
cash flow, provide adequate working capital, serand repay our indebtedness, and pay dividends.

A system failure could cause delays or interruptaf service, which could cause us to lose custasr

In the past, we have experienced short, localizediptions in our service due to factors such &decdamage, inclement
weather, and service failures by our thiraty service providers. To be successful, we needntinue to provide our custom
reliable service over our network. The principaks to our network and infrastructure include pbglsdamage to our central
offices or local access lines, power surges orgagasoftware defects, and other disruptions begonaontrol.

Disruptions may cause interruptions in serviceegluced capacity for customers, either of which@@aluse us to lose
customers and incur unexpected expenses.

The State of lllinois is a significant customer, dmour contracts with the state are favorable to thevernment.

In 2008 and 2007, 47.4% and 46.5%, respectivelpuofOther Operations revenues were derived fromralationships
with various agencies of the State of lllinois—prprlly the Department of Corrections through Pulervices. Our
relationship with the Department of Correctionsaastted for 91.6% of our Public Services revenuesdl2008, and 93.5%
during 2007. Our relationship (initially throughrquredecessor) with the Department of Correcti@sdontinued uninterrupt
since 1990, despite changes in government adnatigts. Nevertheless, obtaining contracts from gawent agencies is
challenging, and government contracts often inclugwisions that are favorable to the governmentays that are not
standard in private commercial transactions. Sjgadi§, each of our contracts with the State dhbis:

. permits the applicable state agency to termitreeontract without cause and without penalty usdene
circumstances

* has renewal provisions that require decisionsaiestgencies that are subject to political inflee
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* gives the State of lllinois the right to renew tuntract at its option but does not give us theesdght; anc
e could be cancelled if state funding becomes unalvkl

The failure of the State of Illinois to perform wrdhe existing agreements for any reason, orrtewehe agreements
when they expire, could have a material adversecetfn our revenues.

If we cannot obtain and maintain necessary rig-of-way for our network, our operations may be intepted and we would
likely face increased costs.

We need to obtain and maintain the necessary rigfhtgay for our network from governmental and qug@vernmental
entities and third parties, such as railroadsities, state highway authorities, local governmgatsl transit authorities. We m
not be successful in obtaining and maintainingehréghts-of-way or obtaining them on acceptablenterSome agreements
relating to rights-of-way may be short-term or reable at will, and we cannot be certain that wé eaghtinue to have access to
existing rights-of-way after the governing agreetaere terminated or expire. If any of our rightvedy agreements were
terminated or could not be renewed, we may be tbteeemove our network facilities from the affetereas or relocate or
abandon our networks. This would interrupt our afiens and force us to find alternative rights-afywvand make unexpected
capital expenditures. In addition, our failure taintain the necessary rightsawhy, franchises, easements, licenses, and pe
may result in an event of default under our cradieement.

We are dependent on third-party vendors for ouranfnation, billing, and network systems, as welll&TV service.

Sophisticated information and billing systems dtal¥o our ability to monitor and control costsll bustomers, process
orders, provide customer service, and achieve tpgrefficiencies. We currently rely on internakgms and third-party
vendors to provide all of our information and presiag systems, as well as applications that sugpontP services, including
IPTV. Some of our billing, customer service, anchagement information systems have been developadfby third parties
and may not perform as anticipated. In additiom,plans for developing and implementing our infotioa systems, billing
systems, network systems, and IPTV service relparily on the delivery of products and serviceshiyd-party vendors. Our
right to use these systems is dependent upon écagreements, some of which can be cancelled byetigor. If a vendor
cancels or refuses to renew one of these agreenoemtsperations may be impaired. If we need tdgdwiendors, the transitic
could be costly and affect operating efficiencies.

We depend on certain key management personnel, a@ed to continue to attract and retain highly qufidid management
and other personnel in the future.

Our success depends upon the talents and effokisyahanagement personnel, many of whom have b&brour
company and in our industry for decades. The l6ssp of these individuals, due to retirement drestvise, and the inability 1
attract and retain highly qualified technical andrmagement personnel in the future, could have amabtadverse effect on our
business, financial condition, and results of opens.

Regulatory Risks
The telecommunications industry is subject to exsere regulation that could change in a manner adserto us.
Our main sources of revenues are our local telephaosinesses in lllinois, Pennsylvania, and Tekas.laws and
regulations governing these businesses may banauine cases have been, challenged in the cands;ould be changed by
Congress, state legislatures, or regulators. litiaddfederal or state authorities could impose megulations that increase our

operating costs or capital requirements or thab#rerwise adverse to us. We cannot predict fulexelopments or changes to
the regulatory environment or the impact such dgwalkents or changes may have on us.
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Legislative or regulatory changes could reduce dimgnate the revenues our rural telephone companiegeive from
network access charges.

A significant portion of our ILECsfevenues come from network access charges paighigydistance and other carriers
originating or terminating calls in our serviceaseThe amount of network access charge revenateuhILECs receive is
based on interstate rates set by the FCC andtateamtes set by state regulators. The FCC haswefl, and continues to
reform, the federal network access charge system.

The FCC is currently considering sweeping potemti@nges in network access charges. DependingedrGle’s
decisions, our network access charge revenues deglthe materially. We do not know whether incessais other revenues,
such as subsidies and monthly line charges, vigicti’ely offset any reductions in access chargies. state regulators also n
make changes in our intrastate network access ehaingt could reduce our revenues. To the extgotatrs permit
competitive telephone companies to increase thmragions in the areas served by our rural teleploompanies, a portion of
long distance and other carriers’ network acceasggs will be paid to those competitors rather tioaour companies. Finally,
the compensation our companies receive from netaockss charges could be reduced due to compédtiionwireless
carriers.

Our Pennsylvania rural telephone company is anaaeeschedule rate of return company, which mearstérstate acce
revenues are based upon a statistical formula dpedlby NECA and approved by the FCC, rather thpem uts actual costs.
The formulas are reviewed by NECA and the FCC altyaad there could be changes to the formulafénftiture, which
could have an impact on our revenues.

On October 23, 2006, Verizon Pennsylvania, Inc. smeeral of its affiliates filed a formal complaimith the PAPUC
claiming that our Pennsylvania CLEC's intrastatécved access rates violate Pennsylvania law. Toigion that Verizon
cites in its complaint requires CLEC rates to béigher than the corresponding incumbent’s ratésssrthe CLEC can
demonstrate that higher access rates are “cofftgdst Verizon’s original claim requested a refuafi$1.3 million through
December 2006.

We believe that our CLEC'’s switched access rateparmissible, and we are vigorously opposingdbiaplaint. In an
Initial Decision dated December 5, 2007, the piagiddministrative law judge (“ALJ”) recommendedtlthe PAPUC sustain
Verizon’s complaint. As relief, the Administratiteaw Judge directed that our Pennsylvania CLEC redtscaccess rates down
to those of the underlying incumbent exchange eaamd provide a refund to Verizon in an amountétputhe access charges
collected in excess of the new rate since Nover8BeR004. We filed exceptions to the full PAPUC jethrequested that
Verizon and the Company attempt to resolve thecisstough mediation. The parties had until Noven#$r2008 to complete
the mediation, but through mutual agreement, itheen extended to March 2009.

In the event we are not successful in this procegdiur Pennsylvania CLEC’s operations could suffaterial harm—
both because of the refund sought by Verizon adulse of the prospective decreases in access es/egaulting from the
change in the CLEC's intrastate access rates, whathd apply to all carriers on a non-discrimingtbasis. Preliminarily
estimates suggest that the decrease in our areweiues would be approximately $1.2 million onadistasis (keeping access
minutes of use constant) if Verizon prevails cortgdle In addition, other interexchange carrierslddile similar claims for
refunds. As of December 31, 2008, we have rese®@e2imillion in other liabilities on the balanceegt relating to this
complaint.

Legislative or regulatory changes could reduce diménate the government subsidies we recei

The federal and state systems of subsidies, whinktitute a significant portion of our revenuesyrbha modified. During
the last two years, the FCC has modified the fddemaersal service fund system to change the ssuof support and the
method for determining the level of support that b distributed. The FCC is considering propo$aisadditional changes to
the federal universal service fund. These issugslmmaome the subject of legislative amendmentldgdrelecommunications
Act.

If our rural telephone companies do not continueetieive federal and state subsidies, or if thabsidies are reduced,
these subsidiaries likely will have lower revenaed may not be able to operate as profitably asliage in the past.
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Proposed access and universal service reforms ctalde an adverse impact on our revenu

The FCC was required to address the ISP remand byddovember 5, 2008, to the U.S. Court of Appelsonjunction
with the requirement, then-FCC Chairman Martin jpsgd to incorporate comprehensive intercarrier @sation and
universal service reform. The FCC circulated areoidternally and was scheduled to vote on it atNlevember 4, 2008, open
meeting, but the vote was cancelled. Any comprakiensform could have an adverse impact on our odtwaccess revenue.

The high costs of regulatory compliance could makenore difficult for us to enter new markets, maleequisitions, or
change our prices.

Regulatory compliance is a significant expenseaufoand diverts the time and effort of managemedtoam officers away
from running the business. In addition, becausalatigpns differ from state to state, it would bgersive to introduce services
in states where we do not currently operate anérstand the regulatory requirements. Compliancts @l information
barriers could make it difficult and time-consumtagenter new markets or to evaluate and competedie opportunities to
acquire local access lines or businesses as tisgy ar

Our intrastate services generally are subject tification, tariff filing, and other ongoing stategulatory requirements.
Challenges to our tariffs by regulators or thirdtigs, or delays in obtaining certifications andukatory approvals, could cause
us to incur substantial legal and administrativeemses. Moreover, successful challenges could selyeaffect the rates that
we are able to charge to customers, which woulctnegly affect our revenues. Some states also re@uivance regulatory
approval of mergers, acquisitions, transfers otranstock issuance, and certain types of delatrfiiing, which can increase «
costs and delay strategic transactions.

Legislative and regulatory changes in the telecommizations industry could raise our costs and redugetential revenues

Currently, there is only a small body of law andutation applicable to access to, or commercehmn|riternet. As the
Internet becomes more significant, governmentdl &\a&els may adopt new rules and regulations iod fiew ways to apply
existing laws and regulations. The FCC currentlseisewing the appropriate regulatory framework going broadband
consumer protections for high speed Internet adtesagh telephone and cable providers’ commurooatnetworks. The
outcome of these proceedings may affect our regylatbligations and costs and competition for ammwies, which could ha
a material adverse effect on our revenues.

We are subject to extensive laws and regulationiatiag to the protection of the environment, natureesources, and worker
health and safety.

Our operations and properties are subject to fédstede, and local laws and regulations relatmprotection of the
environment, natural resources, and worker healthsafety, including laws and regulations goverrang creating liability in
connection with the management, storage, and dispbsiazardous materials, asbestos, and petrofgaducts. We also are
subject to laws and regulations governing air eimissfrom our fleets of vehicles. As a result, wee several risks, including:

. Hazardous materials may have been released anpies we currently own or formerly owned (perhtsugh our
predecessors). Under certain environmental lawsouéd be held liable, without regard to fault, foe costs of
investigating and remediating any actual or thmeadecontamination at these properties, and foraroimation
associated with disposal by us or our predecesddrazardous materials at tr-party disposal site:

e We could incur substantial costs in the futureéfacquire businesses or properties subject tocemaental
requirements or affected by environmental contationaln particular, environmental laws regulatingtlands,
endangered species, and other land use and negsoailrce issues may increase costs associateéuiite business
or expansion opportunities or delay, alter, orriieie with such plan

*  The presence of contamination can adversely affiectalue of our properties and make it difficoltsell any affecte
property or to use it as collater

«  We could be held responsible for third-party @y damage claims, personal injury claims, or redttesource
damage claims relating to contamination found gtafrour current or past propertie

The cost of complying with environmental requireitsecould be significant. Similarly, the adoptionnaw environmental

laws or regulations or changes in existing laweegulations or their interpretations could resalsignificant compliance costs
or unanticipated environmental liabilities.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

Our headquarters and most of the administrativieaxfffor our Telephone Operations are located ittdda, lllinois.

We lease properties pursuant to agreements thakeaprarious times between 2009 and 2015. THeviiahg chart

summarizes the principal facilities owned or leasgds as of December 31, 2008.

Approximate

Location Primary Use Owned/Leaset Operating Segmen  Square Feel
Gibsonia, PA Office and Switching Owned Telephone & Othe 111,93:
Conroe, TX Regional Office Owned Telephone & Othe 51,90(
Mattoon, IL Order Fullfillment Leasec Other Operation 50,00(
Mattoon, IL Corporate Headquarte Leasec Telephone & Othe 49,10(
Mattoon, IL Operator Services and Operatic Owned Telephone & Othe 36,30(
Charleston, IL Communications Center and Off Leasec Telephone & Othe 34,00(
Mattoon, IL Operations and Distribution Cen Leasec Telephone & Othe 30,90(
Mattoon, IL Sales and Administration Offic Leasec Telephone & Othe 30,70(
Lufkin, TX Office and Switching Owned Telephone & Othe 28,70%
Conroe, TX Warehouse and Pla Owned Telephone & Othe 28,50(
Terre Haute, IN Communications Center and Off Leasec Telephone & Othe 25,45(
Lufkin, TX Communications Center and Off Owned Telephone & Othe 23,19(
Katy, TX Warehouse and Offic Owned Telephone & Othe 19,71¢
Butler, PA Office and Switching Owned Telephone & Othe 18,56¢
Taylorville, IL Office and Communications Cen Owned Telephone & Othe 15,90(
Taylorville, IL Operations and Distribution Cen Leasec Telephone & Othe 14,70(
Lufkin, TX Warehoust Owned Telephone & Othe 14,20(
Cranberry Twp, P/ Office and Switching Owned Telephone & Othe 13,11¢(
Charleston, IL Office and Communications Cen Owned Telephone & Othe 12,66
Litchfield, IL Office and Switching Owned Telephone & Othe 12,19(
Lufkin, TX Office and Data Centt¢ Owned Telephone & Othe 11,90(
Conroe, TX Office Owned Telephone & Othe 10,65(
Mattoon, IL Office Owned Telephone & Othe 10,10(

In addition to the facilities listed above, we oamhave the right to use approximately 713 add#igmmoperties consisting
of equipment at point of presence sites, centfaded, remote switching sites and buildings, tositrs, small offices, storage
sites and parking lots. Some of the facilitieselisabove also serve as central office locations.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

On April 15, 2008, Salsgiver Inc., a Pennsylvaréadd telecommunications company, and certain affiliates filed a
lawsuit against us and our subsidiaries, NortlsButtgh Telephone Company and North Pittsburgh 8ysstac., in the Court of
Common Pleas of Allegheny County, Pennsylvania. ddraplaint alleges that we have prevented Sals@iwer connecting
fiber optic cables to North Pittsburgh’s utilitylps, and seeks compensatory and punitive damage#ié¢ged lost profits,
damage to Salsgiver’s business reputation, and otists. The alleged aggregate losses are appretin®l 25 million, though
Salsgiver does not request a specific dollar amudémages. We believe that these claims are wiitmerit and that the
damages are completely unfounded. We intend taondedgainst these claims vigorously. In the thirdrtgr of 2008 we filed
preliminary objections and responses to Salsgivamaplaint, but the court ruled against our prefiany objections. On
November 3, 2008 we responded to an amended carhplad filed a counterclaim for trespass, allegheg Salsgiver attache
cables to our poles without an authorized agreeuethin an unsafe manner.

On October 23, 2006, Verizon Pennsylvania, Inc. seeral of its affiliates filed a formal complaimith the PAPUC
claiming that our Pennsylvania CLEC's intrastatécved access rates violate Pennsylvania law. Toigion that Verizon
cites in its complaint requires CLEC rates to béigher than the corresponding incumbent’s ratésssrthe CLEC can
demonstrate that higher access rates are “cogtgdst As of December 31, 2008, we have reserv@@ $nillion in other
liabilities on the balance sheet relating to tlimplaint. For further discussion, please see theudsion of Regulatory Risks
included in Part I—Item 1A—"Risk Factors.”

In addition, we currently are, and from time togimmay be, subject to claims arising in the ordir@yrse of business. V
are not currently subject to any claims that weéelvel could reasonably be expected to have a mbaeharse effect on our
results of operations or financial condition.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
No matters were submitted to a vote of securitgéd during the fourth quarter of 2008.

PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registran’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters, aisduer Purchases of Equity Securiti

Our common stock is quoted on the NASDAQ Globake8&eMarket under the symbol “CNSL.” As of March2®09, we
had 1,575 stockholders of record. Because manymbutstanding shares of common stock are held-diyelos and other
institutions on behalf of stockholders, we are Uaab estimate the total number of stockholdersesgnted by these record
holders. Dividends declared and the low and higlorted sales prices per share of our common stecked forth in the
following table for the periods indicated:

Dividends
Quarter Ended Low High Declared
March 31, 200’ $ 18.71 $ 23.0C $ 0.3¢
June 30, 200 $ 19.3( $ 23.71 $ 0.3¢
September 30, 20( $ 15.72 $ 23.11 $ 0.3¢
December 31, 20C $ 15.5( $ 21.4¢ $ 0.3¢
March 31, 200¢ $ 14.0C $ 19.1¢ $ 0.3¢
June 30, 200 $ 13.7( $ 15.71 $ 0.3¢
September 30, 20( $ 13.4¢ $ 15.7¢ $ 0.3¢
December 31, 20C $ 7.82 $ 14.6¢ $ 0.3¢
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Dividend Policy and Restrictions

Our board of directors has adopted a dividend pahiat reflects its judgment that our stockholdmes better served if we
distribute a substantial portion of the cash geedrhy our business in excess of our expectedoastis rather than retaining
the cash or using it for investments, acquisitimmgther purposes. We expect to continue to paytgry dividends at an
annual rate of $1.5495 per share during 2009, biytiband to the extent declared by our boardicéctors and subject to
various restrictions on our ability to do so. Dieftls on our common stock are not cumulative.

Please see Part | — Item 1A — “Risk Factors” of tld@port, which sets forth several factors thatadpoevent
stockholders from receiving dividends in the futurbe “Risk Factors” section also discusses howditidend policy could
inhibit future growth and acquisitions.

We expect to fund our expected cash needs, ingutiiridends, with cash flow from operations. Weoadspect to have
sufficient availability under our revolving creditcility for these purposes, but we do not intemtborrow to pay dividends.

Issuer Purchases of Common Stock During the QuarteEnded December 31, 2008

During the year ended December 31, 2008, we aatjaind cancelled 23,646 common shares surrendepayttaxes in
connection with employee vesting of restricted camrshares issued under our stock-based compensédionFurther detail
of the acquired shares follows:

Total number of Maximum number
shares purchased of shares that may
Total number of Average price paic as part of publically yet be purchasec
Purchase period shares purchasec per share announced plans under the plans
February 20, 200 53¢ $ 14.4¢ Not applicabl Not applicabl
October 13, 200 2,64¢ $ 11.5¢ Not applicabl Not applicabl
November 10, 200 1,622 $ 11.0¢ Not applicabl Not applicabl
December 5, 200 18,84: $ 10.61 Not applicabl Not applicabl

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected financial information set forth beloave been derived from the audited consolidatezhfiral statements of
the Company as of and for the years ended Dece®ih@008, 2007, 2006, 2005, and 2004. The follovgielgcted historical
financial information should be read in conjunctisith Iltem 7, “Managemend’ Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condi
and Results of Operations,” and Item 8 “Financtat@nents and Supplementary Data.”
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Consolidated Communications Holdings, Inc.
Year Ended December 31
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
(dollars in millions except per share amounts

Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:

Telephone operations revent $ 378.( $ 286.¢ $ 280.¢ $ 282.2 $ 230.
Other operations revenu 40.4 42.4 40.4 39.1 39.2
Total operating revenut 418. 329.2 320.¢ 321. 269.¢
Cost of services and products (exclusive of depteci
and amortization shown separately bel 143.t 107.: 98.1 101.1 80.¢€
Selling, general and administrati 108.¢ 89.¢ 94.7 98.¢ 87.¢
Intangible assets impairme 6.1 — 11.: — 11.€
Depreciation and amortizatic 91.7 65.7 67.4 67.4 54.t
Income from operatior 68.2 66.€ 49.2 54.1 35.C
Interest expense, net ( (66.9) (46.5) (42.9 (53.9) (39.6€)
Other, net (2 9.9 (4.0 7.3 5.7 3.7
Income (loss) before income taxes and extraordinary
item 11.€ 16.1 13.7 6.4 0.9
Income tax expens (6.€) (4.7) (0.9 (10.9) (0.2
Income before extraordinary ite 5.3 11.4 13.z (4.5 (1.2
Extraordinary item, net of te 7.2 — — — —
Net income (loss 12.5 11.4 13.5 (4.5) (1.7
Dividends on redeemable preferred shi — — — (10.2) (15.0
Net income (loss) applicable to common shi $ 12t $ 114 $ 13: $ 149 $ (160
Net income (loss) per common she
Basic:
Income (loss) before extraordinary ite $ 0.1¢ $ 044 $ 0.4¢ $ (08) $ (1.79
Extraordinary iter 0.2F — — — —
Net income (loss $ 04: $ 044 $ 0.4¢ $ (08 $ (179
Diluted:
Income (loss) before extraordinary ite $ 0.1¢ $ 044 $ 0.4¢ $ (08) $ (1.79
Extraordinary iter 0.24 — — — —
Net income (loss $ 04c $ 044 $ 0.4¢ $ 08) $ (179
Consolidated Cash Flow Data:
Cash flows from operating activiti $ 924 $ 821 $ 84.€ $ 79.2 $ 79.¢
Cash flows used in investing activiti (48.0) (305.9) (26.7) (31.7) (554.)
Cash flows from (used in) financing activiti (63.9) 230.¢ (62.7) (68.9) 516.:
Capital expenditure 48.C 33.t 33.4 31.1 30.C
Dividends declared per common sh $ 1.5t $ 1.5t $ 1.5E $ 0.8C $ —
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 15F $ 34: $ 26.7 $ 314 $ 521
Total current asse 78.€ 99.€ 74.2 79.C 98.¢
Net plant, property and equipment 400.: 411.¢ 314.¢ 335.1 360.¢
Total asset 1,241.¢ 1,304.¢ 889.¢ 946.( 1,006.:
Total lon¢-term debt (including current portion) (4) ( 881.c 892.¢ 594.( 555.( 629.4
Redeemable preferred sha — — — — 205.t
Stockholders’ equity/members’ deficit/parent comype
investmen 70.1 155.¢ 115.C 199.2 (18.¢)

Other Financial Data (unaudited):
Consolidated EBITDA (6 $ 189. $ 143 $ 139.¢ $ 136.¢ $ 115:¢
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Consolidated Communications Holdings, Inc.
Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
(unaudited)
Other Data (as of end of period) (7)
Local access lines in servic
Residentia 162,06 183,07( 155,35« 162,23: 168,77¢
Business 102,25t 103,11¢ 78,33t 79,79: 86,43(
Total local access line 264,32: 286,18¢ 233,68¢ 242,02 255,20¢
CLEC access line equivaler 74,68’ 70,06: — — —
Digital telephone subscribe 6,51( 2,49¢ — — —
IPTV subscriber: 16,66¢ 12,24: 6,95¢ 2,14¢ 101
ILEC DSL subscriber 91,81" 81,331 52,73: 39,19: 27,44¢
Total connection 454,00: 452,32: 293,37! 283,36: 282,75:

1)
(2)
(3)

(4)

()

(6)

Interest expense includes amortization oédefl financing costs totaling $1.4 million for tywar ended December 31,
2008, $3.2 million for 2007, $3.3 million for 20085.5 million for 2005, and $6.4 million for 20C

We recognized $0.3 million and $2.8 milliohnet proceeds in other income in 2007 and 20Gfeetively, because we
received ke-man life insurance proceeds relating to the passiifigrmer TXUCV employees

Property, plant and equipment are recordesit The cost of additions, replacements, andmi@jprovements is
capitalized, while repairs and maintenance areggthto expenses. When property, plant and equiparenttired from
our regulated subsidiaries, the original cost,afiealvage, is charged against accumulated depim@giavith no gain or
loss recognized in accordance with composite glidepemaining methodology used for regulated thiage plant asset

In connection with the TXUCV acquisition orp@l 14, 2004, we issued $200.0 million in aggregatincipal amount of
senior notes and entered into credit facilitiescdnnection with the IPO and related transactiamsretired $70.0 million
of senior notes and amended and restated our ¢aedities. In connection with the acquisitiondérth Pittsburgh on
December 31, 2007, we incurred $296.0 million nesntdebt, net of payoffs of existing debt. All rémiag senior notes
were retired on April 1, 200!

In July 2006, we repurchased and retired @pprately 3.8 million shares of our common stockdpproximately
$56.7 million, or $15.00 per share. We financed thinsaction using approximately $17.7 milliorcagh on hand and
$39.0 million of additional ter-loan borrowings

We present Consolidated EBITDA for three ozes we believe it is a useful indicator of ourtdiigcal debt capacity and
our ability to service debt and pay dividends;ridypdes a measure of consistency in our finaneipbrting; and covenants
in our credit facilities contain ratios based om€alidated EBITDA

Consolidated EBITDA is defined in our current ctddcility as:

Consolidated Net Income (also defined in our criditlity),
(a) plus the following, to the extent deducted in arrivingCamnsolidated Net Income:

(i) interest expense, amortization, or write-offdefbt discount and non-cash expense incurred inemion with
equity compensation plans;

(i) provision for income taxes;
(i) depreciation and amortization;

(iv) non-cash charges for asset impairment; altgé® expenses, and other extraordinary, non-tiegyand unusual
integration costs or losses related to the acdmisaf North Pittsburgh, including all severancgmpants in
connection with the acquisition, so long as sucdtxor losses are incurred prior to December 30928nd do not
exceed $12.0 million in the aggregate;

(v) all non-recurring transaction fees, charges, @her amounts related to the acquisition of N&ittsburgh
(excluding all amounts otherwise included in aceoke with U.S. generally accepted accounting polesi
(“GAAP") in determining Consolidated EBITDA), sorig as such fees, charges, and other amounts doxoedd
$18 million in the aggregate;
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(7)

(b) minus (in the case of gains) ptus (in the case of losses) gain or loss on sale @&tsiss

(c) minus (in the case of gains) ptus (in the case of losses) non-cash income or chag@sng to foreign currency gains
or losses;

(d) plus (in the case of losses) oninus (in the case of income) non-cash minority intenesbme or loss;

(e) plus (in the case of items deducted in arriving at Cidated Net Income) aminus (in the case of items added in
arriving at Consolidated Net Income) non-cash chsurgsulting from changes in accounting principles;

(f) plusextraordinary losses amdinus extraordinary gains as defined by GAAP;

(9) plus (in the case of any period ending on December 3Q7 2and any period ending during the seven immelgtia
succeeding fiscal quarters of the Company, to xhend not otherwise included in Consolidated EBIT)xAst savings to
be realized by the Company and its subsidiarie®imection with the acquisition of North Pittsbutphat are attributable
to the integration of the Company’s operations lmsinesses in lllinois and Texas with the acquirednsylvania
operations, which cost savings are deemed to banttoeints set forth on a schedule to the creditesgeat for each such
fiscal quarter; and

(h) minusinterest income.

Beginning with 2007, Other data includes asdies, CLEC access line equivalents, and DSkgiliers for our North
Pittsburgh operations, which were acquired on Déxear81, 2007

If our Consolidated EBITDA were to decline belowte levels, there may be violations of covenamtsur credit

facilities that are based on this measure, inclydior total net leverage and interest coveragesaivenants. The
consequences could include a default or mandateyayment or a prohibition on dividends.

We believe that net cash provided by operating/iiets is the most directly comparable financialasgre to Consolidated

EBITDA under GAAP. Consolidated EBITDA should n& bonsidered in isolation or as a substitute foisotidated statement
of operations and cash flows data prepared in dec@e with GAAP. Consolidated EBITDA is not a coatplmeasure of
profitability because it does not include costs erpenses identified above. Nor is ConsolidatedTE a complete net cash
flow measure because it does not include reducfmmsash payments for an entity’s obligation to/ge its debt, fund its
working capital, make capital expenditures, makgugsitions, or pay its income taxes and dividends.
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The following table sets forth a reconciliation@dish Provided by Operating Activities to ConsokdbEBITDA:

CCI Holdings
Year Ended December 31,
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
(dollars in millions)
(unaudited)

EBITDA:
Net cash provided by operati

activities $ 92.4 $ 82.1 $ 84.€ $ 79.2 $ 79.€
Adjustments

Compensation from restricted sh

plan 1.9 (4.0) (2.5) (8.6 —

Other adjustments, net ( 3.8 (9.5 (2.0 (18.0 (22.0)
Changes in operating assets and

liabilities 9.¢ 8.5 0.€ 10.Z (4.4
Interest expense, n 66.% 46.5 42.€ 53.4 39.€
Income taxe: 6.€ 4.7 0.4 10.€ 0.2
EBITDA (b) 177.1 128.3 124.( 127.2 93.2
Adjustments to EBITDA (c)

Intergration, restructuring and

Sarbane-Oxley (d) 4.8 1.2 3.7 7.4 7.0

Professional service fees | — — — 2.6 4.1

Other, net (f) (29.9) (6.€) (7. (3.0 3.7

Investment distributions (¢ 17.¢ 6.€ 5.5 1.€ 3.6

Pension curtailment gain ( — — — (7.9 —

Loss on extinghishment of debt 9.2 10.2 — — —

Intangible assets impairment | 6.1 — 11.2 — 11.€

Extraordinary item (j (7.2 — — — —

Non-cash compensation ( 1.6 4.C 2.5 8.€ —
Consolidated EBITDA $ 189.¢ $ 143.¢ $ 139.¢ $ 136.¢ $ 115.¢
(@) Other adjustments, net includes $6.1 millishl.2 million and $11.6 million of intangible asgapairment charges for

(b)
(©
(d)

(€)

years ended December 31, 2008, December 31, 200&)@cember 31, 2004, respectively. During our ahimpairmen
review for 2008, we determined that the projectedre cash flows of the telemarketing business dook be sufficient t
support the carrying value of the goodwill. In &dufi, based on a decline in estimated future clastsfin the
telemarketing and operator services business, @6 annual impairment review determined that tHaevaf the custome
lists associated with these businesses was imp&nad2004 impairment testing determined that thedgvill of our
operator services business and the tradenames télemarketing and mobile services businesses ingraired. Non-
cash impairment charges are excluded in arrivirgaatsolidated EBITDA under our credit facili

EBITDA is defined as net earnings (loss) befiaterest expense, income taxes, depreciati@haarortization on an
unadjusted basi:

These adjustments reflect those requireceomited by the lenders under the credit facilityplace at the end of each of
the years included in the periods preser

In connection with the TXUCV acquisition, weurred certain expenses associated with integyatnd restructuring the
businesses. These expenses include severanceyempéocation expenses; Sarbanes-Oxley start-sig;@nd costs to

integrate our technology, administrative and custoservice functions, and billing systems. In cario@ with the North

Pittsburgh acquisition we incurred similar expensih the exception of Sarbar-Oxley star-up costs

Represents the aggregate professional sédaésgoaid to certain large equity investors ptaoour initial public offering.
Upon closing of the initial public offering, theservice agreements terminat
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() Other, net includes the equity earnings froun investments, dividend income, and certain othiscellaneous non-
operating items. Key man life insurance proceedi0o3 million and $2.8 million received in 2007 &2@D5, respectively,
are not deducted to arrive at Consolidated EBIT

(g) For purposes of calculating Consolidated EBITDA,imeude all cash dividends and other cash distidig received frol
our investments

(h) Represents a $7.9 million curtailment gaisoasted with the amendment of our Texas pensiam. flhe gain was
recorded in general and administrative expenseseier, because the gain is non-cash, it is excliried Consolidated
EBITDA.

() Represents the redemption premium and wit@founamortized debt issuance costs in conneatiith the redemption
and retirement of our senior notes during 2008taadvrite off of debt issuance costs in connectiith retiring the
obligations under our former credit facility andenmng into a new credit facility contemporaneousith the North
Pittsburgh acquisitior

() Upon making the election to discontinue accountargcertain regulated property under Statementimdfcial Accountin
Standards No. 71, “Accounting for the Effects oft@m Types of Regulation.” Accordingly, we recopgd an
extraordinary non-cash gain in connection with adoption of SFAS No. 101 “Regulated Enterprises €ed\nting for
the Discontinuance of Application of FASB Statemint 71.” See the financial statements and foomfde additional
information.

(k) Represents compensation expenses in connegiib our Restricted Share Plan. Because of timircash nature, these
expenses are excluded from Consolidated EBIT

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations

This Management's Discussion and Analysis of Fir@rigondition and Results of Operations (“MD&AYf Consolidatec
Communications Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiashsuld be read in conjunction with our historicaldncial statements and
related notes contained elsewhere in this Report.

Overview

We are an established rural local exchange comiteatyprovides communications services to resideatid business
customers in lllinois, Texas, and Pennsylvania. @ain sources of revenues are our local telephasmésses, which offer an
array of services, including local dial tone; didjitelephone service, custom calling features;gpeiline services; long distance;
dial-up Internet access; high-speed Internet acedssh we refer to as Digital Subscriber Line d8ID inside wiring service
and maintenance; carrier access; billing and ciddieservices; telephone directory publishing; vesalle transport services o
fiber optic network in Texas; and Internet Protadigjital video service, which we refer to as IPTWe also operate a number
complementary businesses that offer telephonecss¥d county jails and state prisons, operateiicss, equipment sales,
telemarketing, and order fulfillment services.

Share repurchasi

On July 28, 2006, we completed the repurchase/@23379, or 12.7%, of the outstanding shares froowiBence Equity
for $56.7 million, or $15.00 per share. The repasghwas funded with $17.7 million of cash on hamdi $39.0 million of new
borrowings under our previous credit facility. Téfect of the transaction was an annual increa$3df million of cash flow
due to:

* areduction in our annual dividend obligation of@anillion;

e anincrease in our after tax net cash intere$2d¥ million due to the increased borrowings imedrand increase in
the interest rate on our credit facility of 25 Isgsdints and a decrease in interest income reguhim reduced cash
on hand
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Acquisition of North Pittsburgh and new credit fadty

On December 31, 2007, the Company completed itsisitiqn of North Pittsburgh Systems, Inc (“Northt§burgh”). At
the effective time of the merger, 80% of the shafdsorth Pittsburgh common stock converted in®tight to receive $25.00
in cash, without interest, per share, for an appnate total of $300.1 million. Each of the remamshares of North Pittsburgh
common stock converted into the right to receid®81947 shares of common stock of the Companyn aparoximate total
3.32 million shares. The total purchase price udirlg fees, was $347.0 million, net of cash acalire

In connection with the acquisition, the Companyotigh its wholly-owned subsidiaries, entered intwedit agreement
with various financial institutions. The credit agment provides for aggregate borrowings of $960l@n, consisting of a
$760.0 million term loan facility, a $50.0 milliaevolving credit facility (which remains fully aMable as of December 31,
2008), and a $140.0 million delayed draw term Itzanility. The Company borrowed $120.0 million undiee delayed draw
term loan facility on April 1, 2008, to redeem thgtstanding senior notes. The commitment for theaiaing $20 million unde
the delayed draw facility expired. Other borrowingegler the credit facility were used to retire @@mpany’s previous
$464.0 million credit facility and to fund the adsjtion of North Pittsburgh.

Redemption of senior note

On April 1, 2008, the Company redeemed all of thestanding 9.75% senior notes using $120.0 miliomowed under
the delayed draw term loan and cash on hand. Takamount of the redemption was $136.3 milliorjuding a redemption
premium of 4.875%, or $6.3 million. We recognize®%2 million loss on the redemption of the noes a result of the
transaction, we expect to realize $4.0 million etthn in annualized cash interest expense.

Discontinuance of the application of SFAS No. 7*Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Ratation”

Historically, our lllinois and Texas ILEC operat®followed the accounting for regulated enterprimescribed by
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards Nd'‘Attounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Réafion” (“SFAS
No. 771"). This accounting recognizes the economic effeftste regulation by recording costs and a returimvestment as
such amounts are recovered through rates authdsizegjulatory authorities. Recent changes to perations, however, have
impacted the dynamics of the Company’s businesga@amment and caused us to evaluate the applicabiliSFAS No. 71. In
the last half of 2008, we experienced a signifiaatease in competition in our lllinois and Texaarkets as, primarily, our
traditional cable competitors started offering wogervices. Also, effective July 1, 2008, we madelaction to transition from
rate of return to price cap regulation at the steee level for our lllinois and Texas operatiofise conversion to price caps
gives us greater pricing flexibility, especiallytime increasingly competitive special access segamhin launching new
products. Additionally, in response to customer dadhwe have also launched our own VOIP productioffeas an alternative
to our traditional wireline services. While ther@stbeen no material changes in our bundling styagad or in our end-user
pricing, our pricing structure is transitioning findbeing based on the recovery of costs to a prisingcture based on market
conditions.

Based on the factors impacting our operations, &erchined in the fourth quarter 2008, that the iapfibn of SFAS
No. 71 for reporting our financial results is noder appropriate. SFAS No. 1(“Regulated Enterprises — Accounting for the
Discontinuance of Application of FASB Statement Mb,” specifies the accounting required when aerpnise ceases to meet
the criteria for application of SFAS No. 71. SFAB.NO01 requires the elimination of the effects mf actions of regulators th
have been recognized as assets and liabilitiescordance with SFAS No. 71 but would not have bieengnized as assets and
liabilities by nonregulated enterprises. Depreoratiates of certain assets established by regulatahorities for the
Company'’s telephone operations subject to SFAS/Nldave historically included a systematic chamgedémoval costs in
excess of the related estimated salvage valuease thssets, resulting in a net over depreciatidéhose assets over their useful
lives. Costs of removal were then appropriatelyliagmgainst this reserve. Upon discontinuanceFrSNo. 71, we reversed
the impact of recognizing removal costs in excésherelated estimated salvage value, which redutt recording a non-cash
extraordinary gain of $7.2 million, net of taxes$af.2 million.
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Factors affecting results of operations
Revenues

Telephone Operations and Other OperationsOur revenues are derived primarily from the salecfe and data
communications services to residential and busioestomers in our rural telephone companies’ seraieas. Because we
operate primarily in rural service areas, we doamticipate significant growth in revenues in oetéphone Operations
segment, except through acquisitions such as fhédith Pittsburgh. However, we do expect relagvebnsistent cash flow
from year to year because of stable customer depfiamittd competition, and a generally supportiggulatory environment.

Local access lines and bundled service&n “access line” is the telephone line connectingpme or business to the
public switched telephone network. The number ofl@ccess lines in service directly affects thathly recurring revenue v
generate from end users, the amount of trafficuometwork, the access charges we receive fronr odreers, the federal and
state subsidies we receive, and most other reveine@ms. We had 264,323 local access lines inceeas of December 31,
2008, compared to 286,186 at the end of 2007. Vle2B8,689 local access lines in service at theod 2006, prior to our
acquisition of North Pittsburgh.

Many rural telephone companies have experiencedsadf local access lines due to challenging ecanoamditions and
increased competition from wireless providers, cetitipe local exchange carriers and, in some casdde television
operators. We have not been immune to these conditBoth Suddenlink and Comcast, cable compeiitofexas, as well as
NewWave Communications in lllinois, launched a cetimy voice product this year, which caused a sjpilaur line loss. Wi
estimate that cable companies are now offeringeve@vice to all of their addressable customensgring 85% of our entire
service territory.

We also lost local access lines because residentsabmers disconnected second telephone lines thigrsubstituted
DSL or cable modem service for dial-up Internetessg and wireless service for wired. Second lieesehsed from 10,685 as
of December 31, 2007, to 8,822 as of December@18.2The disconnection of second lines represeh&¥% of our residential
line loss in 2008, and 9.6% in 2007. In additiance we began to more aggressively promote outaligilephone service, we
estimate that approximately one-half of our digitdéphone subscriber additions are switching foora of our traditional
access lines. We expect to continue to experieragest erosion in access lines both due to marke¢$cand through our own
cannibalization.

We have mitigated the decline in local access lmigls increased average revenue per access lifiecbiging on the
following:

e aggressively promoting DSL service, including sgJIDSL as a stai-alone offering

e bundling value-adding services, such as DSL @V Rvith a combination of local service and custcatiing
features

e maintaining excellent customer service standanag
e keeping a strong local presence in the communiteserve

We have implemented a number of initiatives to gaw local access lines and retain existing linembking bundled
service packages more attractive (for example dolyrgy unlimited long distance) and by announcingcgd promotions, like
discounted second lines. We also market our “tgiydg” bundle, which includes local telephone sesyiDSL, and IPTV. As of
December 31, 2008, IPTV was available to over 122 }8&mes in our markets. Our IPTV subscriber baseginown from
12,241 as of December 31, 2007, to 16,666 as oémber 31, 2008. We launched IPTV in our Pennsyévamarkets in
April 2008.
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In addition to our access line and video initiasivere intend to continue to integrate best prastaoss our lllinois,
Texas, and Pennsylvania regions. We also contmiaok for ways to enhance current products anadhice new services to
ensure that we remain competitive and continuedetrour customers’ needs. These initiatives inchftring:

hosted digital telephone service in certain Tea@s Pennsylvania markets to meet the needs of-smahedium-
sized business customers that want robust funetihrout having to purchase a traditional key or PE0ne systen

Digital telephone service for residential custosn@hich is being offered to our Texas and lll;oustomers and will
expand to our Pennsylvania customers in 2009 othgrowth opportunity and as an alternative tarditional
phone line for customers who are considering acéwiit a cable competitc

DSL service—even to users who do not have ougsactine—which expands our customer base and sreate
additional revent-generating opportunitie

a DSL product with speeds up to 10 Mbps for thasstamers desiring greater Internet speed;

High definition video service and digital video oeders in all of our IPTV market

These efforts may mitigate the financial impacany access line loss we experience.

The number of DSL subscribers we serve grew sutialigrin 2008. We had 91,817 DSL lines in servaseof
December 31, 2008, compared to 81,337 as of DeaeBih@007, including 14,713 as a result of theugition of North
Pittsburgh, and 52,732 as of December 31, 2006e8tly over 95% of our rural telephone companiesal access lines are
DSL-capable.

We also utilize service bundles, which include comations of local service, custom calling featuigsd Internet access,
generate revenue and retain customers in our ilifieexas and Pennsylvania markets. Our servicdlbsrtotaled 42,054 at
December 31, 2008, compared to 45,971 at the eBA@f and 43,175 at the end of 2006.
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The following sets forth several key metrics ashef end of the periods presented. Only the infaonas of December &

2008 and 2007 include North Pittsburgh.

December 31

December 31

December 31

2008 2007 (1) 2006

Local access lines in servic

Residentia 162,06’ 183,07( 155,35¢

Business 102,25¢ 103,11¢ 78,33¢
Total local access line 264,32: 286,18t 233,68¢
Digital telephone subscribe 6,51( 2,49¢ —
IPTV subscriber: 16,66¢ 12,24: 6,95¢
ILEC DSL subscriber 91,817 81,33 52,73:
Broadband Connectior 114,99: 96,07 59,68¢
CLEC Access Line Equivalents ( 74,68 70,06 —
Total connection 454,00: 452,32 293,37!
Long distance lines (¢ 165,95: 166,59¢ 148,18:
Dial-up subscriber 3,957 5,57¢ 11,94:

(1) In connection with the acquisition of Northtsburgh, we acquired 36,411 residential access)i25,988 business access
lines, 14,713 DSL subscribers, 87 digital telephsulescribers, 70,063 CLEC access line equivalentsl8,223 long

distance lines

(2) CLEC access line equivalents represent a gwatibn of voice services and data circuits. THeuations represent a
conversion of data circuits to an access line b&sjaivalents are calculated by converting dateudis (basic rate
interface, primary rate interface, DSL, DS-1, D&H8l Ethernet) and SONET-based (optical) servic€&3@nd OCA8) ta

the equivalent of an access lil

(3) Reflects the inclusion of long distance seevprovided as part of our VOIP offering while axdihg CLEC long distance

subscribers

Expenses

Our primary operating expenses consist of cosenfises; selling, general and administrative expsnand depreciation

and amortization expenses.

Cost of services and productOur cost of services includes the following:

e operating expenses relating to plant costs, distuthose related to the network and general stigpsts, central

office switching and transmission costs, and cablé wire facilities

e general plant costs, such as testing, provisiomatyork, administration, power, and engineeringj

e the cost of transport and termination of londatise and private lines outside our rural teleprammepanies’ service

area.

We have agreements with various carriers to prokidg distance transport and termination servigés believe we will
meet all of our commitments in these agreementsndihtde able to procure services for periods after current agreements
expire. We do not expect any material adverse &ffieem any changes in any new service contract.

Selling, general and administrative expenset general, selling, general and administrativeemses include selling and
marketing expenses; expenses associated with cestre; billing and other operating support systesnd corporate

expenses, such as professional service fees anrdasbrstock compensation.
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Our Telephone Operations segment incurs sellingketiag, and customer care expenses from its cuatservice cente
and commissioned sales representatives. Our custEngce centers are the primary sales channetsu&iomers with one or
two phone lines, whereas commissioned sales rapets@s provide customized systems for largerrimss customers. In
addition, we use customer retail centers for varicemmunications needs, including new telephorteriet, and IPTV
purchases.

Each of our Other Operations businesses primasiys @n independent sales and marketing team camgpfiedd sales
account managers, management teams, and serviesegfatives to execute our sales and marketiategyy.

Our operating support and back office systems estdiedule, provision, and track customer ordest;gervices and
interface with trouble management; and operatenitorg, billing, collections, and customer care sasystems for the local
access lines in our operations. We have migratest key business processes of our lllinois and Tep&sations onto single
company-wide systems and platforms. We hope toamgprofitability by reducing individual companysts through
centralizing, standardizing, and sharing best prest We converted the North Pittsburgh accourdimdj payroll functions to
our existing systems, and have started to integnatey other functions. Our integration and restrioy expenses were
$4.8 million for the year ended December 31, 23182 million for 2007, and $2.9 million for 2006.

Depreciation and amortization expensedRrior to the discontinuance of the accounting piked by SFAS No. 71 on
December 31, 2008 as noted above, we recognizedalation expenses for our regulated telephone pising rates and lives
approved by the state regulators for regulatorgntipy purposes. Upon the discontinuance of SFAS™owe revised the
useful lives on a prospective basis to be simdax hon-regulated entity.

The provision for depreciation on nonregulated propand equipment is recorded using the straigbtfhethod based
upon the following useful lives:

Years
Buildings 15-35
Network and outside plant facilitie 5-30
Furniture, fixtures and equipme 5-17
Capital Lease 11

Amortization expenses are recognized primarilydior intangible assets considered to have finitéulifiges on a straight-
line basis. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goiticamd Other Intangible Assets”, goodwill and in¢dble assets that have
indefinite useful lives are not amortized but rathee tested annually for impairment. Because treafees have been
determined to have indefinite lives, they are mobeized. Customer relationships are amortized twair useful life. The net
carrying value of customer lists at December 308205 being amortized at a weighted average fifgoproximately 6.4 years.
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The following summarizes our revenues and operaxpgnses on a consolidated basis for the yeaesldbelcember 31,
2008, 2007, and 2006:

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006
% of Total % of Total % of Total
$ (millions)  Revenues $ (millions)  Revenues $ (millions)  Revenues

Revenues
Telephone Operatior

Local calling service $ 104.¢€ 25.(% $ 82.¢ 25.2% $ 85.1 26.6%

Network access servic 94.¢ 22.€ 70.z 21.c 68.1 21.2

Subsidies 55.2 13.2 46.C 14.C 47.€ 14.¢

Long distance service 24.C 5.7 14.C 4.2 15.2 4.7

Data and Internet servic 62.7 15.C 38.C 11.F 30.¢ 9.€

Other service 36.¢ 8.8 35.¢ 10.€ 33.t 10.5
Total Telephone Operatiol 378.( 90.: 286.¢ 87.1 280.4 87.4
Other Operation 40.4 9.7 42.4 12.¢ 40.4 12.€
Total operating revenut 418. 100.( 329.2 100.( 320.¢ 100.(
Expenses
Operating expenst

Telephone Operatior 213.( 50.¢ 153.¢ 46.€ 152.¢ 47.F

Other Operation 45.4 10.¢ 43.t 13.2 51.7 16.1

Depreciation and amortizatic 91.7 21.¢ 65.7 20.C 67.4 21.C
Total operating expens 350.1 83.7 262.¢ 79.¢ 271t 84.€
Income from operatior 68.2 16.2 66.¢€ 20.2 49.2 15.4
Interest expense, n (66.%) (15.¢) (46.5) (4.7 (42.9 (13.9
Other income (expense), r 9.¢ 2.4 (4.0 (1.2 7.3 2.2
Income tax expens (6.€) (1.6) (4.7) (1.4 (0.4 (0.7)
Income before extraordinary ite .3 1.3 11.4 3.t 13.2 4.1
Extraordinary item, net of te 7.2 1.7 — — — —
Net Income $ 12.5 3% $ 11.4 3% $ 13.2 4.1%
Segment:

In accordance with the reporting requirement of SB¥o. 131 “Disclosure about Segments of an Entse@nd Related
Information”, the Company has two reportable bustneegments: Telephone Operations and Other Qmesalihe results of
operations for North Pittsburgh are included in Tieéephone Operations segment for the periodsviatig the acquisition on
December 31, 2007. The results of operations désclibelow reflect our consolidated results.

Results of Operations
For the year ended December 31, 2008, compareddodmnber 31, 2007
Revenue

Our revenues increased by 27.1%, or $89.2 mili@$418.4 million in 2008, from $329.2 million i®A7. We explain
this change in the discussion and analysis below.

Telephone Operations Revenues

Local calling servicesrevenues increased by 26.3% or $21.8 million, @4$3 million in 2008 compared to $82.8 million
in 2007. The increase is primarily due to $27.9ianilof new local calling revenue as a result & #tquisition of North
Pittsburgh. Without the effect of North Pittsburdgzal calling revenue decreased by $5.7 milliamprily due to a decline in
local access lines, as discussed under “—Factdectig Results of Operations.”
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Network access servicegevenues increased by 34.8%, or $24.4 million 9.6 million in 2008 compared to
$70.2 million in 2007. The increase is primarilyedio $29.5 million of new network access revenua eesult of the acquisitic
of North Pittsburgh. Without the effect of NorthttBburgh, network access revenue decreased byn@iidn. In 2007 we
recognized $0.7 million of non-recurring revenuanirthe favorable settlement of an outstandingrigjliilaim. In 2008, the
Texas Infrastructure Fund and Local Number Poiitgtsilircharges for Texas were eliminated reducewgnues approximately
$1.4 million. In addition, subscriber line chargeenue decreased $1.1 million due to access Is® As a result of declining
minutes of use, our switched access revenues dectdy $3.4 million, which was partially offset &y%1.0 million increase in
special access revenue.

Subsidiesrevenues increased by 20.0%, or $9.2 million, #.3%nillion in 2008 compared to $46.0 million in®0 The
increase is primarily due to $7.3 million of nevdéeal and state subsidy revenue as a result afdtpeisition of North
Pittsburgh. Without the effect of North Pittsburghpsidy revenue increased by $1.9 million. In 20@8 received $1.4 million
in refunds of prior period payments; however in 208 made payments of $2.6 million for prior pesoBxclusive of the prior
period settlements, we received $28.6 million ihefial universal service fund (“USF”) support and $1million in Texas USF
support in 2008, compared to $29.6 million in fed&lSF support and $19.0 million in Texas USF supjpo2007.

Long distance servicesevenues increased by 71.4%, or $10.0 million,24.& million in 2008 compared to $14.0 million
in 2007. The increase is primarily due to $11.6ionilof new long distance revenue as a result efatquisition of North
Pittsburgh. Without the effect of North Pittsburging distance revenue decreased by $1.6 milliemr@sult of a decline in
billable minutes.

Data and Internet revenues increased by 65.0%, or $24.7 million,62.% million in 2008 compared to $38.0 million in
2007. The increase is primarily due to $16.7 millaf new data and Internet revenue as a resuftsoatquisition of North
Pittsburgh. Without the effect of North Pittsburglata and Internet revenues increased by $8.0Comitlue to an increase in
DSL and IPTV subscribers. These increases wer@fhaxffset by erosion of our dial-up Internet bas

Other servicesrevenues increased by 3.1%, or $1.1 million, to.$3Gillion in 2008 compared to $35.8 million in 200
The acquisition of North Pittsburgh resulted inZ@illion of new other services revenue. Withow #ifect of North
Pittsburgh, other service revenues decreased lyrillion due to the recognition of $0.1 million wvenue from the
settlement of a billing dispute in 2007 and a daseeof $1.0 million in inside wiring revenue in 300

Other Operations Revenues

Other Operations revenues decreased by 4.7%, @mdiftion, to $40.4 million in 2008 compared to $42nillion in 2007,
In 2007 our telemarketing business expanded itssohlme capacity. As a result of the expansiomeneie for 2008 increased
by $0.9 million compared to 2007. Partially offsmgtthe increase was a decline of $1.1 millionum operator services busini
as a result of decreased call attempts, a dedi$8.@ million in business system sales, and lowgenues from our prison
systems calling and mobile and paging services.

Operating Expenses

Our operating expenses increased by 33.3%, or $8illibn, to $350.1 million in 2008 compared to $26 million in
2007. We explain this change in the discussionaaradysis below.

Telephone Operations Operating Expenses

Operating expenses for Telephone Operations inedelays 38.9%, or $59.6 million, to $213.0 million2008 compared to
$153.4 million in 2007. The increase is primarilyecto an additional $57.0 million of telephone @pi@ns operating expenses
as a result of the acquisition of North Pittsburgdmwell as $1.5 million of costs incurred durihg tecovery from Hurricane
Ike, which caused severe power outages in bothsTamd Pennsylvania in 2008.
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Other Operations Operating Expenses

Operating expenses for Other Operations increagdd48o, or $1.9 million, to $45.4 million in 2008mpared to
$43.5 million in 2007. Upon completion of our anhigsting, we recognized an impairment charge of $@illion due to a
decline in the future cash flows that are projet¢tebde generated by the telemarketing and fulfilti@usiness. Cost of services
declined by $1.8 million directly related to thecdease in revenues for the various Other Operabiasmesses. In addition, our
operator services business experienced a $1.®mdicrease on operating expense as a resultaoy sald benefit reductions.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization expenses increas&9t8%6, or $26.0 million, to $91.7 million in 20@8mpared to
$65.7 million in 2007. In connection with the acgjtion of North Pittsburgh, we acquired propertiant and equipment valued
at $116.3 million, which caused an increase in @eption expense. In addition, we allocated $49l0om of the purchase pri
to customer lists, which are being amortized oar years.

Non-Operating Income (Expense)

Interest Expense, Net

Interest expense, net of interest income, increbget?.6%, or $19.8 million, to $66.3 million in @® compared to
$46.5 million in 2007. The increase is primarilyede an increase of $296.0 million in our long-tetebt as a result of the
acquisition of North Pittsburgh. The increase ireiast expense resulting from the acquisition vaasiglly offset by the
redemption of our senior notes. On April 1, 2008,redeemed $130.0 million of senior notes payii§%. interest by using
cash on hand and borrowing $120.0 million at a oapproximately 7.0%. In addition, during therthguarter of 2008, we
entered into $790.0 million of basis swaps, asriesd in Note 14 to the financial statements. Téwognition of ineffectivene:
on our interest rate swaps created a non-cashelof®p.4 million to interest expense.

Other Income (Expense)

Other income, net increased $13.9 million, to $8iion in 2008 compared to ($4.0) million in 200¥13.1 million of
income was recognized from three additional cellpktnerships acquired as part of the acquisiifddorth Pittsburgh, as well
as additional earnings from our previously heldelgss partnership investments in Texas. In cormegtith the 2008
redemption of our senior notes, we recognized sxdosextinguishment of debt of $9.2 million, whiakluded a redemption
premium of $6.3 million and the write off of unartied deferred financing costs of $2.9 million. Bwgr2007, we recognizec
loss on extinguishment of debt of $10.3 millioratet to the debt refinancing from the acquisitibNorth Pittsburgh.

Extraordinary Item

In the fourth quarter of 2008, we determined it wadonger appropriate to continue the applicaib8FAS No. 71 for
certain wholly-owned subsidiaries — lllinois Corisated Telephone Company, Consolidated Communitatid Texas
Company, and Consolidated Communications of FondBeompany.

The decision to discontinue the application of SF¥& 71 was based on recent changes to our opesatibich have
impacted the dynamics of the Companpusiness environment. In the last half of 2008 ewperienced a significant increas:
competition in our Illinois and Texas markets agngarily, our traditional cable competitors startatering voice services.
Also, effective July 1, 2008, we made an electmiransition from rate of return to price cap regian at the interstate level 1
our lllinois and Texas operations. The conversmprice caps gives us greater pricing flexibilggpecially in the increasingly
competitive special access segment and in launetemgproducts. Additionally, in response to custodemand we have also
launched our own VOIP product offering as an aliéwue to our traditional wireline services. Whiteete has been no material
changes in our bundling strategy and or in end-pgeing, our pricing structure is transitioningifn being based on the
recovery of costs to a pricing structure based arket conditions. As required by the provision&§6AS No. 101 “Regulated
Enterprises — Accounting for the DiscontinuatiorAgiplication of FASB No. 71", the Company recordedon-cash
extraordinary gain of $7.2 million, net of tax &f.8 million from the write off of asset removal tofm excess of the salvage
value of regulatory fixed assets which had previpbeen charged to depreciation over the assegsublife.
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Income Taxes

Provision for income taxes increased by $1.9 nmillio $6.6 million in 2008 compared to $4.7 million2007. The
effective tax rate was 55.8% for 2008 and 29.092€%7. The effective rate for 2008 including thé&raardinary gain and
corresponding tax was 46.3%.

Taxes were higher during 2008 due to state inc@xestowed in certain states where we were reqtorél® on a separa
legal entity basis and the rate impact of the extimary gain presented net of tax. In additionnggidated Communications
Holdings, Inc. (CCHI) completed a tax free legdiityrreorganization project resulting in change®tm state reporting
structure. This change resulted in a net decreaf®iCompany'’s state deferred income tax rates gtange in the state
deferred income tax rate resulted in approximabél@ million tax benefit in 2008 due to applyintpaver effective deferred
income tax rate to previously recorded deferreditdilities. Also, during 2008 the state of Texasnpleted an audit of two
Texas subsidiaries resulting in additional tax exgeeof $.8 million.

The effective tax rate during 2007 was lower tHandtatutory rate due to a 2007 amendment to Tieaxdegislation first
enacted in 2006. For us, the most significant aspiegthis amendment was the revision to the temyareedit on taxable marg
to convert state loss carryforwards to a statectasit carryforward. This new legislation effecliveeduced our net deferred 1
liabilities and corresponding tax provision by appmately $1.7 million. Under lllinois tax law, Nibr Pittsburgh and its
directly owned subsidiaries joined Consolidated @amications Holdings, Inc. and its directly ownedbsidiaries in the
lllinois unitary tax group for 2008. The additiohaur Pennsylvania entities to our lllinois unitayyoup reduced the Compasy’
state deferred income tax rate. When applied teipusly recorded deferred tax liabilities, thatuiedd rate lowered income tax
expense by approximately $0.9 million in 2007.

Exclusive of these adjustments, our effective t® would have been approximately 48.1% for the gaded
December 31, 2008, compared to 45.1% for the yeded December 31, 2007.

For the year ended December 31, 2007, compareddodbnber 31, 2006
Revenue:

Our revenues increased by 2.6%, or $8.4 millior§329.2 million in 2007, from $320.8 million in 260We explain this
change in the discussion and analysis below.

Telephone Operations Revenues

Local calling servicesrevenues decreased by 2.7% or $2.3 million, to88#llion in 2007 compared to $85.1 million in
2006. The decrease is primarily due to the dedfiecal access lines, as discussed under “—Faétibesting Results of
Operations.”

Network access servicegevenues increased by 3.1%, or $2.1 million, to.$Tdillion in 2007 compared to $68.1 million
in 2006. The increase was primarily driven by iatzeases in lllinois and increased demand fortgtmispoint circuits and oth:
network access services.

Subsidiesrevenues decreased by 3.4%, or $1.6 million, to@##llion in 2007 compared to $47.6 million in 200
primarily because out of period settlements in@damd we received less in USF support. In 2007efumded $2.6 million in
out of period settlements compared to $1.3 milllmA006. We received $27.0 million in federal USipgort and $19.0 million
in Texas USF support in 2007 compared to $28.%ianiih federal USF support and $19.5 million in &8XJSF support in
2006.
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Long distance servicesevenues decreased by 7.9%, or $1.2 million, toGdllion in 2007 compared to $15.2 million
2006. This was driven by general industry trendsthie adoption of our unlimited long distance cgjlplans. These plans are
helpful in maintaining and attracting customerg, they also tend to reduce billable minutes sineaviy users of long distance
services take advantage of fixed pricing plans.

Data and Internet revenues increased by 23.0%, or $7.1 million, #®.&3nillion in 2007 compared to $30.9 million in
2006. The revenue increase was due to increasecaB&LPTV penetration. The number of DSL linesarvice In lllinois and
Texas increased from 52,732 as of December 31,,20@®%,624 as of December 31, 2007. IPTV custotimergased from
6,954 at December 31, 2006, to 12,241 at Decenthe2@7. These increases were partially offsetrbgien of our dial-up
Internet base.

Other servicesrevenues increased by 6.9%, or $2.3 million, to.&38illion in 2007 compared to $33.5 million in 20
The revenue increase was due to growth in our Rirgand Carrier Services businesses and a futl g#ect of late payment
fees implemented in the fourth quarter of 2006.

Other Operations Revenues

Other Operations revenues increased by 5.0%, 6rréZlion, to $42.4 million in 2007 compared to $40nillion in 2006.
Revenues from our telemarketing and order fulfilinieusiness increased by $0.5 million due to irsgdasales to existing
customers. Our prison systems unit generated isecegevenue of $0.6 million for the period fromregmsed minutes of use.
The remaining $0.9 million increase was due torenease in customer premise equipment sales.

Operating Expenses

Our operating expenses decreased by 3.3%, or #8i@wnto $262.6 million in 2007 compared to $2% illion in 2006.
We explain this change in our discussion and aishelow.

Telephone Operations Operating Expenses

Operating expenses for Telephone Operations inedelays 0.7%, or $1.0 million, to $153.4 million i0@7 compared to
$152.4 million in 2006. In 2007 we incurred a $tllion reduction in severance costs compared @620 hese decreases w
partially offset by a $1.5 million increase in stkammpensation expense and a $0.5 million increasaergy costs.

Other Operations Operating Expenses

Operating expenses for Other Operations decregs&8.B%, or $8.2 million, to $43.5 million in 20@dmpared to
$51.7 million in 2006. In 2006, the Operator Seegiand Market Response businesses recognizediliieaagset impairment
$10.2 million and $1.1 million, respectively. Exdlag the impairment charges, operating expense®tioer Operations
increased by $3.1 million. This increase primaciéyme from increased costs required to supportrweth in our customer
premise equipment sales and telemarketing revenues.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization expenses decreas@dbBy, or $1.7 million, to $65.7 million in 2007ropared to
$67.4 million in 2006. In 2006, the Company recagdi $11.0 million in impairment related to its Oger Services and Mark
Response customer lists. The reduced carrying wdltlee customer lists resulted in decreased apatitin expense in 2007.
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Non-Operating Income (Expense)

Interest Expense, Net

Interest expense, net of interest income, increbge’l4%, or $3.6 million, to $46.5 million in 20@dmpared to
$42.9 million in 2006. The increase is primarilyedio the higher average level of outstanding deR007 because we
borrowed an additional $39.0 million in July 20@6complete the share repurchase.

Other Income (Expense)

Other income, net decreased $11.3 million, to (Behillion in 2007 compared to $7.3 million in 20aBuring 2007, we
recognized a loss on extinguishment of debt of $dillion related to the debt refinancing from #eguisition of North
Pittsburgh. In addition, we recognized $7.0 millmfinvestment income in 2007, compared to $7.Tionilin 2006. Investment
income was lower because of lower equity earning® four cellular partnership investments.

Income Taxes

Provision for income taxes increased by $4.3 nrilio $4.7 million in 2007 compared to $0.4 million2006. The
effective tax rate was 29.0% for 2007 and 3.092f06.

The effective tax rate during 2007 primarily reedlfrom a 2007 amendment to Texas tax legislatishénacted during
2006. The most significant impact of this amendnientis was the revision to the temporary creditaxable margin
converting state loss carryforwards to a statecteglit carryforward. This new legislation resultedh reduction of our net
deferred tax liabilities and corresponding credibtir tax provision of approximately $1.7 millidn.addition, under lllinois tax
law, North Pittsburgh and its directly owned sulzsi@s joined Consolidated Communications Holdirgs, and its directly
owned subsidiaries in the lllinois unitary tax godor 2008. The addition of our Pennsylvania essitio our lllinois unitary
group changed the Company’s state deferred incamgate. This change in the state deferred incaxeate resulted in a
reduction in income tax expense of approximatel@ $fillion in 2007 because the lower effective defd income tax rate was
applied to previously recorded deferred tax liiei.

The low effective tax rate during 2006 resultedraniily from a change in Texas tax legislation eedéh 2006. The most
significant impact of the new legislation for ussathe modification of our Texas franchise tax cllttan to a new “margin tax”
calculation used to derive taxable income. This fegislation reduced our net deferred tax lialgitand corresponding credit
to our state tax provision of approximately $6.0iomn.

Critical Accounting Policies and Use of Estimates

This section discusses the accounting estimatesssuimptions that we consider to be the most akittican understandii
of our financial statements because they inherémiiglve significant judgments and uncertaintigsmaking the necessary
estimates, we considered various assumptions atat$abased on our best estimates and all infoomatvailable to us;
however, such assumptions and factors may prokieve been inaccurate, which could have a matenjgdct on our financial
condition, results of operations, or cash flowseddassumptions will be analyzed in future peraubadjusted if necessary.
We believe that of our significant accounting pielg; the following involve the most judgment anangdexity.

Derivatives

We regularly use derivative contracts designatechah flow hedges to convert a portion of our gpaied future floating
interest rate cash flows associated with our cfeditity to a fixed rate. The change in the mankaiue of such derivative
contracts has historically been, and is expectedmdinue to be, highly effective at offsetting nbas in interest rate
movements of the hedged item. Gains and lossés@fiem the change in fair value of the hedgirapactions are deferred in
other comprehensive income, net of applicable irectames, and recognized as a component of intexpsinse in the period in
which the hedged item affects earnings. If it iled@mined that the derivative instruments used arlonger effective at
offsetting changes in the price of the hedged itiven the changes in the market value of theseuimsints would be recorded
in the statement of earnings as a component afestexpense.

51




Table of Contents

Fair Value Measurements

Our derivative instruments related to interest satap agreements are required to be measured aifaé. The fair value
of the interest rate swaps are determined usirigtamal valuation model which relies on the expddtIBOR based yield
curve and estimates of counterparty and the Conipawoyn performance risk as the most significantitsp

We evaluate the quality and reliability of the amsptions and data used to measure fair value ithttee hierarchy levels,
Level 1, 2 and 3, as prescribed by SFAS No. 157 ffeg¢e 15 for additional information). Certain niatkeinputs to the interest
rate swap valuations are not directly observabtecamnot be corroborated by observable market Wéatshave categorized
these interest rate derivatives as Level 3.

We evaluate our risk of non-performance basedsinmiemiums being assigned to companies of sirsida and with
similar credit ratings. Counterparty non-performansk is assigned based on observable market Tla¢sapplication of non-
performance risk to our determination of the valfieur derivatives resulted in a reduction of teparted liability of our
derivative instruments of $7.1 million for the patiending December 31, 2008. The adjustment forpesformance risk is
recorded in other comprehensive income, net ofstaxe

The Company’s net liabilities measured at fair eadim a recurring basis subject to disclosure requénts of SFAS
No. 157 at December 31, 2008 were as follc

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date U

Quoted Price Significant
in Active Other Significant
Markets for Observable Unobservabl
Identical Asset: Inputs Inputs
Description December 31, 20( (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Interest Rate Derivative $ 47,90¢ $ 47,90¢
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The following table presents the Company’s netiliitdds measured at fair value on a recurring basigsg significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) as defined in SFASTG at December 31, 2008:

Fair Value
Measurement
Using Significan
Unobservabile

Inputs (Level 3;

Interest Rat¢

Derivatives

Balance at December 31, 2C $ 12,76¢
Settlement: (10,419
Total gains or losses (realized/unrealiz

Unrealized loss included in earnir 39t

Unrealized loss included in other comprehensiverime 45,15¢
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 47,90¢
The amount of total loss for the period include@amnings for the period as a component of interest

expense $ 39t

Income taxes

Our current and deferred income taxes, and assdcialuation allowances, are impacted by eventdrandactions
arising in the normal course of business as walh @gnnection with the adoption of new accounstandards, acquisitions of
businesses and non-recurring items. Assessmehné@ppropriate amount and classification of incéaxes is dependent on
several factors, including estimates of the tinang realization of deferred income tax assets la@dining of income tax
payments. Actual collections and payments may ngditediffer from these estimates as a result adridres in tax laws as well
as unanticipated future transactions impactingedlancome tax balances. We account for tax benifien or expected to be
taken in our tax returns in accordance with Finaln&ccounting Standards Board (“FASB”) InterpretatiNo. 48, “Accounting
for Uncertainty in Income Taxes” (“FIN 48”), whiakquires the use of a two-step approach for reeaggniand measuring tax
benefits taken or expected to be taken in a taxmet

Subsidies revenue

We recognize revenues from universal service sigss@hd charges to interexchange carriers for bedt@and special
access services. In certain cases, our rural tetepbompanies participate in interstate revenuecastdsharing arrangements,
referred to as pools, with other telephone comgameols are funded by charges imposed by particgpaompanies on their
respective customers. The revenue we receive fromparticipation in pools is based on our actuat of providing interstate
services. These costs are not precisely known syitial jurisdictional cost studies are completgérerally during the seco
quarter of the following year.

Allowance for uncollectible account

We use estimates and assumptions to evaluate llieetability of our accounts receivable. When we aware that a
specific customer is unable to meet its financiigations, such as following a bankruptcy filingsubstantial downgrading of
credit scores, we record a specific allowance agamounts due to set the net receivable to an matmaibelieve we can
collect. For all other customers, we reserve agreage of the remaining outstanding accounts rabéibalance as a general
allowance based on a review of specific customkroas, trends, our experience with prior recessthe current economic
environment, and the length of time the receivahlespast due. If circumstances change, we revievadequacy of the
allowance to determine if we should modify ourmsties of the recoverability of amounts due us byagerial amount. At
December 31, 2008, our total allowance for unctilidée accounts for all business segments was $ill@m If our estimate
were understated by 10%, the result would be agehaf approximately $0.2 million to results of ogi@wns.
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Valuation of intangible assets

Intangible assets not being amortized are revidaetnpairment as part of our annual business ptanoycle in the
fourth quarter. We also review all intangible asdet impairment whenever events or circumstancaisenit more likely than
not that impairment may have occurred. Severabfaatould trigger an impairment review, including:

e achange in the use or perceived value of our haues

« significant underperformance relative to historicaprojected future operating resu
»  significant regulatory changes that would impacttife operating revenue

e significant changes in our customer bz

e significant negative industry or economic trendz

e significant changes in the overall strategy we @ypb operate our busine:

We determine if impairment exists based on a methatluses discounted cash flows. This requiresagement to make
certain assumptions regarding future income, rgyaltes, and discount rates, all of which affeatimpairment calculation.
Our impairment review in December 2007 did not ltesuany impairment losses for the year ended bdmr 31, 2007. Based
on our review in 2008, we recognized an impairnzéi§i6.1 million on Consolidated Market Response,telemarketing and
order fulfillment business.

Pension and postretirement benef

The amounts recognized in our financial statemkmtpension and postretirement benefits are deterdhon an actuarial
basis utilizing several critical assumptions.

A significant assumption used in determining oungien benefit expense is the expected long-terenafteturn on plan
assets. Our pension investment strategy is to magitang-term return on invested plan assets whil@mizing the risk of
volatility. Accordingly, we target our allocatiorecentage at 50% to 60% in equity funds, with #raainder in fixed income
and cash equivalents. Our assumed rate considgiistestment mix as well as past trends. We usedighted average
expected long-term rate of return of 8.0% in 2068 a007.

Another significant estimate is the discount rateduin the annual actuarial valuation of our pamsiod postretirement
benefit plan obligations. In determining the appiaie discount rate, we consider the current yieldsigh-quality corporate
fixed-income investments with maturities that correspionithe expected duration of our pension and pastraént benefit pla
obligations. For 2008 and 2007, we used a weightedage discount rate of 6.14% and 6.25%, respabgtiv

In 2008 we contributed $6.1 million to our pensplans and $2.5 million to our other postretiremgans. In 2007 we
contributed $4.8 million to our pension plans adds$million to our other postretirement plans.
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The following table summarizes the effect of chanigeselected assumptions on our estimate of pemsan expense and
other postretirement benefit plan expense:

December 31

Percentage 2008 Obligation 2008 Expense
Assumptions Point Change Higher Lower Higher Lower
(in millions)

Pension Plan Expens

Discount rate +or-0.Epts  $ (102 $ 111 $ —  $ —

Expected return on asst +or-1Cpts $ —  $ —  $ ae $ 1.€
Other Postretirement Expen:

Discount rate +or-0.Epts  $ Le $ 1¢ 3 —  $ —

Liquidity and Capital Resources
General

Historically, our operating requirements have biegrded from cash flow generated from our businesshorrowings
under our credit facilities. We expect to contitoeely on those sources of funds.

As of December 31, 2008, we had $881.3 millionelitdincluding capital leases. Our $50.0 milliomalging line of
credit remains unused. On April 1, 2008, we borm®&20.0 million of our delayed draw term loan kagiand used those
proceeds, together with cash on hand, to redeersemior secured notes. In the second quarter &,206 recognized a loss on
redemption of the senior notes of $9.2 million, ethincluded the redemption premium and the wrifesbtinamortized
deferred financing costs associated with the serotes.

As a general matter, we expect that our liquidigas in 2009 will arise primarily from: (i) dividémpayments of
$45.7 million, reflecting quarterly dividends at amnual rate of $1.55 per share; (ii) interest paryts on our indebtedness of
$58.0 million to $61.0 million; (iii) capital expéritures of approximately $42.0 million to $43.0 lioih; (iv) taxes; and
(v) certain other costs. We also expect to use te2809 and beyond to make contributions to ounspn plans. As of the mc
recent actuarial measurement, we were approximég8y funded on our pension plans. As a result, xpee to contribute
$9.0 million to $11.0 million to our pension plans2009. Finally, we may use cash and incur adaiaebt to fund selective
acquisitions. However, our ability to use cash rbhayimited by our other expected uses of cashcamébility to incur
additional debt will be limited by our existing ahdure debt agreements.

We believe that cash flow from operating activitiegether with our existing cash and borrowingailable under our
revolving credit facility, will be sufficient forgproximately the next twelve months to fund ourently anticipated uses of
cash. After 2009, our ability to fund these expéatses of cash and to comply with the financialkecants under our debt
agreements will depend on the results of operatjpeisormance, and cash flow, all of which are sabjo prevailing economic
conditions and to financial, business, regulattgislative, and other factors, many of which aegdnd our control.

We may be unable to access the cash flow of owigialties since certain of our subsidiaries arenay become, parties
to credit or other borrowing agreements that retstlividends or intercompany loans and investments.

To the extent our business plans or projections@d&r prove to be inaccurate, we may require iddik financing or
require financing sooner than we currently antit@p&ources of additional financing may include omercial bank borrowings,
other strategic debt financing, sales of nonstiatagsets, vendor financing, or private or pubdiles of equity and debt
securities. We cannot guarantee that we will be &bbenerate sufficient cash flow from operatidhat anticipated revenue
growth will be realized, or that future borrowingsequity issuances will be available in amountécant to adequately fund
our expected uses of cash. If we cannot obtainuededinancing, we may need to significantly redageoperations or level
capital expenditures, which could have a matedaksase effect on our financial condition and theutes of operations.
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In recent months liquidity in the capital marketsHtbecome scarce; many commercial banks are netuotiend money.
As discussed below, our term loan has been fuligéad at a fixed spread above LIBOR and we haved®hilion available
under our revolving credit facility. Based on oisalissions with banks participating in the bankugrave expect that the funds
will be available under the revolving credit fawilif necessary.

For more information about the possible effectthefrecent economic downturn, see the “Risk Fattastion of this
Report.

The following table summarizes our sources and aseash for the periods presented:

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006
(In millions)
Net Cash Provided by (Used for):
Operating activitie: $ 92.4 $ 82.1 $ 84.€
Investing activities (48.0 (305.9) (26.7)
Financing activitie: (63.9) 230.¢ (62.7)

Operating Activities

Net income adjusted for nasash items is our primary source of operating cBshthe year ended December 31, 2008
income adjusted for non-cash charges generated Bir@ilfion of operating cash. During the period pad $13.5 million for
federal and state income taxes, while our tax es@mas $6.6 million. In addition we made cash paymef $6.1 million to
fund our pension and income restoration plans. Gasim components of working capital—primarily amat expenses,
accounts receivable, and accounts payable—in thieany course of business accounted for the rensaiofithe cash flows
from operations.

For 2007, net income adjusted for non-cash itemeigaed $95.3 million of operating cash. We paid.@illion of cash
income taxes in 2007, compared to $8.2 millionG& In addition, accounts receivable used $4.6anjlincluding
$4.7 million to cover our normal bad debt resefee timing of our accounts payable resulted innendase of $1.3 million of
available cash.

For 2006, net income adjusted for non-cash itemsigeed $90.2 million of operating cash. Changeitain working
capital components partially offset the cash getedraAccounts receivable used $4.0 million, inahgd$5.1 million to cover
our normal bad debt experience, offset by $1.lianilfrom a slight improvement in our days salestartding. We also used
$2.8 million of cash, primarily to fund increasewéntory supplies and miscellaneous prepaid exgense

Investing Activities

Cash used in investing activities has traditionbatgn for capital expenditures and acquisitions tif®year ended
December 31, 2008, we used $48.0 million for cépitpenditures, which is an increase of $14.5 orillover the year ended
December 31, 2007. The increase was due to inaréasemental spending as a result of the acqoisitf North Pittsburgh.
Because our networks, including the North Pittshurgtwork, are modern and have been well maintaiwedlo not believe w
will substantially increase capital spending beyouardent levels in the future. Any such increaseldikely occur as a result
of a planned growth or expansion, if at all.

In 2007, we used $271.8 million of cash, net ohcasquired, to acquire North Pittsburgh Systems, Iimaddition, we
used $33.5 million for capital expenditures.

Cash used in investing activities of $26.7 milliarR006 consisted of capital expenditures of $38illon, partially offset
by $6.7 million in proceeds from the sale of assets
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Over the three years ended December 31, 2008, e3is14.9 million in cash for capital investmeritise majority of our
capital spending was for the expansion or upgrdaeitside plant facilities and switching assets. &pect our capital
expenditures to be between $42.0 million and $48lllon in 2009. We expect that the spending wél lised primarily to
maintain and upgrade our network, central offiaes ather facilities, and information technology @werating support and
other systems.

Financing Activities

In 2008, we borrowed $120.0 million under our delhgraw term loan and used the proceeds, alongecagth on hand, to
retire $130.0 million of our outstanding senioremtnd to pay a redemption premium of $6.3 milllaraddition, we paid
$45.4 million of cash to our common stockholdergliaglends. The total amount of dividends paid é&sed in 2008 because
we issued approximately 3.32 million shares oflsiaaconnection with the North Pittsburgh acqusiti We also paid
$0.2 million of deferred financing fees in connentiwith finalizing our new credit facility, and $lmillion to satisfy
obligations under capital leases.

In 2007, we generated $230.9 of cash from finanattyities. We borrowed $760.0 million in connectiwith the
acquisition of North Pittsburgh. In addition to fling the acquisition, we used proceeds from theosdngs and cash on hand
to retire $464.0 million of term debt outstandimger our prior credit facility, to pay deferreddimcing costs of $8.7 million, to
repay $15.4 million of North Pittsburgh’s long-tedabt, and to pay $0.4 million in connection widlgistering shares that were
issued to partially fund the acquisition. We alsidd0.3 million of deferred financing costs in aetion with amending our
credit facility in the first quarter of 2007. Fihalwe paid $40.2 million of cash to our commoncgtwolders as dividends.

In 2006, we used $62.7 million of cash for finamcactivities. We paid $44.6 million to our commdackholders as
dividends. In July 2006, we repurchased and retiygatoximately 3.8 million shares of our commorcktiyom Providence
Equity for approximately $56.7 million, or $15.08rshare. With this transaction, Providence Egsnty its entire position in
our company, which, prior to the transaction, tedahpproximately 12.7 percent of our outstandirageshof common stock.
This was a private transaction and did not decreas@ublicly traded shares. We financed this repase using approximately
$17.7 million of cash on hand and $39.0 millioradflitional term loan borrowings.

Debt
The following table summarizes our indebtedness &ecember 31, 2008:

Debt and Capital Leases as of December 31, 2008

(In Millions)
Balance Maturity Date Rate (1)
Capital least $ 1.3 April 12, 201( 7.4(%
Revolving credit facility — December 31, 20. LIBOR + 2.50%
Term loan 880.C December 31, 20. LIBOR + 2.50%

(1) As of December 31, 2008, the 1-month and 3tmtIBOR rates were 0.43625% and 1.425%, respalgtiAs of
December 31, 2008, we were electi-month LIBOR on the variable portion of our de
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Credit Facilities

Borrowings under our credit facilities are our serabligations that are secured by substantiallpfahe assets of the
borrowers (Consolidated Communications, Inc., Cdated Communications Acquisition Texas, Inc., &adth Pittsburgh
Systems, Inc.) and the guarantors (the Companyackl of the existing subsidiaries of Consolidatech@unications, Inc.,
Consolidated Communications Ventures, and NortisiRitgh Systems, Inc., but not ICTC and certaiarusubsidiaries). The
credit agreement contains customary affirmativeeoants. For example, we (and our subsidiariesieap@red to furnish
specified financial information to the lenders, gdynwith applicable laws, and maintain our propestand assets and the
related insurance. The credit agreement also guntaistomary negative covenants. For example, #rereestrictions against
incurring additional debt and issuing capital stameating liens; repaying other debt; selling &ssmaking investments, loans,
guarantees, or advances; paying dividends; repsircip&quity interests or making other restricteghpants; engaging in
affiliate transactions; making capital expendityesgaging in mergers, acquisitions, or consolatesj entering into sale-
leaseback transactions; amending specified docuanemntering into agreements that restrict dividefnols subsidiaries; and
changing the business we conduct. In additioncthdit agreement requires us to comply with spedifinancial ratios that are
summarized below under “—Covenant Compliance.”

Borrowings under our credit facilities bear intérasa rate equal to an applicable margin plutheborrowers’ election,
either a “base rate” or LIBOR. As of December 310, the applicable margin for interest rates wa®% per year for the
LIBOR-based term loans and the revolving credit faciliiye applicable margin for our $880.0 million teloan is fixed for thi
duration of the loan. The applicable margin foealative base rate loans was 1.50% per year fdetheloan and the revolvi
credit facility. The applicable margin for borrowi on the revolving credit facility is based onrizipg grid. Based on our
leverage ratio of 4.86:1 as of December 31, 20080fwings under the revolving credit facility wile priced at a margin of
2.75% for LIBOR-based borrowings and 1.75% forralaive base rate borrowings. The applicable bamgwnargin for the
revolving credit facility is adjusted quarterlyrieflect the leverage ratio from the prior quarted-eAt December 31, 2008, the
weighted average interest rate, including swapgurcredit facilities was 6.3% per annum.

Derivative Instruments

As of December 31, 2008, we had $740.0 millionatfonal amount floating to fixed interest rate svegpeements and
$740.0 million of notional amount basis swaps. Apmately 84.1% of our floating rate term loans &véired through interest
rate swaps as of December 31, 2008. Under therftptd fixed swap agreements, we receive 3-monBCOR-based interest
payments from the swap counterparties and payed fiate. Under the basis swaps we pay 3-month LHB@$ed payments le
a fixed percentage to the basis swap counterpaatiesreceive 1-month LIBOR. Concurrent with the@xion of the basis
swaps, we began electing 1-month LIBOR resets orci@dit facility. The swaps are in place to hettgeechange in overall
cash flows related to our term loan, the drivewbfch is changes in the underlying variable interate. Our objective is to
have between 75% and 85% of our variable rate filedtt so there is some certainty to our cash flowasns. The maturity
dates of these swaps are laddered to minimize ar@npal exposure to unfavorable rates when arviddal swap expires. The
swaps expire at various times through March 3132@hd have a weighted average fixed rate of ajpetrly 4.43%. The
current effect of the swap portfolio is to fix azash interest payments on $740.0 million of flogtiate debt at a rate of 6.93%,
including our borrowing margin of 2.50% over LIB@R discussed above.

Senior Notes
On April 1, 2008, we redeemed our senior securéesnand the related indenture was terminated.

Covenant Compliance

In general, our credit agreement restricts oulitghid pay dividends to the amount of our “Availalitash” accumulated
after October 1, 2005, plus $23.7 million and mithesaggregate amount of dividends paid after 4é/y2005. The credit
agreement defines Available Cash for any perio@@ssolidated EBITDA:

(a) minus, to the extent not deducted in the determinatioBansolidated EBITDA,
(i) non-cash dividend income for such period;
(ii) consolidated interest expense for such penietof amortization of debt issuance costs incurred
(A) in connection with or prior to the consummatimiithe acquisition of North Pittsburgh, or
(B) in connection with the redemption of our semiotes;
(iii) capital expenditures from internally genemfends;
(iv) cash income taxes for such period;

(v) scheduled principal payments of indebtednéss)y;
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(vi) voluntary repayments of indebtedness, mangagtoepayments of term loans, and net increaseststanding
revolving loans during such period;

(vii) the cash costs of any extraordinary or unlifasses or charges; and

(viii) all cash payments made on account of logsseharges expensed prior to such period;
(b) plus, to the extent not included in Consolidated EBIT,DA

(i) cash interest income;

(ii) the cash amount realized in respect of exttam@ry or unusual gains; and

(i) net decreases in revolving loans.

Based on the results of operations from Octob&0@p, through December 31, 2008, we would have bhbknto pay a
dividend of $78.7 million under the credit facilicpvenant. After giving effect to the dividend dfi$4 million, which was
declared in November 2008 and paid on Februar@92we could pay a dividend of $67.3 million.

Under our credit agreement, if our total net legereatio (as such term is defined in the credieaegrent) as of the end of
any fiscal quarter is greater than 5.25:1.00 wditember 31, 2008, and 5.10:1.00 thereafter, wergéiy will be required to
suspend dividends on our common stock. (There exaaption for dividends paid from the portion obgeeds of any sale of
equity not used to make mandatory prepaymentsanfsl@and not used to fund acquisitions, capital ediperes, or make other
investments.) During any dividend suspension pemawill be required to repay debt in an amountatgo 50.0% of any
increase in Available Cash (as defined above), anotiner things. In addition, we will not be permdtto pay dividends if an
event of default under the credit agreement hasroed and is continuing. Among other things, ithw# an event of default if
our interest coverage ratio as of the end of asgafiquarter is below 2.25:1.00. As of December2B08, our total net leverage
ratio was 4.86:1.00 and our interest coverage vedi® 2.85:1.00.

The description of our credit agreement and theepamts it contains in this Annual Report are sunesainly. These
summaries are qualified in their entirety by theuatdocuments, which were previously filed.

Dividends

We expect that cash flow from operations will fudididend payments and our other expected cash nbedddition, we
expect we will have sufficient availability undasraevolving credit facility to fund dividend payms, as well as any expected
fluctuations in working capital and other cash regedthough we do not intend to borrow under thiglity to pay dividends.

For various reasons, all of which are describethén‘Risk Factors” section of this Annual Reporg telieve that our
dividend policy will limit, but not preclude, oubdity to grow.

Surety bonds

In the ordinary course of business, we enter intety, performance, and similar bonds. As of Decan®i, 2008, we had
approximately $2.0 million of these bonds outstagdi
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Table of contractual obligations and commitments

As of December 31, 2008, our material contractbéibations and commitments were:

Less than 1-3 3-5 More than
Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
(In thousands)

Long-term debt (a $ 1,249,600 $ 61,60C $ 123200 $ 123,20( $ 941,60(

Capital lease (t 1,43: 1,051 382 — —

Operating lease 10,29¢ 4,18 4,661 75€ 68€

Other agreements and commitments 3,06z 1,12C 1,692 14C 11C

Pension and other pr-retirement obligations (¢ 107,30¢ 10,29( 36,85¢ 36,93¢ 23,21¢
Total contractual cash obligations and

commitments $ 137169 $ 7824¢ $ 166,790 $ 161,03 $ 965,61

(&) This item consists of interest and princip@yments under our credit facilities. The crediilfaes consist of a
$760.0 million term loan facility and a $120.0 dedd draw facility, both maturing on December 31120and a
$50.0 million revolving credit facility, which wdslly available but undrawn as of December 31, 2(

(b) Represents payments of principal and inteyest capital lease entered into by North Pittshdiog equipment used in its
operations

(c) Represents payments for two operational sugystems obligations. Should we terminate eittiéhe contracts prior to
the expiration of their term, we will be liable forinimum commitment payments as defined in thereaits for the
remaining term of the contracts. In addition, weéha contractual obligation for network maintenal

(d) Pension funding is an estimate of our mininfunding requirements to provide pension benefitseinployees based on
service through December 31, 2008. Obligationdirgldo other post-retirement benefits are basefbmrasts of future
benefit payments, which may change over time ddadiors such as life expectancy, medical costsi@mdls, the actual
rate of return on the plan assets, discount rdtssietionary pension contributions, and regulatoigs.

Under Financial Interpretation Number 48, unrecegditax benefits of $5.7 million are excluded frihra contractual
obligations table because the timing of future castfiows to settle these liabilities is highly emtain.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2008, the Financial Accounting Standardsr&oor FASB, issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”). MdTF 03-6-1
“Determining Whether Instruments Granted in Shaasdgl Payment Transactions are Participating SexliriThis FSP
provides that unvested share-based payment aweaatlsdntain nonforfeitable rights to dividends atidend equivalents
(whether paid or unpaid) are participating secesiind should be included in the computation afiegs per share pursuant to
the two-class method. This FSP is effective foaficial statements issued for fiscal years beginaftey December 15, 2008,
and interim periods within those years, with eaplication prohibited. We do not expect this FSPlvave any material effe
on future results of operations and financial coadi

In December 2008, the FASB issued FSP SFAS NoR)32(‘SFAS 132(R)-1"),"Employers’ Disclosures about
Postretirement Benefit Plan Assets” which provigeslance on an employer’s disclosures about plaeta®f a defined benefit
pension and other postretirement plan. SFAS 132(R)juires employers to disclose the fair valueawth major category of
plan assets as of each annual reporting date fiwhvehstatement of financial position is presentkd;inputs and valuation
technique used to develop fair value measuremdmuisio assets at the annual reporting date, incfuttie level within the fair
value hierarchy in which the fair value measuremégit as defined by SFAS No. 157; investment pesiand strategies,
including target allocation percentages; and sigaift concentrations of risk in plan assets. SFBER)-1 is effective for fisce
years ending after December 15, 2009 and will a@elimpact on future results of operations andnfire condition.
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In March 2008, the FASB issued Statement of Fir@netcounting Standards No. 161(“SFAS No. 161")jsdosure
about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activitien Amendment of FASB Statement No. 133”. SFAS N&d. requires
entities that utilize derivative instruments toydd® qualitative disclosures about their objectigad strategies for using such
instruments, as well as any details of credit-rislated contingent features contained within derres. SFAS No. 161 also
requires reporting entities to disclose additian&drmation about the amounts and location of deiises within the financial
statements, how the provisions of Statement ofrigiiah Accounting Standards No. 133\ccounting for Derivative Instrumer
and Hedging Activities” have been applied, andithpact that hedges have on the entity’s finanaisliton, financial
performance, and cash flows. SFAS No. 161 is affecor fiscal years and interim periods beginnaftgr November 15, 2008,
with early adoption encouraged. We currently previtformation about hedging activities and useerfdtives in our
quarterly and annual filings with the SEC, andssgtinany of the SFAS No. 161 disclosure requiresmiénhile SFAS No. 161
will have an impact on disclosures, it will not leaan impact on our future results of operationsfarahcial condition.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement ofmEinbAccounting Standards No. 160 (“SFAS No. 160")
“Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Finan@&htements—an Amendment of ARB No. 51”. SFAS Naf) dlarifies that a
noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary is an ovehgp interest in a consolidated entity that shdaddeported as equity in the
consolidated financial statements. It also requiessolidated net income to include the amountiattble to both the parent
and the noncontrolling interest. We have adoptediSSNo. 160 effective January 1, 2009 with regartheminority interest
held in the East Texas Fiber Line, a 63% ownedididrg. We have included net income of $5.2 milliarthe mezzanine
section of the balance sheet as of December 3B 200 recognized a charge to income of $0.9 mifiarearnings attributable
to the minority shareholder for the year then endds impact of SFAS No. 160 on our future resaoftsperations and financ
condition will depend on the operating resultshi$ subsidiary in future periods.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement ofnEinbAccounting Standards No. 141 (revised 2003FAS No. 141
(R)"), “Business Combinations”. SFAS No. 141(R)aies the fundamental requirements of the origimahpuncement
requiring that the purchase method be used fdnaliness combinations. SFAS No. 141(R) defineatiogiirer as the entity tt
obtains control of one or more businesses in tisnlegs combination, establishes the acquisitioa @sithe date the acquirer
achieves control, and requires the acquirer togeize the assets acquired, liabilities assumedaagdon-controlling interest
at their fair values as of the acquisition dateASMo. 141(R) also requires, among other thingst dlcquisitionrelated costs t
recognized separately from the acquisition. We fadapted SFAS No. 141(R) effective January 1, 2606,expect it to affect
acquisitions completed thereafter, though the impéltdepend upon the size and nature of the agitijom. In addition, the
$5.7 million liability for unrecognized tax benefias of December 31, 2008 relate to tax positibaequired entities taken pr
to their acquisition by the Company. Liabilitiestlad for lesser amounts will affect the income ¢éxpense in the period of
reversal. See Note 10 to the audited financiaéstants included herein.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 15FASSNo. 1577), “Fair Value Measurements”. SFAS NB7
defines fair value, establishes a framework for sneag fair value in generally accepted accoungirigciples, and expands
disclosures about fair value measurements. We addpé provisions of SFAS No. 157 as of Januag008, for financial
instruments that are required to be measuredragdlie on a recurring basis. SFAS No. 157 estaddis three-tier fair value
hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in g fair value. These tiers include: Level Ifjred as observable inputs
such as quoted prices in active markets; Levebfindd as inputs other than quoted prices in actigekets that are either
directly or indirectly observable; and Level 3,idefl as unobservable inputs in which little or narket data exists, therefore
requiring an entity to develop its own assumptidfe. additional information about the impact of §-No.157 on the results
of operations and financial condition, please rédeiote 15 of our audited financial statements.
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In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement afi€ial Accounting Standards No. 158, (“SFAS No0."1,58
“Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pensiand Other Postretirement Plans—an amendment of FAt&@ments
No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(". SFAS No. 158 requires an entity to (a) recogrizits statement of financial position an asset or
an obligation for a defined benefit postretiremglan’s funded status, (b) measure a defined bepesitretirement plan’s assets
and obligations that determine its funded statudf éise end of the employer’s fiscal year, andrécpgnize changes in the
funded status of a defined benefit postretireméant ;n comprehensive income in the year in whighd¢hanges occur. We
adopted the recognition and related disclosureigpians of SFAS No. 158 effective December 31, 200& measurement date
provision was effective January 1,, 2008. Aftera@enbined the Texas and lllinois pension plans oceDwer 31, 2007, we
adopted the measurement date provisions of SFAS b®effective January 1, 2008, for pension andrptieement plans with
measurement dates other than December 31. Addpingeasurement date provisions resulted in aeaserto opening
accumulated deficit on January 1, 2008, of $169,86800f tax of $96,972.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MagkRisk

Market risk is the potential change in the fair kedivalue of a fixed-rate long-term debt obligatéhre to an adverse
change in interest rates, and the potential chanierest expense on variable-rate long-term débgations due to a change
in market interest rates. We are exposed to maidiefrom changes in interest rates on our longitdebt obligations.

We estimate our market risk using sensitivity asialyThe fair value on long-term debt obligatiomsiétermined based on
discounted cash flow analysis, using the ratesnaairities of these obligations compared to ternsrates currently available
in long-term debt markets. The potential changeterest expense is determined by calculating tleeteof a hypothetical rate
increase on the portion of variable-rate debt ithabt hedged through the interest swap agreendestsibed below, and
assumes no changes in our capital structure. Agoémber 31, 2008, approximately 84.1% of our Itargs debt obligations
were variable-rate obligations subject to interat swap agreements, and approximately 15.9% vesigble-rate obligations
not subject to interest rate swap agreements.

As of December 31, 2008, we had $880.0 millionefftbutstanding under our credit facilities. Oup@sure to
fluctuations in interest rates was limited by ietrrate swap agreements that effectively converfaartion of our variable de
to a fixed rate, thereby reducing the impact ofiiest rate changes on future interest expense.e@arfber 31, 2008, we had
interest rate swap agreements covering $740.0omitf aggregate principal amount of our variabke-debt at fixed LIBOR
rates ranging from 3.865% to 4.888% and expiringanous dates through March 31, 2013. In additwe@had $740.0 million
of basis swap agreements under which we make 3mdBOR payments less a percentage ranging fromd0 basis
points, and receive 1-month LIBOR.

As of December 31, 2008, we had $140.0 millionariable-rate debt not covered by interest rate sxgagpements. If
market interest rates changed by 1.0% from theaaperates that prevailed during the year, intenggense would have
increased or decreased by approximately $0.9 miftio the period.. As of December 31, 2008, thevalue of interest rate
swap agreements amounted to a liability of $30.I#anj net of taxes.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANC IAL REPORTING

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finahgaorting. The
Company’s internal control over financial reportisga process designed to provide reasonable assutlaat our financial
reporting is reliable and our financial statemdatsexternal purposes are prepared in accordanttegenerally accepted
accounting principles. The Company’s internal colndver financial reporting includes those policéesl procedures that:

(i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, inaeaisle detail, accurately and fairly reflect trensactions and dispositic
of the assets of the Compat

(i) provide reasonable assurance that trangactioe recorded as necessary to permit prepatiomancial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting iples; and that receipts and expenditures of thmgamy are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of ngen@ent and directors; a

(iii) provide reasonable assurance that any unautbaaizguisition, use, or disposition of the Comparmgsets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements béllprevented or detected without de

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohaver financial reporting may not prevent or détaisstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectivenessutufe periods are subject to the risk that contmdy become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that comdiavith the policies or procedures may decline.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Cgiapaiernal control over financial reporting basmuthe framework
set forth ininternal Control—Integrated Frameworkssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organinataf the Treadway
Commission (*COSQ”). Based on management’s assegsand the COSO criteria, management believes disadf
December 31, 2008, our internal control over finaheporting is effective to provide reasonablsusance that the desired
control objectives were achieved. Our independegistered public accounting firm, Ernst & Young LS issued an
attestation report on Consolidated Communicatiooklidgs, Inc.’s internal control over financial m@ting. That report is
included on page 63 of this Annual Report.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Consolidated Communications Holdings, Inc.

We have audited Consolidated Communications HofiJihe'’s. (the Company’s) internal control overdirtial reporting
as of December 31, 2008, based on criteria esteddliginternal Control — Integrated Frameworkssued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Comimisghe COSO criteria). The Company’s managengrasponsible for
maintaining effective internal control over finaalcieporting and for its assessment of the effeciss of internal control over
financial reporting included in the accompanyingidgement’s Report on Internal Control Over FindriReporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Camys internal control over financial reporting beson our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversight@@d&@nited
States). Those standards require that we plan eridrp the audit to obtain reasonable assurancetatitether effective
internal control over financial reporting was mained in all material respects. Our audit includbthining an understanding
internal control over financial reporting, assegdime risk that a material weakness exists, testithevaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control basedhe assessed risk, and performing such otheeguses as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe thaaadit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesass
reliability of financial reporting and the prepacat of financial statements for external purposeadcordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A companyternal control over financial reporting inclsdfose policies and procedures
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records thateasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettilansactions and dispositions
of the assets of the company; (2) provide reaseradsurance that transactions are recorded assaecés permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with gengrdtepted accounting principles and that receiptsexpenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance withasizditions of management and directors of the cawpand (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or tidetction of unauthorized acquisition, use, opatition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on ttaniiial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detaisstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectivenessutufe periods are subject to the risk that contrdy become inadequate
because of changes in conditions or that the degjreempliance with the policies or procedures rdejeriorate.

In our opinion, Consolidated Communications Holdingpc. maintained, in all material respects, éffecinternal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 20@&¢dd on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bio@nited
States), the consolidated balance sheets of Cdaseti Communications Holdings, Inc. as of Decertie2008 and 2007, and
the related consolidated statements of operataras)ges in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows&arh of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2008, and our reptet!t March 13, 2009, expressed an unqualifiedapihereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

St. Louis, Missouri
March 13, 2009
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Stockholders and Board of Directors
Consolidated Communications Holdings, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Consolidated Communications Holdiimgs,and
subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 31, 2008007, and the related consolidated statemépizeoations, changes in
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each efttiree years in the period ended December 31, ZD@8audits also included
the financial statement schedule listed in the xratdtem 15. These financial statements and sdbeda the responsibility of
the Company’s management. Our responsibility exigress an opinion on these financial statementseamedule based on our
audits. The financial statements of GTE MobilneTekas RSA #17 Limited Partnership (a partnerghighich the Company
has a 17.02% interest), Pennsylvania RSA 6(1) lachiPartnership (a partnership in which the Compeasya 16.67% interest),
and Pennsylvania RSA 6(Il) Limited Partnership gatipership in which the Company has a 23.67% iste(eollectively the
Limited Partnerships) have been audited by othditans whose reports have been furnished to uspandpinion on the
consolidated financial statements, insofar addtes to the amounts included for the Limited Renthips, is based solely on the
reports of the other auditors. In the consoliddieahcial statements, the Company’s investmentnltimited Partnerships is
stated at $46,659,000 and $44,410,000, respecti@elyecember 31, 2008 and 2007, and the Companyity in the net
income of the Limited Partnerships is stated at $4,000 and $2,334,000, and $2,660,000 for eattedhree years in the
period ended Decemeber 31, 2008.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting Oversigham8aUnited
States). Those standards require that we plan erfidrp the audit to obtain reasonable assurancetatitether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. Alit ncludes examining, on a test basis, evidemppasrting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit éncludes assessing the accounting principled asd significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the lbfiaemcial statement presentation. We believe tha audits and the
reports of other auditors provide a reasonableslfasiour opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the repwiregher auditors, the financial statements reféto above present
fairly, in all material respects, the consolidatie@ncial position of Consolidated Communicationddings, Inc. at
December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the consolidasedtsef their operations and their cash flowsefach of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2008, in conformitly W.S. generally accepted accounting principhdso, in our opinion, the
related financial statement schedule, when consitlier relation to the basic consolidated finansfatements taken as a whole,
presents fairly, in all material respects, the iinfation set forth therein.

As discussed in Notes 2 and 10 to the consolidatadcial statements, on December 31, 2008, thegaomadopted
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No, Reéulated EnterprisesAccounting for the Discontinuance of Applicat
of FASB Statement No. #hich specifies the accounting required when aprprise ceases to meet the criteria for application
of regulatory accounting, and on January 1, 200 Gompany adopted the provisions of FASB Integti@i No 48,
Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an fiptetation of FASB Statement No. 1which clarified the accounting for
uncertainty in income taxes.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bio@nited
States), Consolidated Communications Holdings,drneternal control over financial reporting as@zécember 31, 2008, based
on the criteria established internal Control — Integrated Frameworkssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organinatio
of the Treadway Commission, and our report dateccMa3, 2009 expressed an unqualified opinion trere

/s ERNST & YOUNG LLP

St. Louis, Missouri
March 13, 2009
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Partners of Pennsylvania RSA 6 (1) LimitedtRership:

We have audited the accompanying balance she&srofsylvania RSA 6 (1) Limited Partnership (thertRership”) as of
December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related staterokoperations, changes in partners’ capital,aash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 3B. Zch financial statements are not presenteataiety herein. These
financial statements are the responsibility ofRlaetnership’s management. Our responsibility isxjoress an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighaBioUnited States).
Those standards require that we plan and perfoenatidit to obtain reasonable assurance about whbe#hénancial statemen
are free of material misstatement. The Partneiishipt required to have, nor were we engaged timper an audit of its
internal control over financial reporting. Our atudicluded consideration of internal control ovieahcial reporting as a basis
for designing audit procedures that are appropimatle circumstances but not for the purpose pf@ssing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Partnership’s internal contradr financial reporting. Accordingly, we expre@gssuch opinion. An audit
also includes examining, on a test basis, evidenpgorting the amounts and disclosures in the fishstatements, assessing
the accounting principles used and significannestés made by management, as well as evaluatirgyérall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such financial statements presainlyf in all material respects, the financial giwsi of the Partnership as of
December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the results opisations and its cash flows for each of the tlgezes in the period ended
December 31, 2008, in conformity with accountingpgiples generally accepted in the United State&roérica.

/sl Deloitte & Touche LLP

Atlanta, GA
March 16, 2009
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ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel

Consolidated Communications Holdings, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Amounts in thousands, except share amounts)

Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $1,908 $2d40, respectivel

Inventories
Deferred income taxe

Prepaid expenses and other current a:

Total current asse

Property, plant and equipment, |

Intangibles and other asse
Investment:
Goodwill
Customer lists, ne
Tradename

Deferred financing costs and other as

Total asset

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current liabilities:

Current portion of capital lease obligati
Current portion of pension and postretirement benéfigations

Accounts payabl

Advance billings and customer depo:

Dividends payabli
Accrued expense
Total current liabilities

Capital lease obligation less current pori

Long-term debi
Deferred income taxe

Pension and postretirement benefit obligati

Other liabilities
Total liabilities

Minority interest

Stockholder equity

Common stock, $0.01 par value, 100,000,000 shatherzed, 29,488,408 and
29,440,587 issued and outstanding in 2008 and 2@8p@ectively

Additional paid in capita
Retained earning

Accumulated other comprehensive I

Total stockholder equity

Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

See accompanying notes
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December 31,

2008 2007
$ 15477 $ 34,34
45,09: 44,007

7,48z 6,364

3,60( 4,551

6,931 10,35¢

78,57¢ 99,61°
400,28¢ 411,647
95,65/ 94,14
520,56: 526,43¢
124,24 146,41
14,29: 14,291

8,00t 12,04¢

$ 1,241,620 $ 1,304,59
$ 92: % 1,01(
2,96( 8,76¢

12,33¢ 17,38¢

19,10: 18,16’

11,38¢ 11,361

24,58 28,25¢
71,29: 84,94

344 1,63¢

880,00( 890,00(
58,13 97,28¢
107,74 56,72
48,83( 14,30¢
1,166,34. 1,144,90;
5,18¢ 4,327

29E 294

129,28 160,72
(59,479 (5,65Y)
70,10( 155,36t

$ 1241620 $ 1,304,590
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Consolidated Communications Holdings, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Operations

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Revenue:!
Operating expense

Year Ended December 31,

Cost of services and products (exclusive of deptixi and

amortization shown separately belc
Selling, general and administrative exper
Intangible assets impairme
Depreciation and amortizatic
Income from operatior
Other income (expense
Interest incom
Interest expens
Investment incom
Minority interest
Loss on extinguishment of de
Other, ne
Income before income taxes and extraordinary
Income tax expens

Income before extraordinary ite
Extraordinary item (net of income tax of $4,1!

Net income
Net income per common shé—
Basic:
Income per share before extraordinary i
Extraordinary item per sha
Net income per sha
Diluted:
Income per share before extraordinary i
Extraordinary item per sha

Net income per sha

Cash dividends per common sh

2008 2007 2006
$ 41842: $ 32924t $ 320,76
143,56: 107,29( 98,00:
108,76¢ 89,66: 94,69:
6,05( — 11,24
91,67¢ 65,65¢ 67,43(
68,36+ 66,63 49,311
367 89: 974
(66,659 (47,350 (43,879
20,49t 7,03¢ 7,691
(869) (627) (721)
(9,224) (10,329 —
(577) (167) 29C
11,90: 16,09° 13,67:
6,63¢ 4,67 40F
5,26¢ 11,42: 13,267
7,24( — —

$ 1250 $ 1142¢ $ 13,26
$ 016  $ 0.4,  $ 0.4¢
0.2% — —

$ 0.4: % 0.4  $ 0.4¢
$ 016  $ 0.4,  $ 0.47
0.24 — —

$ 0.4: % 0.4  $ 0.47
$ 158 $ 158 $ 1.5¢

See accompanying notes
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Consolidated Communications Holdings, Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Changes in StockholderEquity
Year Ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006
(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts)

Accumulated

Other
Common Stock Additional Retained Comprehensive Comprehensive
Shares Amount Paid in Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Total Income (Loss)
Balance, January 1, 200t 29,775,0L 297 202,23 (5,60%) 2,302 199,22¢
Net income — — — 13,267 — 13267 $ 13,267
Dividends on common stoc — — (35,439 (7,662) — (43,09¢) —
Shares issued under employee plan, net of forée 13,84! — — — — — —
Non-cash stock compensati — — 2,48: — — 2,48:
Purchase and retirement of common st (3,786,979 37 (56,78¢) — — (56,82) —
Reversal of minimum pension liability upon adopti
of SFAS No. 158, net of $303 of t — — — — 427 427 —
Recognition of funded status upon adoption of SFAS
No. 158, net of ($194) of te — — — — (329 (329) —
Unrealized gain on marketable securities, net df &
tax — — — — 49 49 49
Change in fair value of cash flow hedges, net of
($492) of tax — — — — (252) (252) (252)
Balance, December 31, 2006 26,001,87 26C 112,49¢ — 2,202 114,95¢ $ 13,06
Net income — — — 11,42% — 11,42% $ 11,42¢
Dividends on common stoc — — (30,09() (11,427) — (41,51 —
Issuance of common sto 3,319,14. 34 74,37¢ — — 74,41( —
Shares issued under employee plan, net of forés 126,83¢ — — — — — —
Non-cash stock compensati — — 4,03¢ — — 4,03¢
Purchase and retirement of common st (7,267) — (231) — — (131) —
Permanent portion of tax on restricted stock ves — — 38 — — 38 —
Recognition of funded status of pension and otlost
retirement benefit plans net of $1,606 of — — — — 2,78 2,78¢ 2,78¢
Change in fair value of cash flow hedges, net of
($6,139) of tay — — — — (10,639) (10,63¢) (10,63¢)
Balance, December 31, 20C 29,440,58 294 160,72 — (5,65)) 155,36t 3,57(

Effects of accounting change regarding postretirgr
plan measurement dates pursuant to SFAS
No. 158:
Service cost, interest cost, and expected retur
plan assets for October 1, 2007 through
December 31, 2007, net of ($88) of — — — (154) — (154) —
Amortization of prior service cost and net loss for
October 1, 2007 through December 31, 2007,

net of ($9) of ta — — — (15) 15 — —
— — — (169) 15 (154) —
Balance, January 1, 2008 as adjuste 29,440,58 294 160,72: (169) (5,63¢) 155,21: 3,57(C
Net income — — — 12,50¢ — 12,50¢ $ 12,504
Dividends on common stoc — — (33,147) (12,33%) — (45,47¢) —
Shares issued under employee plan, net of forés 71,467 — — — — — —
Non-cash stock compensati — 1 1,90( — — 1,901
Purchase and retirement of common st (23,64¢) — (257) — — (257) —
Permanent portion of tax on restricted stock ves — — (39) — — (39) —
Pension tax adjustme — — 97 — — 97 —
Change in prior service cost and net loss, net of
($18,730) of tay — — — — (31,76%) (31,76Y (31,76Y
Change in fair value of cash flow hedges, net of
($12,666) of tay — — — — (22,079) (22,07¢) (22,076)
Balance, December 31, 2008 29,488,40 $ 295 $ 129,28 $ — $ (69,479 $  70,10( $ (37,76%)

See accompanying notes
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Consolidated Communications Holdings, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Dollars in thousands)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash praViole operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortizatic
Loss on extinguishment of de
Deferred income ta
Intangible assets impairme
Extraordinary item, net of income t
Partnership incom
Non-cash stock compensati
Minority interest in net income of subsidie
Amortization of deferred financing cos
Changes in operating assets and liabilii
Accounts receivabl
Inventories
Other asset
Accounts payabl
Accrued expenses and other liabilit
Net cash provided by operating activit
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of investme
Proceeds from sale of ass
Securities purchase
Acquisition, net of cash acquirt
Capital expenditure
Net cash used in investing activiti
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of stc
Proceeds from lor-term obligations
Payments made on lo-term obligations
Repayment of North Pittsburgh Ic-term obligatior
Costs paid to issue common st
Payment of deferred financing co
Payment of capital lease obligati
Purchase and retirement of common st
Dividends on common stoc

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the

Supplemental cash flow informatit
Interest paic

Income taxes pai

Year Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006
$ 1250 $ 11,42 $ 13,267
91,67¢ 65,65¢ 67,43(
9,22¢ 10,32: —
(12,03%) (4,271) (11,379
6,05( — 11,24¢
(7,240 — —
(2,05€) (339 (1,889
1,901 4,03 2,482
862 627 721
1,431 3,12¢ 3,26(
(1,091) 171 1,107
(1,118 (22¢) (750)
5,08: 5,54¢ (3,089
(5,050) 1,25¢ (739)
(7,736) (15,266 2,92€
92,41 82,06¢ 84,59:
— 10,62t 5,921

— — 81t

— (10,625) —

— (271,78 —
(48,02 (33,49 (33,389
(48,027 (305,27%) (26,657)
120,00( 760,00 39,00(
(136,33) (464,00() —
— (15,426) —

— (400) —

(240) (8,98¢) (262)
(971) — —
(257) (131) (56,829
(45,449) (40,197 (44,597
(63,25 230,87 (62,679)
(18,870) 7,66¢ (4,737)
34,34 26,67 31,40¢
$ 15470 $ 3434° $ 26,67
$ 65060 $ 4434 $  4450¢
$ 1354C $ 1397¢ $ 8,237

See accompanying notes
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CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICATIONS HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per sharereunts)
1. Description of Business

Consolidated Communications Holdings, Inc. anavitelly-owned subsidiaries (the “Company”) operateler the name
Consolidated Communications. The Company is arbkstieed rural local exchange company (“RLEC”) prbrg
communications services to residential and busioestomers in lllinois, Texas and Pennsylvaniahvepproximately 264,323
local access lines, 74,687 Competitive Local Exgea@arrier (“CLEC”) access line equivalents, 91,8igital subscriber lines
(“DSL"), and 16,666 digital television subscribetise Company offers a wide range of telecommuroaatservices, including
local and long distance service, digital telephseevice, commonly known as Voice Over Internet &ot (“VOIP”) calling,
custom calling features, private line servicesl-dmand high-speed Internet access, digital TViieaaccess services, network
capacity services over a regional fiber optic nekydirectory publishing and CLEC calling servicége Company also
operates a number of complementary businesseagdingl telemarketing and order fulfillment, telepbaervices to county ja
and state prisons, equipment sales, operator sspand paging services and has investments imadevieeless partnerships.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of consolidatior

The consolidated financial statements include tw@ants of Consolidated Communications Holdings, &md its wholly-
owned subsidiaries and subsidiaries in which itdnaentrolling financial interest. All material @company balances and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith United States generally accepted accourgiiraciples requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfiéttthe reported amounts of assets and liatslgied disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date effittencial statements, and the reported amounsvehues and expenses during
the reporting periods. Actual results could difi@m the estimates and assumptions used.

Regulatory accounting

Historically, the Company’s lllinois and Texas Imeent Local Exchange Carrier (“ILEC”) operationideved the
accounting for regulated enterprises prescribe8mB&S No. 71'Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Ragon" .
This accounting recognizes the economic effectataf regulation by recording costs and a returimeestment as such
amounts are recovered through rates authorizeddlatory authorities. Recent changes to our ojpeimthowever, have
impacted the dynamics of the Company’s business@rmment and caused us to evaluate the applicabiliSFAS No. 71. In
the last half of 2008, we experienced a signifigaatease in competition in our lllinois and Texaarkets as, primarily, our
traditional cable competitors started offering wogervices. Also, effective July 1, 2008, we madelaction to transition from
rate of return to price cap regulation at the wsttete level for our Illinois and Texas operatiofise conversion to price caps
gives us greater pricing flexibility, especiallytime increasingly competitive special access segamhin launching new
products. Additionally, in response to customer dadhwe have also launched our own VOIP productioffeas an alternative
to our traditional wireline services. While ther@stbeen no material changes in our bundling styatad or in end-user pricing,
our pricing structure is transitioning from beingsled on the recovery of costs to a pricing stredbaised on market conditions.
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Based on the factors impacting its operationsQbmpany determined in the fourth quarter 2008, ttatpplication of
SFAS No. 71 for reporting its financial results i longer appropriate. SFAS No. 1@Regulated Enterprises -Accounting fol
the Discontinuance of Application of FASB StatenNmt71,” specifies the accounting required when an enisgpreases to
meet the criteria for application of SFAS No. 7EAS No. 101 requires the elimination of the effasftany actions of
regulators that have been recognized as assetmhitities in accordance with SFAS No. 71 but webulbt have been
recognized as assets and liabilities by nonregiilatterprises. Depreciation rates of certain agst#blished by regulatory
authorities for the Company’s telephone operatgurigect to SFAS No. 71 have historically includezbenponent for removal
costs in excess of the related estimated salvdge.Mdpon discontinuance of SFAS No. 71, the Companersed the impact
of recognizing removal costs in excess of the eel@stimated salvage value, which resulted in diéegra non-cash
extraordinary gain of $7,240, net of taxes of $4,IFhe gain was recognized in our Telephone Omrategment.

Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents consist of short-term, highlyitignvestments with a remaining maturity of threenths or less when
purchased.

Investments

If the Company can exercise significant influengerahe operations and financial policies of ailiated company, even
without control, the investment in the affiliateonepany is accounted for using the equity methothdfCompany does not he
control and also cannot exercise significant inilees the investment in the affiliated company isoanted for using the cost
method.

To determine whether an investment is impairedQbmpany monitors and evaluates the financial perémce of each
business in which it invests and compares the caynyalue of the investment to quoted market pr{fesvailable) or the fair
value of similar investments. In certain circumss) fair value is based on traditional valuatiaydeis utilizing a multiple of
cash flows. When circumstances indicate there baa hn other-than-temporary decline in the fain@alf the investment, the
Company records the decline in value as a realimpdirment loss and a reduction in the cost ofithestment.

Accounts receivable and allowance for doubtful acecds

Accounts receivable consist primarily of amounte tluthe Company from normal activities. A receleab determined to
be past due when the amount is overdue based qagtmeent terms with the customer. In certain cirstamces, the Company
requires deposits from customers to mitigate p@knsk associated with receivables. The Compaajntains an allowance for
doubtful accounts to reflect management’s bestnesé of probable losses inherent in the accountsvable balance.
Management determines the allowance for doubtftbasts based on known troubled accounts, histogxaérience, and other
currently available evidence. Accounts receivabéeveritten off when management determines theymatibe collected.

Inventories

Inventories consist mainly of copper and fiber eahlat will be used for network expansion and uggsaand materials
and equipment used to maintain and install telepteystems. Inventories are stated at the loweostfar market using the
average cost method.

Goodwill and other intangible assets

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounfitandards No. 142Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”
goodwill and intangible assets that have indefingeful lives are not amortized, but rather artetbat least annually for
impairment. Tradenames have been determined toihdeénite lives; thus they are not amortized, e tested annually for
impairment using discounted cash flows based atief from royalty method. The Company evaluatesdarrying value of
goodwill in the fourth quarter of each year and panes the carrying value for each reporting unihvis fair value to
determine whether impairment exists. If impairmisrdetermined to exist, any related impairment lesslculated based upon
fair value. Based upon its analysis in the fourhrter of 2008, the Company recognized an impaitrolearge $6,050 on the
goodwill of its telemarketing and order fulfillmebtisiness, Consolidated Communications Market Resp@art of the Other
Operations segment.
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SFAS No. 142 also provides that assets that haite fives should be amortized over their usefugdi. Customer lists are
amortized on a straight-line basis over their eatad useful lives (ranging from 5 to 13 years) daggon the Company’s
historical experience with customer attrition. btardance with Statement of Financial Accountirgn8ards No. 144
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Lotiged Assets! the Company evaluates the potential impairmeffinae-
lived acquired intangible assets when impairmedicitors exist. If the carrying value is no longecoverable based upon the
undiscounted future cash flows of the asset, theuatnof the impairment is the difference betweendhrrying amount and the
fair value of the asset.

Property, plant and equipmer

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at €bstcost of additions, replacements, and majorévgments is
capitalized, while repairs and maintenance aregdthto expense as incurred. Depreciation is detetibased upon the assets
estimated useful lives using either the group 6t method.

The group method is used for depreciable assetsated to providing regulated telecommunicatiorvieess, including th
majority of the network and outside plant facilitié\ depreciation rate for each asset group isldped based on the group’s
average useful life. This method requires perioeigsion of depreciation rates. When an individasdet is sold or retired, the
difference between the proceeds, if any, and tBeafahe asset is charged or credited to accuediidépreciation, without
recognition of a gain or loss.

The unit method is primarily used for buildingstrfiture, fixtures, and other support assets. Eashtas depreciated on
the straight-line basis over its estimated uséfel When an individual asset is sold or retirdaes tost basis of the asset and
related accumulated depreciation are removed fhamatcounts and any associated gain or loss igmezsa.

Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Years
Buildings 15-35
Network and outside plant faciliti¢ 5-40
Furniture, fixtures, and equipme 5-17
Capital lease ass 11

Revenue recognitiol

Revenue is recognized when evidence of an arrangesmists, the earnings process is complete, alhectibility is
reasonably assured. Marketing incentives, incluthimgdle discounts, are recognized as revenue fiedadh the period the
service is provided.

Local calling services, enhanced calling featuspecial access circuits, long distance flat-ratiénggplans, and most data
services are billed to end users in advance. Bilgdunearned revenue is deferred and recordedvianae billings and
customer deposits.

Revenues for usage-based services, such as petentong distance service and access charges hillether telephone
carriers for originating and terminating long dista calls on the Company’s network, are billedrme@rs. Revenues are
recognized in the period these services are reddEggned but unbilled usage-based services apedett in accounts
receivable.

Subsidies, including universal service revenuesgavernment-sponsored support to subsidize serinc@ostly rural,
high-cost areas. These revenues typically are bas@uformation provided by the Company and areudated by the
administering government agency. Subsidies aregrézed in the period the service is provided; dyieriod subsidy
adjustments are recognized in the period they eeenéd probable and estimable. There is a reasopafdility that out of
period subsidy adjustments will be recorded infttiere. Out of period subsidy adjustments were $illion, ($2.6) million
and ($1.3) million in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respetyi
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Revenues from operator services, paging servieksnarketing, and order fulfillment services areognized monthly as
services are provided. Telephone equipment revegersrated from retail channels are recorded gidire of sale.
Telecommunications systems and structured cablioggt revenues are recognized when the projexdingpleted and billed.
Maintenance services are provided on both a cdrarattime and material basis and are recorded Wteeservice is provided.
Print advertising and publishing revenues are reizegl ratably over the life of the related diregtarenerally twelve months.

The Company reports taxes imposed by governmeuthabsties on revenue-producing transactions betvtke Company
and our customers that are within the scope of BNOF06-03, “How Taxes Collected from Customers and Remitted to
Governmental Authorities Should Be Presented inrtbeme Statemefiiin the consolidated financial statements on abaeis.

Advertising cost:

The costs of advertising are charged to expenseaged. Advertising expenses totaled $2,308 i6&2&1,944 in 2007,
and $1,266 in 2006.

Income taxes

Consolidated Communications Holdings, Inc. anavitelly-owned subsidiaries file a consolidated fedé@mcome tax
return. The majority-owned subsidiary, East Tex#eiFLine Incorporated (“ETFL"), files a separaesléral income tax return.
Some state income tax returns are filed on a cataeld basis; others are filed on a separate gl basis. Federal and state
income tax expense or benefit is allocated to sablsidiary based on separately determined taxabterie or loss.

Amounts in the financial statements related to inedaxes are calculated in accordance with Stateofiéfinancial
Accounting Standards No. 108ccounting for Income Taxes"On January 1, 2007, the Company adopted FASBplir&tation
No. 48“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income TaxesJ account for uncertainty in income taxes recogghim the Company’s
financial statements in accordance with SFAS N@. For more information, please see Note 10.

Deferred income taxes are provided for the tempatdferences between assets and liabilities reizeghfor financial
reporting purposes and assets and liabilities ngized for tax purposes, as well as for operatiisg End tax credit
carryforwards. Deferred income tax assets andliligisi are measured using tax rates expected tly &ppaxable income in the
years in which those temporary differences are expkto be recovered or settled. The Company rearaluation allowanc
for deferred income tax assets when, in the opinfananagement, it is more likely than not thatedefd tax assets will not be
realized.

Provisions for federal and state income taxes al@iated on reported pre-tax earnings based aermutax law and also
may include, in the current period, the cumulagffect of any changes in tax rates from those tsegtermine deferred tax
assets and liabilities. Such provisions may dififem the amounts currently receivable or payablshbse certain items of
income and expense are recognized in one timed@idinancial reporting purposes and anotheiifioome tax purposes.
Significant judgment is required in determiningante tax provisions and evaluating tax positionsrEW the Company
believes its tax positions are fully supportabieyill establish reserves for income tax when inisre likely than not there
remain income tax contingencies that will be chrjisd and possibly disallowed. The consolidategtaxision and related
accruals include the impact of such reasonablyneséid losses. To the extent the probable tax owsarfithese matters
change, those changes will alter the income taxigiom in the period in which such determinatiomiade.

Stocl-based compensation

The Company maintains a restricted share plarptieatdes for the issuance of common shares to kgyayees to
motivate them to enhance their long-term performeaarad to provide incentive to join or remain witle tCompany. The
Company accounts for shabased compensation under Statement of Financiadukting Standards No. 123(R) which requ
all share-based payments to employees, includiagtgiof employee stock options, to be recognizetarfinancial statements
based on their fair values. The Company adoptedSSRé. 123(R) effective July 1, 2005, using the rfiediprospective
transition method. Under the guidelines of SFAS N8(R), the Company recognized non-cash stock easgiion expense of
$1,901 in 2008, $4,034 in 2007, and $2,482 in 2006.
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Financial instruments and derivatives

As of December 31, 2008, the Company'’s financisirimments consist of cash and cash equivalentsyatsreceivable,
accounts payable, and long-term debt obligation®écember 31, 2008, and 2007, the carrying valukese financial
instruments approximated fair value, except forGloenpany’s senior notes payable, which were retime&pril 2008. As of
December 31, 2007, the carrying value and fairezaliuithe senior notes approximated $130,000 an8,908, respectively.

Derivative instruments are accounted for in accocdavith Statement of Financial Accounting Standadd. 133 “
Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedgirgivity ”. SFAS No. 133 provides comprehensive and condistandards
for the recognition and measurement of derivativet flredging activities. It requires that derivatibesrecorded on the
consolidated balance sheet at fair value and ésitasl criteria for hedges of changes in fair vahfesssets, liabilities, or firm
commitments; hedges of variable cash flows of faséed transactions; and hedges of foreign currerpgsures of net
investments in foreign operations. To the extedé@vative qualifies as a cash flow hedge, the gailoss associated with the
effective portion is recorded as a component ofulmglated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss). Chaingbe fair value of
derivatives that do not meet the criteria for hexdgie recognized in the consolidated statemerdparfations. When an interest
rate swap agreement terminates, any resultingagdss is recognized over the shorter of the ramgioriginal term of the
hedging instrument or the remaining life of the eriging debt obligation. The Company does not #pdite any
nonperformance by any counterparty.

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassifietbhform to the current year's presentation. Thieskssifications had
no effect on total assets, total shareholders’tggtatal revenue, income from operations or nebime.

Recent Accounting Pronouncemen

In June 2008, FASB issued FASB Staff Position (“H3. EITF 03-6-1 “Determining Whether Instruments Granted in
Share-Based Payment Transactions are ParticipaBiagurities’. This FSP provides that unvested share-based @atyawards
that contain nonforfeitable rights to dividendsdioridend equivalents (whether paid or unpaid) asigipating securities and
should be included in the computation of earningsgmare pursuant to the two-class method. Thisig8ffective for financial
statements issued for fiscal years beginning &fearember 15, 2008, and interim periods within thosars. Early application
of this FSP is prohibited. The Company does notekpny material financial statement impact onrutesults of operations
and financial condition.

In December 2008, the FASB issued FSP SFAS 132(RJHAS 132(R)-1"),"Employers’ Disclosures about
Postretirement Benefit Plan As<” which provides guidance on an emplogadisclosures about plan assets of a defined h
pension and other postretirement plan. SFAS 132(R)juires employers to disclose the fair valueaath major category of
plan assets as of each annual reporting date fiwhvehstatement of financial position is presentkd;inputs and valuation
technique used to develop fair value measuremédmuisio assets at the annual reporting date, incfuthie level within the fair
value hierarchy in which the fair value measureméalt as defined by SFAS No. 157; investment pesi@nd strategies,
including target allocation percentages; and sigaift concentrations of risk in plan assets. SFBHR)-1 is effective for fisce
years ending after December 15, 2009 and will aeelimpact on future results of operations andnfire condition.
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In March 2008, the FASB issued Statement of Fir@netcounting Standards No. 161 (“SFAS No. 161isclosure
about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activitieen Amendment of FASB Statement No.”138AS No. 161 requires
entities that utilize derivative instruments toydd® qualitative disclosures about their objectigad strategies for using such
instruments, as well as any details of credit-rislated contingent features contained within derres. SFAS No. 161 also
requires reporting entities to disclose additian&drmation about the amounts and location of deiices within the financial
statements, how the provisions of Statement ofrigiiah Accounting Standards No. 133 “Accounting Berivative Instruments
and Hedging Activities” have been applied, andithpact that hedges have on the entity’s finanailton, financial
performance, and cash flows. SFAS No. 161 is affecor fiscal years and interim periods beginnaftgr November 15, 2008,
with early adoption encouraged. The Company cugrgmbvides information about its hedging activstiand use of derivatives
in its quarterly and annual filings with the SE@gluding many of the disclosure requirements pibsedrby SFAS No. 161.
While SFAS No. 161 will have an impact on discl@&syit will not have an impact on the Company’sifatresults of
operations and financial condition.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement offEinbAccounting Standards No. 160 (“SFAS No. 160")
Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financgthtemen—an Amendment of ARB No.'5BFAS No. 160 clarifies that a
noncontrolling interest in a consolidated subsidihrould be reported as equity in the consolidétexhcial statements. It also
requires consolidated net income to include thewantsoattributable to both the parent and the notnobling interest. The
Company has adopted SFAS No. 160 effective Jariué2909. If the Company had adopted SFAS No. 16§f danuary 1,
2009, the Company would have reported a noncomtgoihterest of $5,185 as a component of equitgfddecember 31, 2008
and additional earnings attributed to the minaritgrest of $863 for the year then ended. The hotnyzact of adoption will
depend upon earnings attributable to minority edgém 2009.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement ofnEinbAccounting Standards No. 141 (revised 2003FAS No. 141
(R)") “ Business CombinatiorisSFAS No. 141(R) retains the fundamental requésts of the original pronouncement
requiring that the purchase method be used fdnaliness combinations. SFAS No. 141(R) defineatiogiirer as the entity tt
obtains control of one or more businesses in anlegsicombination, establishes the acquisitionathe date the acquirer
achieves control, and requires the acquirer togeize the assets acquired, liabilities assumedaagdon-controlling interest
at their fair values as of the acquisition dateASMo. 141(R) also requires, among other thingst dlcquisitionrelated costs t
recognized separately from the acquisition. The @amy is required to adopt SFAS No. 141(R) effecfiaauary 1, 2009, and
expects it will affect acquisitions made hereafteough the impact will depend upon the size artdreeof the acquisition. In
addition, the $5,740 liability for unrecognized taenefits discussed in Note 10, as of Decembe2@183 relate to tax positions
of acquired entities taken prior to their acquisitby the Company. Liabilities settled for lessmoants will affect the income
tax expense in the period of reversal.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 15FASSNo. 1577), “Fair Value Measurements3SFAS No. 157
defines fair value, establishes a framework for sneag fair value in generally accepted accoungirigciples, and expands
disclosures about fair value measurements. The @oynpas adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 157 daraiary 1, 2008, fc
financial instruments that are required to be mesbat fair value on a recurring basis. SFAS N@. d&ablishes a three-tier
fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputsed in measuring fair value. These tiers incll@eel 1, defined as observal
inputs such as quoted prices in active marketselL2vdefined as inputs other than quoted pricestive markets that are
either directly or indirectly observable; and Le@eHdefined as unobservable inputs in which litleno market data exists,
therefore requiring an entity to develop its owswmsptions. For additional information about the aoipof SFAS No.157 on tl
results of operations and financial condition, peeefer to Note 15.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement afi€ial Accounting Standards No. 15&hployers’ Accounting for
Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretiremeahf—an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106,32(R)'.
SFAS No. 158 requires an entity to (a) recognizisistatement of financial position an asset oolaligation for a defined
benefit postretirement plan’s funded status, (bhsnee a defined benefit postretirement plan’s assal obligations that
determine its funded status as of the end of thal@yar’s fiscal year, and (c) recognize changes in thdddrstatus of a defin
benefit postretirement plan in comprehensive incomthe year in which the changes occur. The Compatopted the
recognition and related disclosure provisions cASHo. 158 effective December 31, 2006. After camig the Texas and
lllinois pension plans on December 31, 2007, thm@any adopted the measurement date provisionsAE 6. 158 effective
January 1, 2008, for pension and postretirememisphath measurement dates other than Decembee&dlting in an increase
to opening accumulated deficit on January 1, 2008,169 net of tax of $97.
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3. Acquisition

On December 31, 2007, the Company acquired aletapital stock of North Pittsburgh Systems, (Hgorth
Pittsburgh”). As a result, the Company acquiredRa&C that serves portions of Allegheny, ArmstroBgtler, and
Westmoreland counties in western Pennsylvania; BCthat serves small to mid-sized businesses ishRitgh and its
surrounding suburbs as well as in Butler Countytra@rnet Service Provider that furnishes broadtsardices in western
Pennsylvania; and minority interests in three datlpartnerships and one competitive access pravide results of operations
for North Pittsburgh are included in the Compariglephone operations segment for December 31, 20@irthereafter.

The Company accounted for the North Pittsburgh s@ttpn using the purchase method of accountingoddingly, the
financial statements reflect the allocation of tht&l purchase price to the net tangible and intdagssets acquired based on
their respective fair values. At the time of theuaisition, 80% of the shares of North Pittsburghweted into the right to
receive $25.00 per share in cash; each of the reéngashares converted into the right to receiv@@1947 shares of common
stock of the Company, or 3,318,480 shares of statiked at $74,398, net of issuance fees. The pot@hase price, including
acquisition costs and net of $32,902 of cash aeduivas allocated according to the following tatlkich summarizes the fair
values of the North Pittsburgh assets acquirediahilities assumed:

Current assel $ 17,72¢
Property, plant and equipme 116,30¢
Customer lis 49,00(
Goodwill 214,56:
Investments and other ass 53,36(
Liabilities assumei (103,93)
Net purchase pric $ 347,02t

Because of the proximity of this transaction to phier year-end, the values of certain assets iabdities were based on
preliminary valuations and were subject to adjustinas additional information was obtained. Adjusttseof $173 were made
to goodwill during the year ended December 31, 200@ adjustments consist of $448 in additionali&ition costs incurred,
$333 adjustment to the capital lease liability &@08) in liabilities assumed.

The aggregate purchase price was through a negpbtiéd and was influenced by the Company’s assegsmi¢he value
of the overall North Pittsburgh business. The digant goodwill value reflects the Company’s vigvat the North Pittsburgh
business could generate strong cash flow and aatkgarnings following the acquisition. All of theodwill recorded as part
this acquisition is allocated to the Telephone @pens segment. The customer list is being amattmeer its estimated useful
life of five years. The goodwill and other intanigi associated with this acquisition were not déblecfor tax purposes.

Because the acquisition occurred on December 3I7,28e Company’s consolidated financial statemprits to 2008 do
not include the results of operations for Northdbitirgh. Unaudited pro forma results of operatideis for the years ended
December 31, 2007, and 2006, as if the acquisitamhoccurred at the beginning of the period preskate as follows:

December 31

2007 2006
Total revenue $ 42491 $  424,23.
Income from operatior $ 59,75: $ 67,69¢
Proforma net incom $ 5,592 $ 26,88¢
Income per shar— basic $ 0.1¢ $ 0.87
Income per shar— diluted $ 0.1¢ $ 0.8%
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4. Prepaids and other current assets
Prepaids and other current assets consist of thesvfog:

December 31,

2008 2007
Deferred charge $ 981 $ 1,33¢
Prepaid expenst 5,91 7,86¢
Other current asse 37 1,16(C
$ 6,931 $ 10,35¢

5. Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment, net consist of tfiewing:

December 31

2008 2007

Property, plant and equipme
Land and building: $ 65,84( $ 65,12¢
Network and outside plant facilitie 808,88t 781,68:
Furniture, fixtures and equipme 83,88¢ 79,944
Assets under capital leas 5,14¢ 6,032
Work in proces: 10,54( 10,251
974,29¢ 943,03¢
Less: accumulated depreciati (574,01) (531,399
Net property, plant and equipme $ 400,28t $ 411,64

Depreciation expense totaled $69,516 in 2008, $62i7 2007, and $53,170 in 2006.
6. Investments
Investments consist of the following:

December 31

2008 2007

Cash surender value of life insurance poli $ 1,77¢ $ 2,56¢
Cost method investment

GTE Mobilnet of South Texas Limited Partners 21,45( 21,45(

Pittsburgh SMSA Limited Partnerst 22,95( 22,95(

CoBank, ACB stocl 2,651 2,38¢

Other 10 18
Equity method investment

GTE Mobilnet of Texas RSA #17 Limited PartnersHi@.02% owned 17,11¢ 15,35¢

Pennsylvania RSA 6(l) Limited Partnership (16.672&%ned) 7,27¢ 7,102

Pennsylvania RSA 6(ll) Limited Partnership (23.6@%ned) 22,26 21,94¢

Boulevard Communications, LLP (50% ownt 15¢ 167

Fort Bend Fibernet Limited Partnership (39.06% oaiyt — 19z

$ 95,655 $ 94,14:

78




Table of Contents

CoBank is a cooperative bank, owned by its custenfamnually, CoBank distributes patronage in thenfof cash and
stock in the cooperative based on the Compaaytstanding loan balance with CoBank, who hatttomally been a significar
lender in the Company’s credit facility. The invasint in CoBank represents the accumulation of tjuéty patronage paid by
CoBank to the Company.

The Company owns 2.34% of GTE Mobilnet of Southd®kimited Partnership (the “Mobilnet South Parshgs”). The
principal activity of the Mobilnet South Partnensiis providing cellular service in the Houston, @adton, and Beaumont,
Texas metropolitan areas. The Company also ow¥38df Pittsburgh SMSA Limited Partnership (“Pittsta SMSA”), which
provides cellular service in and around the Pittgbunetropolitan area. Because of its limited iafloe over these partnerships,
the Company accounts for both under the cost method

The Company owns 17.02% of GTE Mobilnet of Texa®\R&7 Limited Partnership (“RSA 17"Yhe principal activity a
RSA 17 is providing cellular service to a limitagral area in Texas. The Company also owns 16.67#3&nnsylvania RSA 6
() Limited Partnership (“RSA 6(1)"), and 23.67% Bennsylvania RSA 6(lIl) Limited Partnership (“RS@AIB). These limited
partnerships provide cellular service in and arotimedCompanys Pennsylvania service territory. In addition, @@mpany has
50% ownership interest in Boulevard Communicatidh$, a competitive access provider in western Bglmania. The
Company has some influence over the operatingianddial policies of these four entities, and actedor the investments
using the equity method. Summarized financial imfation was as follows:

2008 2007 2006

For the year ended December 31

Total revenue $ 212,49¢ $ 180,41 $ 49,29¢
Income from operatior 50,47¢ 41,68: 15,161
Income before income tax 50,47¢ 42,68( 15,63:
Net income 50,61¢ 42,68( 15,63:
As of December 31:

Current asseti 33,58¢ 31,04¢ 14,40¢
Non-current assel 74,52: 64,17: 34,39¢
Current liabilities 8,931 8,86¢ 1,84¢
Non-current liabilities 567 46¢ 24¢€
Partnership equit 98,60: 85,88¢ 46,097

The Company received partnership distributiondite$7,892, $1,872 and $1,099 from its equity metmvestments in
2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

7. Minority Interest

ETFL is a joint venture owned 63% by the Company 3r% by Eastex Celco. ETFL provides connectivitgértain
customers within Texas over a fiber optic transpettvork.

8. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, goodwill and tredees are not amortized but are subject to impairtesting—eithel
annually, or more frequently if circumstances iagicimpairment. In December 2008, the Company ceteglits annual
impairment test relying primarily on a discountesie flow valuation technique and determined goddvak impaired in the
Market Response reporting unit within the Other @piens segment because of a decline in fair vdlieeto underperformance
of the business. As a result, an impairment chaf@®,050 was recognized. In December 2007 and,20flar testing
indicated no impairment of goodwill existed.
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The following table presents the carrying amourgaddwill by segment:

Telephone Other

Operations Operations Total
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 308,85( $ 7,18¢ $ 316,03«
Utilization and release of NOL valuation allowar (3,989 — (3,989
Purchase of North Pittsburg 214,38¢ — 214,38¢
Balance at December 31, 2C 519,25! 7,18¢ 526,43¢
Adjustment to purchase of North Pittsbui 172 — 172
Impairment — (6,050 (6,050
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 519,42 $ 1,134 $ 520,56.

The Company’s most valuable tradename is the fédeegistered mark CONSOLIDATED, which is usedassociation
with our telephone communication services anddssgn of interlocking circles. The Company’s caogte branding strategy
leverages a CONSOLIDATED naming structure. All Imesis units and several names of products and esrivicorporate the
CONSOLIDATED name. These tradenames are indefinitshewable intangibles. The carrying value ofttadenames totaled
$14,291 at December 31, 2008 and 2007. In Dece#088 and 2007, the Company completed its annuaimmgnt test using
discounted cash flows based on a relief from rgyakthod and determined that there was no impairwfethe Company’s
tradenames. In December 2006, similar testing atdit that the recorded value of tradenames wasriatpia the Operator
Services reporting unit within the Other Operatisegment. As a result an impairment charge of $2&brecognized. The
2006 tradenames impairment was due to lower thewiquisly anticipated revenues with the OperatoviSes reporting unit.

The Company’s customer lists consist of an estabtidase of customers that subscribe to its senicddecember 2006,
the Company identified a decline in current andguted cash flows from customers within two repagtunits—Operator
Services and Telemarketing Services—both withinQtiger Operations segment. The Company completéu@airment test
and determined that the value of its customemiest partially impaired, and recognized an impairmuoiarge of $10,985.

The carrying amount of customer lists is as follows

December 31

2008 2007
Gross carrying amoul $ 205,64¢ $ 205,64¢
Less: accumulated amortizati (81,399 (59,237
Net carrying amour $ 124,24¢ $ 146,41:

The net carrying value of the customer lists wéscated to the business segments as follows: $622@ Telephone
Operations and $1,785 to Other Operations as oélber 31, 2008 and $144,161 to Telephone Operadioti$2,250 to Otht
Operations as of December 31, 2007. The aggregatetiaation expense associated with customerwsis $22,163 for the
year ended December 31, 2008, $12,862 for 2007$24@60 for 2006. The net carrying value at Decan®d, 2008 is bein
amortized using a weighted average life of appretaty 6.4 years. The estimated future amortizagiqmense follows:

Calendar 200! $ 22,16:
Calendar 2011 22,13¢
Calendar 201, 22,13¢
Calendar 201, 22,13¢
Calendar 201 8,32t
Thereaftel 27,34¢

$ 124,24
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9. Affiliated Transactions

Richard A. Lumpkin, Chairman of the Company, togetlith his family, beneficially owns 49.7% of Agel, Inc.
(“Agracel”), a real estate investment company. Mmpkin also is a director of Agracel.

Agracel is the sole managing member and 50% owhieA®EL LLC (“LATEL"). Mr. Lumpkin directly owns the
remaining 50% of LATEL. The Company leases certdiite and warehouse space from LATEL. The tripi leases require
the Company to pay substantially all expenses &sacwith general maintenance and repair, utiljtissurance, and taxes
associated with the leased facilities. The Compeanggnized rent expense of $1,387 in 2008, $1,82007, and $1,320 in
2006 in connection with these operating leasesteltvas no associated lease payable balance outsgjatddecember 31,
2008, or 2007. The leases expire in July 2011 bntain provisions for automatic renewal of one yteams through 2013.

Agracel is the sole managing member and 66.7% oofIACC, LLC (“MACC"). Mr. Lumpkin, together withhis
family, owns the remainder of MACC. The Companysksacertain office space from MACC. The Companggaized rent
expense in the amount of $192, $155, and $132 g@0®8, 2007 and 2006, respectively, in connectiibh this lease, which
expires in August 2012.

Mr. Lumpkin, together with members of his familgreficially owns 100% of SKL Investment Group, LEGKL"). The
Company charged SKL $45 in 2008, 2007 and 2006ewely, for use of office space, computers,pghtine service, and
other office-related services.

Mr. Lumpkin also has an ownership interest in Aidéd-1llinois Bancshares, Inc. (“First Mid-lllinof$, which provides the
Company with general banking services, includingad#ory, disbursement, and payroll accounts atickreent plan
administrative services, on terms comparable tedlavailable to other large business accountsCbinepany provides
telecommunications products and services to FiidtllMnois based upon standard prices for stratdmisiness customers.
Following is a summary of the transactions betwthenCompany and First Mid-lllinois:

Year ended December 31

2008 2007 2006
Fees charged from First M-llinois for:
Banking fees $ 11 $ 10 $ 10
401K plan adminstratio 65 81 10C
Interest income earned by the Company on depdditsst Mid-lllinois 48 174 20¢€
Fees charged by the Company to First Mid-lllin@istelecommunicatior
services 482 46& 542

In 2008, the Checkley Agency, a wholly-owned insaeabrokerage subsidiary of First Mid-lllinois, edeed a $145
commission relating to insurance and risk manageés®mwices provided to the Company.
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10. Income Taxes

The components of the income tax provision arelgvis:

Current:
Federal
State

Deferred:
Federal
State

Income tax expens

Year Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006

1251¢ $ 7,79 $  10,15:
6,15z 1,15¢ 1,63:
18,67 8,04¢ 11,78«
(9,650) (1,529) (4,56¢)
(2,387) (2,749 (6,81
(12,03) (4,271) (11,379
663 $ 467/ $ 40F

The following is a reconciliation between the staity federal income tax rate and the Comparoyerall effective tax rat

Statutory federal income tax re

State income taxes, net of federal ber
Stock compensatia

Other permanent differenc

Change in tax lav

Change in deferred tax re

Other

Year Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006
35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
27.C 2.5 2.1

1.7 4.7 6.4

4.3 1.9 3.2

— (10.7) (45.9)
9.9 (5.4) 2.C
2.9 1. —
55.£% 29.0% 3.0%

Cash paid for federal and state income taxes wa$4Q during 2008, $13,976 during 2007, and $8@8ihg 2006.
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Deferred Tax Asset
Net deferred taxes consist of the following compdse

Year Ended December 31,

2008 2007
Current deferred tax asse
Reserve for uncollectible accoul $ 862 $ 877
Accrued vacation pay deducted when [ 1,20C 1,25¢
Accrued expenses and deferred reve 1,53¢ 2,41F
3,60( 4,551
Noncurrent deferred tax asse
Net operating loss carryforwar 1,99¢ 5,96¢
Pension and postretirement obligatis 40,18¢ 25,16!
Stock compensatic 251 15¢
Derivative instrument 17,32 4,657
State tax credit carryforwal 2,45( 2,441
Valuation Allowance — (2,877
62,20 35,51¢
Noncurrent deferred tax liabilitie
Goodwill and other intangible (44,487 (50,487
Partnership investme (22,207 (22,09¢)
Property, plant and equipme (53,649 (60,229
(120,339 (132,807
Net nor-current deferred tax liabilitie (58,139 (97,289
Net deferred income tax liabilitie $ (54,539 % (92,739

Deferred income taxes are provided for the tempatdferences between assets and liabilities reizeghfor financial
reporting purposes and assets and liabilities neized for tax purposes. The ultimate realizatiodeferred tax assets depends
upon taxable income during the future periods ictvithose temporary differences become deducfitdedetermine whether
deferred tax assets can be realized, managemessassvhether it is more likely than not that sporéon or all of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized, takinig @onsideration the scheduled reversal of defaaediabilities, projected
future taxable income, and tax planning strategies.

Based upon historical taxable income and projestfonfuture taxable income over the periods thatdeferred tax assets
are deductible, management believes it is mordylitkean not that the Company will realize the bésedf these temporary
differences. However, management may reduce theiainod deferred tax assets it considers realizabibe near term if
estimates of future taxable income during the darvward period are reduced. The amount of projefitadte taxable income is
expected to allow for the full utilization of thethoperating loss (NOL) carryforwards as describeldw.

Consolidated Communications Holdings, Inc. whidésfia consolidated federal income tax return wigwiholly-owned
subsidiaries has fully utilized its NOL as of Dedmn31, 2008.

ETFL, a nonconsolidated subsidiary for federal imedax return purposes, estimates it has availd@le carryforwards ¢
December 31, 2008 of approximately $3,327 for fabicome tax purposes to offset future taxablemne. During 2008
ETFL’s NOL and related valuation allowance was by $3,831 for the portion of the NOL determimedto be utilizable
due to limitations as prescribed by §382 of therml Revenue Code. ETFL'’s federal NOL carryforgaegpire from 2009 to
2024.

During 2008 the deferred tax asset related to statene tax NOL carryforwards and related valuatdtiowance totaling
$1,530 that was recorded as a result of the adiguisif North Pittsburgh Systems, Inc. and Subsidsawas reduced by $633
for the portion of the NOL determined not to bdizdible due to limitations as prescribed by §38#hef Internal Revenue Code
and as adopted by the state of Pennsylvania. liti@udhe valuation allowance on state NOL carrwfards was reduced by
$834 for the portion of the NOL determined to biyfutilizable based on taxable income projectiforsthe periods in which
the deferred tax assets are deductible. As a rektliese adjustments, the 2007 NOL utilizationvigion to return adjustments
and the 2008 projected utilization of state NObg, Company estimates it has available state NOlyfoawards at
December 31, 2008 of approximately $12,839 andeaeldeferred tax assets of $834. The valuationvalhce on state NOLs
has been reduced to $0 at December 31, 2008. Tasecof the valuation allowance on state incom&alLs was recorded as
an increase to goodwill. The state NOL carryforvgagspire from 2020 to 2027.
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Texas Legislation

In 2007, Texas amended the 2006 tax legislatiorchvhiodified the Texas franchise tax calculatioa teew “margin tax”
calculation used to derive Texas taxable income. Mbst significant impact of this amendment onGoenpany was the
revision of the temporary credit on taxable maanverting state loss carryforwards to a statetagit carryforward of $3,7¢
and related deferred tax asset of $2,441. Thislagislation effectively reduced the Company’s nefiedred tax liabilities and
created a corresponding credit to its tax provigibapproximately $1,729 in 2007. During 2008, $86he Texas state tax
credit carryforward was utilized. The Texas statedredit carryforward of $3,669 and the relateféded tax asset of $2,385 is
limited annually and expires in 2027.

Unrecognized Tax Benefits

The Company adopted FIN 48 effective January 172Gith no impact on its results of operations aaficial condition,
and has analyzed filing positions in all of thedead and state jurisdictions where it is requir@dile income tax returns, as well
as all open tax years in these jurisdictions. F8\Ckarifies the accounting for uncertainty in inaotaxes recognized in a
company'’s financial statements; prescribes a ratogrthreshold and measurement attribute for therfcial statement
recognition and measurement of a tax position takexxpected to be taken in a tax return; and ples/guidance on
description, classification, interest and penalt&sounting in interim periods, disclosure, arahsition.

As of December 31, 2008, and December 31, 2007Arimint of unrecognized tax benefits was $5,7408&n0130,
respectively. The total amount of unrecognized benthat, if recognized, would affect the effeeitax rate is currently $0.
Subsequent to the adoption of SFAS No. 141(R) analy 1, 2009, the total amount of unrecognizedbethat, if
recognized, would affect the effective tax ratg5s740.

For the year ended December 31, 2008, there watdenrease of $290 to the balance of unrecogézebenefits
reported at December 31, 2007. This net decreabedies a decrease of $562 due to the expirati@®08 and 2004 federal a
state statutes of limitations, of which only $232glilan effect on the effective tax rate. The abamehse was partially offset
an increase of $273 related to the 2007 incoméiltag for North Pittsburgh, of which $0 had ane&dt on the effective tax rat

The Company is continuing its practice of recogrgzinterest and penalties related to income taxersin interest
expense and general and administrative expengmatdgely. When it adopted FIN 48, the Company hadccrual balance for
interest and penalties. For the twelve months elmmber 31, 2008, the Company accrued $235 dfitezest and penalties
and in total has recognized a liability for intérasd penalties of $633. For the twelve months érdlecember 31, 2007, the
Company accrued $224 of net interest and penaltidsn total had recognized a liability for interasd penalties of $398.

The only periods subject to examination for the @any’s federal return are years 2005 through 2007. Eniegs subjec
to examination for the Company'’s state returnsyasrs 2004 through 2007. The Company is curremtien examination by
both federal and state tax authorities. The Compa®g not expect that any settlement or paymentribg result from the
audits will have a material effect on results oéigtions or cash flows.

The Company does not anticipate that the totalaoumrized tax benefits will significantly change daghe settlements of

audits and the expiration of statute of limitatiamshe next twelve months. There were no matetiahges to any of these
amounts during 2008.
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoafninrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

Liability for
Unrecognized Ta

Benefits
Balance at January 1, 20 $ 6,03(
Additions for tax positions of acquisitic —
Reductions for lapse of 2003 and 2004 federal #ate statute of limitation (562)
Additions for tax positions of prior yea 272
Reduction for lapse of 2003 federal statute oftitions —
Reduction for lapse of 2002 state statute of litittes —
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 5,74(

11. Accrued Expenses
Accrued expenses consist of the following:

December 31,

2008 2007
Salaries and employee bene $ 9,45:% $ 10,35(
Taxes payabl 6,00 5,18(
Accrued interes 78E 3,614
Other accrued expens 8,342 9,11(

$ 24,58¢ $ 28,25¢

12. Pension Costs and Other Postretirement Benefits

The Company has several defined benefit pensiors@avering substantially all of its hourly emplegeCertain salaried
employees are also covered by defined benefit plahish are now frozen. The pension plans, whialegally are
noncontributory, provide retirement benefits basegears of service and earnings. The Companyiboigs amounts
sufficient to meet the minimum funding requiremesssset forth in employee benefit and tax laws.

The Company also has a qualified supplemental pamqdan (“Restoration Plan@overing certain former North Pittsbur
employees. The Restoration Plan restores benkéitsate precluded under the pension plan by Int&eaenue Service limits
on compensation and benefits applicable to qudlifiension plans, and by the exclusion of bonus emsgtion from the
pension plan’s definition of earnings. During 2088ptal of $5.9 million of benefits accrued untter Restoration Plan was
paid in various lump sum distributions to all formMorth Pittsburgh employees except for one paudict who continues to
receive an annuity payment of approximately $3 atipuThe cost and obligations associated withRlstoration Plan are
included in the “Pension Benefits” columns on tbkofving pages.

The Company currently provides other postretirenbemiefits (shown as “Other Benefits” in the talilest follow)
consisting of health care and life insurance fataie groups of retired employees. Retirees shatkd cost of health care
benefits, making contributions that are adjustetibpéally—either based upon collective bargainaggeements or because
total costs of the program have changed. The Coynganerally pays covered expenses for retireelinbalefits as they are
incurred. Postretirement life insurance benefiesfally insured.

For 2008, the Company used a December 31 measureaterfor its lllinois, Texas and PennsylvanianglaFor 2007 and
2006 the Company used a September 30 measurenteribdas Illinois plans and a December 31 measera dated for it
Texas and Pennsylvania plans.
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The following tables present the benefit obligatiassets, and funded status of the plans:

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
December 31, December 31,
2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006

The change in benefit obligatior
Projected benefit obligation,

beginning of yea $ 187,85: $ 126,91( $ 124,33« $ 40,89t $ 26,99¢ $ 27,83
Aquired with the acquisition of

North Pittsburgt — 61,65: — — 13,16¢ —
Service cos 2,12( 1,802 2,022 90C 80¢ 842
Interest cos 11,21« 7,37¢ 7,012 2,42( 1,527 1,34¢
Service cost adjustment to retained

earnings 20z — — 72 — —
Interest cost adjustment to retain

earnings 97€ — — 162 — —
Post-measurement date

contributions — — — (339 — —
Plan participant contributior — — — 37¢ 24¢€ 10¢
Plan amendmen (320 — — (3,729 91¢€ —
Special termination benefits and

settlement: 51 — — 41 — —
Benefits paic (17,539 (7,749 (6,666 (2,879 (1,792 (1,150
Actuarial (gain) / los! 3,47z (2,147%) 20€ (207) (970 (1,989
Projected benefit obligation, end of

year $ 188,03: $ 187,85: $ 126,91( $ 37,72: $ 40,89t $ 26,99/
Accumulated benefit obligatic $ 180,79  $180,00:  $ 125,37

The change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets, beginni

of year $ 166,63t $ 103,79( $ 100,44t $ — $ — $ —
Acquired with the acquisition of

North Pittsburgt — 54,91 — — — —
Actual return on plan asse (36,799 10,87( 9,68t — — —
Employer contribution: 6,13¢ 4,80¢ 40z 2,49¢ 1,54¢ 1,041
Plan participant contributior — — — 37t 24¢€ 10¢
Administrative expenses pa — — (77) — — —
Benefits paic (17,539 (7,749 (6,66€) (2,877%) (1,797) (1,150
Fair value of plan assets, end of

year $118,44¢  $166,63t  $103,79C $ —  $ —  $ —
Funded status
Projected benefit obligatic $(188,03)  $(187,85)  $(126,91() $ (37,729 $ (40,89H $ (26,999
Fair value of plan asse 118,44 166,63t 103,79( — — —
Employer contributions after

measurement date and before

end of yea — — — — 33¢ 13€
Funded statu (69,589 (21,219 (23,120 (37,729 (40,55¢) (26,85¢)
Unrecognized prior service (cred (455) (157) (164) (3,239 (137 (1,75¢)
Unrecognized net actuarial

(gain) loss 50,45¢ (3,640 1,37¢ (169) 49 1,064
Net amount recognize $ (19,589) $ (25009 $ (21,90 $ (41,12H $ (40,63) $ (27,55)
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Pension Benefits Other Benefits
December 31 December 31
2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006
Amounts recognized in the
balance sheet included in
Current liabilities $ 52 $ (5929 $ $ (2908 $ (2,84) $ —

Noncurrent liabilities (69,53)) (15,289 (23,120) (34,81%) (37,71%) (26,85¢)
$ (69589 $ (21,21) $ (23120 $ (37,72 $ (40,556 $ (26,859

Amounts in accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss):
Unrecognized prior service

(credit) $ (45 $ (151) $ (1649 $ (323) $ (131 $ (1,759
Unrecognized net actuarial
(gain) loss 50,45¢ (3,640 1,37¢ (169) 49 1,06¢

$ 50000 $ (3,79) $ 121 $ (3,409 $ (82 $ (699

During 2009, the Company expects to recognize amaicn of prior service credits of $43 for penstmnefits and $964
for other postretirement benefits, and amortizatibnet actuarial loss of $2,664 for pension besefhd amortization of net
actuarial gain of $21 for postretirement benefits.

The Company’s pension plan weighted average aseations by investment category are as follows:

December 31

2008 2007
Plan assets by categor
Equity securitie: 52.2% 38.2%
Debt securitie: 44.2% 24.2%
Other 3.6% 37.4%
100.(% 100.(%

The Company seeks to maximize long-term returmeasted plan assets while minimizing the risk ofkaavolatility.
Accordingly, the Company targets its allocationgeetage at 50% to 60% in equity funds, with theaigwer in fixed income
funds and cash equivalents.

On December 31, 2007, the Company combined it®iBiand Texas pension plans. Assets of the Tdaasnere
liquidated and the resulting cash was moved intacttmbined plan.
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The Company expects to contribute approximatel@@®fo $11,000 to its pension plans and $2,96&tother
postretirement plans in 2009. The Company’s exjgefttieire benefit payments during the years endezkBéer 31 are as

follows:

Pension Other

Benefits Benefits
2009 $ 12,22 $ 2,96¢
2010 12,42¢ 2,96¢
2011 12,42¢ 3,11¢€
2012 12,61° 3,131
2013 12,69¢ 3,03¢
2014 through 201 45,32( 14,92¢

The following table presents the components ofpeeibdic benefit cost for the years ended DecerBlheP008, 2007, and
2006:

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006
Service cos $ 2,12 $ 1,802 $ 2,024 $ 90C $ 80¢ $ 842
Interest cos 11,21 7,37¢ 7,01z 2,42 1,52 1,34¢
Expected return on plan ass (12,689 (8,039 (7,790 — — —
Other, ne 18 22 544 (63€) (667) (772)
Net periodic benefit co: $ 663 $ 1,16¢ $ 1,79 $ 2,68 $ 1,66¢ $ 1,41¢
Additional loss due tc
Special termination benefits ar
settiments $ 51 $ — $ — $ 41 $ — $ —

The weighted average assumptions used in measheng@ompany’s benefit obligations for its lllindigxas, and

Pennsylvania plans as of December 31, 2008 arttiédilinois and Texas plans as of December 3172808d 2006 are as
follows:

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006
Discount rate 6.1% 6.2% 6.C% 6.1% 6.3% 6.C%
Compensation rate incres 3.£% 3.5% 3.2% — — —
Return on plan asse 8.C% 8.C% 8.C% — — —
Initial heathcare cost trend r¢ — — — 10.% 10.(% 10.(%
Ultimate heathcare cost re — — — 5.C% 5.0% 5.C%
Year ultimate trend rate reach — — — 201¢ 201z 201z

Weighted average actuarial assumptions used tondiete the net periodic benefit cost for 2008, 20 2006 are as
follows: discount rate—5.9%, 6.3%, and 6.0%; expedbng-term rate of return on plan asse®s8%, 8.0%, and 8.0%; and r
of compensation increases—3.9%, 3.5%, and 3.3%ectsely.
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The weighted average assumptions used in measthengenefit obligations for the North Pittsburghnd as of
December 31, 2007, are as follows:

Pension Other

Benefits Benefits
Discount rate 6.4% 6.1%
Compensation rate incres 4.3% 4.2%
Return on plan asse 8.C% —
Initial healthcare cost trend re — 10.(%
Ultimate healthcare cost re — 5.C%
Year ultimate trend rate reach — 201z

In determining the discount rate, the Company amrsithe current yields on high quality corporated income
investments with maturities corresponding to theeeked duration of the benefit obligations. Theested return on plan assets
assumption was based upon the categories of aswkthe historical return on those assets. The eosgiion rate increase is
based upon history and long-term inflationary tierlone percentage point change in the assuméith fvaae cost trend rate
would have the following effects on the Companytisen postretirement benefits:

1% Increase 1% Decreas¢
Effect on 2008 service and interest c¢ $ 33¢ $ (297)
Effect on accumulated postretirement benefit obilges as of December 31, 20 $ 3,08: $ (2,697)

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement afi€ial Accounting Standards No. 158 (“SFAS No. }58”
Employer’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and OtRestretirement Plans.SFAS No. 158 requires an employer to
recognize the overfunded or underfunded statusdefiaed benefit postretirement plan as an assiliility in its statement of
financial position and to recognize changes inftimeled status in the year in which the changesrabcaugh comprehensive
income. SFAS No. 158 also requires an employerdgasure the funded status of a plan as of the déeyear-end statement
of financial position. The Company was requireédopt the recognition provisions of SFAS No. 158@fve December 31,
2006; however, the requirement to measure plarisaaed benefit obligations as of the date of then@any’s fiscal year end is
required to be effective as of December 31, 20@g&ricombining the Texas and lllinois pension plam®ecember 31, 2007,
the Company adopted the measurement date provisf@BAS No. 158 effective January 1, 2008 for j@mand
postretirement plans with measurement dates dtlaerDecember 31. The impact of the adoption ofrtkasurement date
provisions resulted in an increase to opening actated deficit on January 1, 2008 of $169 net »fab$97.

The Pension Protection Act of 2006 (“the Pensiastdtion Act”) may affect the manner in which mammmpanies,
including the Company, administer their pensiompld&ffective January 1, 2008, the Pension Pratedtct requires many
companies to more fully fund their pension plansoading to new funding targets, potentially resigtin greater annual
contributions. The Company is currently assesdiegrhpact that the Pension Protection Act will hamgoension funding in
future years.

13. Employee 401k Benefit Plans and Deferred Compsation Agreements
401k benefit plans

The Company sponsors several 401(k) defined catoib retirement savings plans. Virtually all emyses are eligible to
participate in one of these plans by electing feida portion of their compensation, subject tdaiarlimitations. The Company
provides matching contributions based on qualiéatployee contributions. Total Company contributibmghe plans were
$2,609 in 2008, $2,385 in 2007, and $2,277 in 2006.

Deferred compensation agreemer

The Company has deferred compensation agreemethtshsiformer board of directors of the Companylssidiary,
Lufkin-Conroe Communications, and certain formeptyees. The benefits are payable for up to 15syealife and may
begin as early as age 65 or upon the death ofdtiipant. These plans were frozen by TXUCV's meeksor company before
the Company assumed the related liabilities and the participants accrue no new benefits. Compagynents related to the
deferred compensation agreements totaled approsiyr$61 in 2008, $569 in 2007, and $609 in 200& et present value
of the remaining obligations totaled approximat&By394 and $3,725 as of December 31, 2008, and, 2867ectively, and is
included in pension and postretirement benefitgattions in the accompanying balance sheets.

89




Table of Contents

The Company maintains forty life insurance policgescertain of the participating former directonsl@mployees. The
Company recognized $0 and $300 of net proceedthar emcome in 2008 and 2007, respectively, dubeaeceipt of life
insurance proceeds related to the passing of foemg@loyees. The excess of the cash surrender gathe Company’s
remaining life insurance policies over the notegae balances related to these policies is detemnby an independent
consultant, and totaled $1,779 as of December@®18,2and $2,566 as of December 31, 2007. Thesergmate included in
other assets in the accompanying balance sheeth.fZiacipal payments for the policies and any peats from the policies are
classified as operating activities in the statemeficash flows. The aggregate death benefit payaidier these policies totaled
$8,007 as of December 31, 2008, and $8,857 as adrbieer 31, 2007.

14. Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt consists of the following:

December 31

2008 2007

Senior Secured Credit Facilit
Revolving loar $ — $ —
Term loan 880,00( 760,00(
Obligations under capital lea 1,26¢ 2,64¢
Senior note! — 130,00(
881,26t 892,64t
Less: current portio (922) (1,010

$ 880,34- $ 891,63t

Future maturities of long-term debt as of Decen@igr2008, are as follows:

2009 $ 922
2010 344
2011 —
2012 —
2013 —
Thereafte 880,00(

$ 881,26¢

Senior secured credit facilit

In 2007, the Company, through its wholly-owned sdibsies, entered into a credit agreement with sehfenancial
institutions. The credit agreement provides forraggte borrowings of $950,000, consisting of a $780 term loan facility, a
$50,000 revolving credit facility, and a $140,00ayed draw term loan facility (‘DDTL"). The DDTL'sole purpose was for
the funding of the redemption of the Company’s tautding senior notes plus any associated feesdermption premium. As
described below, the Company borrowed $120,000ruthéeDDTL on April 1, 2008, at which time the coritment for the
remaining $20,000 that was originally available emthe DDTL expired. Other borrowings under theditriacility were used t
retire the Company’s previous $464,000 credit figcdnd to fund the acquisition of North Pittsbur@orrowings under the
credit facility are the Company’s senior, securbligations that are secured by substantially athefassets of the Company
and its subsidiaries with the exception of lllin@iensolidated Telephone Company. The term loartten@®DTL have no
interim principal maturities and thus mature in il December 31, 2014. The revolving credit fagihatures on
December 31, 2013. There were no borrowings uraerevolving credit facility as of December 31, 200
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At the Company’s election, borrowings under thelitriacilities bear interest at a rate equal t@pplicable margin plus
either a “base rate” or LIBOR. As of December 310, the applicable margin for interest rates wa®% per year for the
LIBOR-based term loans and the revolving credit facilitye applicable margin for our $880.0 million telaan is fixed for th
duration of the loan. The applicable margin foealative base rate loans was 1.50% per year fdetheloan and the revolvii
credit facility. The applicable margin for borrowi on the revolving credit facility is based onrizipg grid. Based on our
leverage ratio of 4.90:1 as of December 31, 2008 0lwings under the revolving credit facility wile priced at a margin of
2.75% for LIBOR-based borrowings and 1.75% forrali¢ive base rate borrowings. The applicable barrgwnargin for the
revolving credit facility is adjusted quarterlyieflect the leverage ratio from the prior quarted-eAt December 31, 2008, and
2007, the weighted average rate of interest oiCtrapany’s credit facilities, including the effedtioterest rate swaps and the
applicable margin, was 6.30% and 7.11% per annespectively. Interest is payable at least quarterly

The credit agreement contains various provisiomkcavenants, including, among other items, regtriston the ability to
pay dividends, incur additional indebtedness, ismpital stock, and commit to future capital expmds. The Company has
agreed to maintain certain financial ratios, inahgdinterest coverage, and total net leveragesatith as defined in the credit
agreement. As of December 31, 2008, the Companymaampliance with the credit agreement covenants.

Senior notes

On April 1, 2008, the Company redeemed all of thesianding senior notes. The total amount of tdemgtion was
$136,337, including a call premium of $6,337. Thaier note redemption and payment of accrued istéhneough the
redemption date was funded using $120,000 of bangwn the DDTL together with cash on hand. The @any recognized a
loss on extinguishment of debt of $9,224 relatethéoredemption premium and the write-off of unatized deferred financing
costs.

Capital lease

The Company has a capital lease, which expire®10 2for certain equipment used in its operatiédwssof December 31,
2008, the present value of the minimum remainiagdéecommitments was $1,266. Of this amount, $9&88eswithin the next
year.

Derivative instruments

The Company maintains interest rate swap agreerttaatteffectively convert a portion of the floatirte debt to a fixed-
rate basis, thereby reducing the impact of intenast changes on future interest expense. At DeeeBih 2008, the Company
has interest rate swap agreements covering $740f0@dtional amount floating to fixed interest ratgap agreements.
Approximately 84.1% of the floating rate term delats fixed as of December 31, 2008. The swaps egpwarious times from
September 30, 2009 through March 13, 2013. The swepdesignated as cash flow hedges of our expidtee interest
payments. Under the swap agreements, the Compeeives 3-month LIBOR based interest payments fitogrstvap
counterparties and pays a fixed rate.

In September 2008, due to the larger than normebspbetween 1-month LIBOR and 3-month LIBOR, tlenpany
added basis swaps, under which it pays 3-month RB@sed payments less a fixed percentage to the dwajs counterpartie
and receives 1-month LIBOR. At the same time, tben@any began utilizing 1-month LIBOR resets orcitdit facility.
Concurrently basis swaps, in combination with thierpswaps, were designated as cash flow hedgeégraesto mitigate the
changes in cash flows on the Company’s creditifgciThe effect of the swap portfolio is to fix tlsash interest payments on
the floating portion of $740,000 of debt at a weégghaverage LIBOR rate of 4.43% exclusive of thgliapble borrowing
margin on the loans.

The fair value of the Company’s derivative instrumise which are all interest rate swaps and basipsywamounted to a
liability of $47,908 at December 31, 2008, andbahility of $12,769 at December 31, 2007. The faiue is included in Other
Liabilities on the Balance Sheets. The changeérfair value of derivative instruments, net of tekated tax effect, is recorded
in Other Comprehensive Loss. The Company recogruaetprehensive loss of $22,078 during 2008, $10¢k8Bg 2007, and
$252 during 2006. Included in the interest expdaséhe year ended December 31, 2008 was a nonetesie of $395 for the
ineffective portion of the Company’s cash flow hedg
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In a cash flow hedge, the effective portion of ¢hange in the fair value of the hedging derivativeecorded in
accumulated other comprehensive income and is qubady reclassified into earnings during the s@e@od in which the
hedged item affects earnings. The change in féirevaf any ineffective portion of the hedging detive is recognized
immediately in earnings. To further reduce potéiitiaire income statement impacts from hedge imgiffeness, the Company
dedesignated its original interest rate swap cotgrand redesignated them, in conjunction withbthsis swaps, as of
September 4, 2008 as a cash flow hedge.

15. Fair Value Measurements

As of December 31, 2008, the Company’s derivatigtruments related to interest rate swap agreeraemt®quired to be
measured at fair value on a recurring basis. Therédues of the interest rate swaps are determirsétty an internal valuation
model which relies on the expected LIBOR basedlyielrve and estimates of counterparty and the Coyipaon performanc
risk as the most significant inputs. Though theested LIBOR based yield curve, an observable irfpag,the most significant
impact of the determination of fair value, certather material inputs to the valuations are natatly observable and cannot be
corroborated by observable market data. The Compasyategorized these interest rate derivativeswas 3.

The Company’s net liabilities measured at fair eabm a recurring basis subject to disclosure requents of SFAS
No. 157 at December 31, 2008 were as follc

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Usini

Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Other Significant
Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Description December 31, 200 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Interest Rate Derivative $ 47,90¢ $ 47,90¢
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The following table presents the Company’s netiliitdds measured at fair value on a recurring basigsg significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) as defined in SFASTG at December 31, 2008:

Measurements
Using Significant
Unobservable
Inputs (Level 3)
Interest Rate

Derivatives

Balance at December 31, 2C $ 12,76¢
Settlement: (10,419
Total gains or losses (realized/unrealiz

Unrealized loss included in earnir 39t

Unrealized loss included in other comprehensiverime 45,15¢
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 47,90¢
The amount of total loss for the period include@amnings for the period as a component of interest

expense $ 39t

The change in fair value of the derivatives is ity a result of a change in market expectatianddture interest rates.
16. Restricted Share Plan

The Company maintains a restricted share plarptioaides for the issuance of common shares to kgyayees to
motivate them to enhance their long-term performeaarad to provide incentive to join or remain witle tCompany. The
Company recognized non-cash compensation expesseia®d with the restricted shares of $1,901,3%dhd $2,482 during
the 2008, 2007 and 2006 calendar years, respectiieé non-cash compensation expense is includésklling, general and
administrative expenses” in the accompanying statgsnof operations. The measurement date valdeegkmaining unvested
shares is expected to be recognized as non-cagbet@iation expense over the remaining vesting pdesd a provision for
estimated forfeitures.

The following table presents the restricted stattiviy by year:

2008 2007 2006
Restricted shares outstanding, beginning of pe 129,30: 248,74! 422,06!
Shares grante 71,467 136,58« 18,00(
Shares veste (95,24) (246,27) (187,000
Shares forfeited or retire — (9,750 (4,320
Restricted shares outstanding, end of pe 105,52¢ 129,30:. 248,74!

The shares granted under the restricted shareapdaconsidered outstanding at the date of grarausecthe recipients are
entitled to dividends and voting rights. As of Ded®er 31, 2008, there were 105,528 nonvested restrihares outstanding
with a weighted average measurement date fair v&#l$&6.82 per share. As of December 31, 2007¢ethere 129,302
nonvested restricted shares outstanding with aieibaverage measurement date fair value of $p&28hare. The shares
granted during 2008 include 14,750 restricted shgranted to certain key employees and directoveetisas 56,717
performance based restricted shares. The perfoertzased restricted shares were granted to key gegddased upon the
Company achieving certain financial and operatargets for 2007 based on a sliding scale. The D4fares granted during
2008 had a weighted average measurement dateafa@ of $14.92 per share. In March 2008, a tarfy64 @47 performance
based restricted shares was approved for issuaribe first quarter of 2009 based upon meetingaijmral and financial goals
in 2008. Shares generally vest at the rate of 26B4y@ar on the anniversary of their grant date. falrenarket value of vesting
shares was $1,051, $4,693 and $3,865 for the eending December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respBctirhere was
approximately $1,993 of total unrecognized compgéosaost related to the nonvested shares outstgradiDecember 31,
2008. That cost is expected to be recognized based future vesting as non-cash stock compensatithe following years:
2009—%$1,234, 2010—$623, 2011—$152, and 2012—%$27.
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17. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) c@apthe following components:

December 31,

2008 2007
Fair value of cash flow hedg $ (4751) $ (12,769
Prior service credits and net losses on postretinémplans (46,599 3,87z
(94,11 (8,896
Deferred taxe 34,63: 3,24¢
Accumulated other comprehensive I $ (59,479 % (5,657

18. Environmental Remediation Liabilities

Environmental remediation liabilities were $50@a&cember 31, 2008, and 2007, and are includechigr diaibilities.
These liabilities relate to anticipated remediatod monitoring costs in respect of two small vasites and are undiscounted.
The Company believes the amount accrued is adetpuatever the remaining anticipated costs of reaugat.

19. Commitments and Contingencies
Legal proceeding:

On April 15, 2008, Salsgiver Inc., a Pennsylvaréadd telecommunications company, and certain affitiates filed a
lawsuit against the Company and its subsidiariesti\Pittsburgh Telephone Company and North Pitgh$ystems Inc., in
Allegheny County, Pennsylvania. The complaint afethat the Company prevented Salsgiver from cdimgefiber optic
cables to North Pittsburgh’s utility poles, andlseeompensatory and punitive damages for allegeidimjected profits,
damage to Salsgiver’s business reputation, and otdsts. The alleged aggregate losses are appr@tn$i25 million, though
Salsgiver does not request a specific dollar ammudamages. The Company believes these claimgitireut merit and the
damages are completely unfounded. On November(B #@& Company responded to Salsgiver's amendeglaarhand filed
a counterclaim for trespass, alleging that Salsgttached cables to the Company’s poles withorrh@sion and in an unsafe
manner.

In addition, from time to time the Company is inved in litigation and regulatory proceedings agsiut of its operation
Management does not believe that an adverse outitoargy one or more legal proceedings to whichGbewpany currently is
party would have a material adverse effect on then@any’s financial position or results of operasion

Operating leases
The Company has entered into several operatingdeamsering buildings and office space and equipnitent expense

totaled $4,245 in 2008, $3,810 in 2007, and $4j880D06. Future minimum lease payments under exjsigreements are as
follows: 2009—$4,187, 2010—$3,021, 2011—%$1,640,26%$471, 2013—$287, thereafter—$688.
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Other commitments

The Company has entered into two operational sufgystems contracts. Should we terminate eithéretontracts prior
to the expiration of their term, we will be lialftr minimum commitment payments as defined in thietacts for the remainit
term of the contracts. In addition, we have a @mitral obligation for network maintenance. Theltofahe Company’s other
commitments are due as follows: 2009—$1,120, 201042, 2011—$571, 2012—$69, 2013—$71, thereafterto$l

Other contingencies

On October 23, 2006, Verizon Pennsylvania, Inc. seeral of its affiliates filed a formal complaimith the PAPUC
claiming that the Company’s Pennsylvania CLEC'sastiate switched access rates violate Pennsylamidl he provision that
Verizon cites in its complaint requires CLEC rat@$®e no higher than the corresponding incumbeatés unless the CLEC
can demonstrate that the higher access rates @sejtistified.” Verizon’s original claim requestadefund of $480 from access
billings through August 2006. That claim was la&rised to include amounts from certain affiliatiest had not been included
in the original calculation. Verizon’s new complageeks $1,346 through December 2006.

The Company believes that its CLEC’s switched axcates are permissible, and is vigorously oppasirsgcomplaint. In
an Initial Decision dated December 5, 2007, thaidieg administrative law judge recommended thatRbnnsylvania Public
Utility Commission (“PAPUC"), sustain Verizon’s cqiaint. As relief, the judge directed the Comparé&nnsylvania CLEC
to reduce its access rates down to those of therlyiuly incumbent exchange carrier and refund td2é@ an amount equal to
the access charges collected in excess of theatevsince November 30, 2004. The Company filed gi@es to the full
PAPUC, which requested that Verizon and the Comadigympt to resolve the issue through mediatior. Jdrties were given
until November 29, 2008, to complete the mediatmrt,through mutual agreement, the deadline has éeended to
March 2009.

If the Company is not successful in this proceedihg Pennsylvania CLEC’s operations could suffatamal harm—both
because of the refund sought by Verizon and beaafube prospective reduction in access revenumstieg from the change
in its intrastate access rates, which would applgiitcarriers on a non-discriminatory basis. ThenPany’s preliminary
estimates indicate that the decrease in annuahvegewould be approximately $1,200 on a staticsh{&sieping access minutes
of use constant) if Verizon prevails completelyatidition, other interexchange carriers coulddihailar claims for refunds.
The Company has estimated its potential liabiliWerizon and other interexchange carriers to h&@and has recorded a
liability that is included in other liabilities ithe accompanying consolidated balance sheets. @hgany believes that the
amount accrued is adequate to cover its poterdtailities.

20. Share Repurchase

In July 2006, the Company completed the repurcbaapproximately 3.8 million shares of its commaock for
approximately $56,736, or $15.00 per share. Withtifansaction, Providence Equity sold its entiwsifion in the Company,
which totaled approximately 12.7 percent of the @any’s outstanding shares of common stock. Thisayaisvate transaction

and did not decrease the Company’s publicly trateaes. The Company financed the repurchase ugprgx@amately $17,736
of cash on hand and $39,000 of additional term-lm@mowings.

21. Net Income per Common Share
The following table sets forth the computation ef iIncome per common share:

December 31

2008 2007 2006
Net income applicable to common stockholc $ 12,50« $ 11,42 $ 13,267
Basic weighted average number of common sharetaodisag 29,321,40 25,764,38 27,739,69
Effect of dilutive securitie 209,33: 358,10 430,80:¢
Diluted weighted average number of common shareanding 29,530,73 26,122,48 28,170,50
Basic earnings per she $ 0.42 $ 0.44 $ 0.4¢
Diluted earnings per sha $ 0.4z $ 0.44 $ 0.47
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22. Business Segments

The Company is viewed and managed as two separathighly integrated, reportable business segméngetephone
Operations” and “Other Operations.” Telephone Ojpema consists of a wide range of telecommunicatservices, including
local and long distance service, digital telephsemice, custom calling features, private line &y, dial-up and high-speed
Internet access, digital TV, carrier access sesyinetwork capacity services over a regional fdygtic network, and directory
publishing. The Company also operates a numbesmptementary businesses that comprise “Other Opagjt including
telemarketing and order fulfillment, telephone $eg% to county jails and state prisons, equipmaleiss operator services, and
mobile services. Management evaluates the perfarenahthese business segments based upon reveosg hgargins, and net

operating income.

Operating revenue
Telephone Operatior
Other Operation

Total

Operating income (lost
Telephone Operatior
Other Operation

Total

Interest incom

Interest expens

Investment incom

Minority interest

Loss on extinguishment of de
Other, ne

Income before income taxes and extraordinary

Capital expenditure:
Telephone Operatior
Other Operation

Total

As of December 31, 200¢
Goodwill

Total asset

As of December 31, 2007:
Goodwill

Total asset
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Year Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006
$ 377,96 $ 286,77 $ 280,33
40,45 42,47 40,43:
$ 418,42 $ 329,24t $ 320,76
$ 74,55¢ $ 70,16: $ 65,93¢
(6,190 (3,52%) (16,62
68,36 66,63" 49,311
367 89: 974
(66,659 (47,35() (43,879)
20,49: 7,03¢ 7,691
(869) (627) (721)
(9,22 (10,329 —
(577 (167) 29C
$ 11,90¢ $ 16,09: $ 13,67
$ 47,18 $ 32,24t $ 32,69¢
84¢€ 1,25( 69C
$ 48,02 $ 33,49¢ $ 33,38¢
Telephone Other
Operations Operations Total
$ 519,42t $ 1,13¢ $ 520,56:
$ 1,227,32 $ 14,30¢ $ 1,241,62
$ 519,25 $ 7,18¢ $ 526,43
$ 1,281,01. $ 23,58( $ 1,304,59.
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23. Quarterly Financial Information (unaudited)

Consolidated Communications
Quarterly Consolidated Statements of Income

March 31 June 30 September 3| December 3.
2008

Revenue! $ 10541: $ 106,44 $ 103,82 $ 102,74
Operating expense

Cost of services and produt 33,86: 36,10¢ 37,77¢ 35,81

Selling, general and administrative exper 28,14 26,91 26,16: 27,55:

Intangible assets impairme — — — 6,05(

Depreciation and amortizatic 22,87: 22,35( 22,84 23,61¢
Total operating expens 84,87¢ 85,36¢ 86,78 93,03:
Income from operatior 20,53¢ 21,07¢ 17,04: 9,71(
Other expenses, n 13,94¢ 20,62t 7,81( 14,071
Income (loss) before income taxes and extraordit

item 6,581 45( 9,23: (4,367)
Income tax expense (benel 2,87¢ 27C 4,26 (777)
Income (loss) before extraordinary it 3,70¢ 18C 4,971 (3,596
Extraordinary item (net of income ta — — — 7,24(
Net income $ 3,70¢ % 18C $ 4971  $ 3,644
Net income per common she

Basic $ 0.1  $ 0.01 $ 017 $ 0.12

Diluted $ 0.1z  $ 0.01 $ 017 $ 0.11

2007

Revenue: $ 8298 $ 8094 % 80,32( $ 85,00
Operating expense

Cost of services and produt 25,62¢ 25,78¢ 27,69¢ 28,17t

Selling, general and administrative exper 22,29¢ 22,29¢ 21,80( 23,265

Depreciation and amortizatic 16,62¢ 16,60¢ 16,35( 16,07
Total operating expens 64,557 64,69( 65,84¢ 67,51¢
Income from operatior 18,42: 16,25¢ 14,47: 17,48¢
Other expenses, n 10,117 9,70¢ 10,11¢ 20,60(
Pretax income (los¢ 8,30¢ 6,55( 4,35: (3,112
Income tax expense (benel 3,681 1,05 2,012 (2,082
Net income (loss $ 461¢ $ 549 % 2,341 % (1,030
Net income (loss) per common share basic and

diluted $ 0.18 0.21 $ 0.0¢ $ (0.09)
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants orcéenting and Financial Disclosure
None
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Management, with the participation of the Chief &ixéve Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has kxated the
effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure contols procedures (as such term is defined in Rulel58a) under the
Securities Exchange Act) as of December 31, 20@8ehd of the Company’s fiscal year, and determihatisuch controls and
procedures were effective in timely making knowmtanagement material information relating to then@any required to be
included in the Company’s periodic filings undee tixchange Act, and that there were no materiakmesses in those
disclosure controls and procedures. Managemeniradémated that during the Company’s fourth quaote2008 there were no
changes that would have materially affected, oreasonably likely to affect, the Company’s intém@ntrol over financial
reporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over FimariReporting and the Report of Independent Regist@ublic
Accounting Firm thereon are set forth in Parttéph 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 9B. Other Information
None
PART IlI
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Goventce

The Company has adopted a code of ethics thatespialiall of its employees, officers, and directorsluding its principe
executive officer, principal financial officer, apdincipal accounting officer. The text of the Caamng’s code of ethics is posted
on its website at www.Consolidated.com (select $tmeRelations, and then Corporate Governance).

Additional information required by this Item is mrporated herein by reference to our proxy staténeebe issued in
connection with the Annual Meeting of our Stockteskito be held on May 5, 2009, which proxy statemeihbe filed before
April 30, 2009.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item is incorp@aherein by reference to our proxy statement tisdaeed in connection
with the Annual Meeting of our Stockholders to leédhon May 5, 2009, which proxy statement will Bed before April 30,
20009.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners aidanagement

The information required by this Iltem is incorp@dherein by reference to our proxy statement tisdieed in connection
with the Annual Meeting of our Stockholders to eédhon May 5, 2009, which proxy statement will Bed before April 30,
20009.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abitector Independence

The information required by this ltem is incorp@herein by reference to our proxy statement tisdieed in connection
with the Annual Meeting of our Stockholders to lsédhon May 5, 2009, which proxy statement will Bed before April 30,
20009.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this Iltem is incorp@herein by reference to our proxy statement tisdieed in connection
with the Annual Meeting of our Stockholders to lsédhon May 5, 2009, which proxy statement will Bed before April 30,
20009.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
Exhibits
See the Index to Exhibits following the Signatupage of this Report.
Financial Statement Schedules

The consolidated financial statements of the Remgistare set forth under Item 8 of this Report.€8ietes not included
have been omitted because they are not applicalihe sequired information is included elsewhereehre

Schedule II—Valuation Reserves is set forth below.

The financial statements of the Registrant’s 50% s owned companies that are deemed to be matedar Rule 3-09
of Regulation S-X, Pennsylvania RSA 6(11) and GTBnet of Texas RSA #17, are set forth below.
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CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICATIONS HOLDINGS, INC.
SCHEDULE II—VALUATION RESERVES

(Dollars in thousands)

2008 2007 2006
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts:
Balance at beginning of ye $ 2,44( $ 2,11( $ 2,82t
North Pittsburgh acquisitio — 471 —
Provision charged to expen 4,81¢ 4,734 5,05¢
Write-offs, less recoverie (5,35)) (4,87%) (5,779
Balance at end of ye $ 1,90¢ $ 2,44( $ 2,11C
Inventory reserves:
Balance at beginning of ye $ 40C $ 42¢ $ 63C
North Pittsburgh acquisitio — 171 —
Provision charged to expen 597 12t —
Write-offs (119 (325) (207)
Balance at end of ye $ 87¢ $ 40C $ 42¢
Income tax valuation allowance:
Balance at beginning of ye $ 2,871 $ 5,34¢ $  16,04(
North Pittsburgh acquisitio — 1,53( —
North Pittsburgh ETFL adjustment to goodv (1,530 — —
Reduction of related deferred tax as (1,34)) (3,989 (5,027)
Provision (benefit) charged to expet — (29 (289
Release of valuation allowan — — (5,387)
Balance at end of ye $ — $ 2,871 $ 5,34¢
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Partners of Pennsylvania RSA 6 (Il) LimiRattnership:

We have audited the accompanying balance she&srofsylvania RSA 6 (II) Limited Partnership (thefthership”) as of
December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related staterokoperations, changes in partners’ capital,aash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 3B.2these financial statements are the resporigibilithe Partnership’s
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these financial statements based on outsaud

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighauBioUnited States).
Those standards require that we plan and perfoenatidit to obtain reasonable assurance about whbe#hénancial statemen
are free of material misstatement. The Partneiishipt required to have, nor were we engaged tloper an audit of its
internal control over financial reporting. Our atdicluded consideration of internal control ovieahcial reporting as a basis
for designing audit procedures that are appropimatle circumstances but not for the purpose pf@ssing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Partnership’s internal condrar financial reporting. Accordingly, we expregssuch opinion. An audit
also includes examining, on a test basis, evidsnpgorting the amounts and disclosures in the filahstatements, assessing
the accounting principles used and significannestés made by management, as well as evaluatirgyérall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such financial statements presainlyf in all material respects, the financial gimsi of the Partnership as of
December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the results op#sations and its cash flows for each of the tlgeses in the period ended
December 31, 2008, in conformity with accountinipgiples generally accepted in the United State&roérica.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Atlanta, Georgia
March 16, 2009

101




Table of Contents

PENNSYLVANIA RSA 6 (Il) LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2008 AND 2007
(Dollars in Thousands)

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $225 ahfl
Unbilled revenu
Due from General Partn
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Total current asse
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMEN—Net
OTHER ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS’ CAPITAL
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit
Advance billings and customer depo:
Total current liabilities
LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Total liabilities
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (see Notes 6 and
PARTNERS CAPITAL

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS' CAPITAL

See notes to financial statements.
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2008 2007
7,96¢ 6,63¢
784 727
6,41z 6,521
17 17
15,177 13,90¢
12,41¢ 12,37:
14C —
27,73t 26,28
2,17z 2,38¢
2,392 2,09i
4,56¢ 4,48¢
187 16C
4,752 4,64¢
22,98: 21,63
27,73¢ 26,28:
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PENNSYLVANIA RSA 6 (Il) LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008, 2007 AND 2006
(Dollars in Thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES
Service revenues, n
Equipment, net and other reveni

Total operating revenu
OPERATING COSTS AND EXPENSE:!
Cost of service (excluding depreciation and amatin related to
network assets included belo
Cost of equipmer

Selling, general and administrati
Depreciation and amortizatic

Total operating costs and expen
OPERATING INCOME
INTEREST INCOME, NET
NET INCOME
Allocation of Net Income

Limited Partner:
General Partne

See notes to financial statements.
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2008 2007 2006
$ 83,80" 72,77 $ 69,79t
24,65: 23,33 21,48(
108,45¢ 96,10¢ 91,27t
31,27¢ 26,72¢ 31,13¢
25,32¢ 22,71¢ 19,701
26,56¢ 24,64¢ 21,63¢
2,17 2,35¢€ 2,60
85,34¢ 76,44¢ 75,08!
23,11 19,66+ 16,194
23¢ 27C 292
$ 23,34¢ 19,93¢ $ 16,48¢
$ 9,41 8,04: $ 6,651
$ 13,92¢ 11,89: $ 9,83t
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PENNSYLVANIA RSA 6 (Il) LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN PARTNERS’ CAPITAL
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008, 2007 AND 2006
(Dollars in Thousands)

General
Partner Limited Partners
Consolidated Venus
Communications Cellular
of Pennsylvania Telephone Total
Cellco Company Services, Partners’
Partnership (Note 1) Inc. Capital
BALANCE—January 1, 200 $ 11,01¢  $ 4371 % 3,07¢ $ 18,46:
Distributions (10,29) (4,089 (2,876 (17,250
Net income 9,83t 3,902 2,74¢ 16,48¢
BALANCE—December 31, 200 10,56: 4,19( 2,957 17,70
Distributions (9,546 (3,78%) (2,667) (16,000
Net income 11,89: 4,71¢ 3,32¢ 19,93«
BALANCE—December 31, 200 12,90¢ 5,122 3,607 21,63’
Distributions (13,124 (5,20%) (3,66¢) (22,000
Net income 13,92¢ 5,52¢ 3,89: 23,34¢
BALANCE—December 31, 200 $ 13,712 $ 544( % 3831 $§ 22,98

See notes to financial statements.
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PENNSYLVANIA RSA 6 (Il) LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008, 2007 AND 2006
(Dollars in Thousands)

2008 2007 2006
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $  23,34¢ $ 19,93 $  16,48¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortizatic 2,171 2,35¢ 2,607
Provision for losses on accounts receiv 482 27¢ 23C
Changes in certain assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl (1,809 (1,149 (79¢)
Unbilled revenue (57 40¢ (442)
Prepaid expenses and other current a: — @ 3
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit 58 (390 634
Advance billings and customer depo: 29t 302 15€
Other long term liabilitie: 27 11 56
Net cash provided by operating activit 24,52( 21,75( 18,92¢
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditures, including purchases froniiafés, ne! (2,457 (3,20¢) (2,115
Purchase of Customers from an affili (182 — —
Change in due from General Partner, 11F (2,544) 43¢
Net cash used in investing activiti (2,520 (5,750 (1,676
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Distributions to partner (22,000 (16,000 (17,250)
Net cash used in financing activiti (22,000 (16,000 (17,250)
CHANGE IN CASH — — —
CASH—Beginning of yea — — —
CASH—ENd of yeal $ — $ — $ —
NONCASH TRANSACTIONS FROM INVESTING AND FINANCINC
ACTIVITIES:
Accruals for capital expenditur: $ 15 $ 14 $ 14¢

See notes to financial statements.
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PENNSYLVANIA RSA 6 (Il) LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008, 2007 AND 2006
(Dollars in Thousands)

1.

ORGANIZATION AND MANAGEMENT

Pennsylvania RSA 6 () Limited Partnership—Pennsylvania RSA 6 (Il) Limited Partnership (thiaftnership”) was
formed on January 31, 1991. The principal actieftyhe Partnership is providing cellular servicatie Pennsylvania 6
(I rural service area. Under the terms of thenpenship agreement, the partnership expires onadgriy 2091.

The partners and their respective ownership peagestas of December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 $oHags:

General Partne

Cellco Partnership* General Partn”) 59.6€%
Limited Partners

Consolidated Communications of Pennsylvania Comf¥a 23.61%

Venus Cellular Telephone Services, 16.671%

*

*%

Cellco Partnershig“Cellcc”) doing business as Verizon Wirele

On January 1, 2008 North Pittsburgh Teleph@uenpany changed its name to Consolidated Commimnicadf
Pennsylvania Compan

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Use of Estimates—The preparation of financial statements in confbrwith accounting principles generally accepted i
the United States of America requires managememiaice estimates and assumptions that affect tlwetezgbamounts of
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of cgetimt assets and liabilities at the date of thenfifed statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses dugngpiorting period. Actual results may differ fréimose estimates.
Estimates are used for, but not limited to, theoaoting for: allocations, allowance for uncolletilaccounts receivable,
unbilled revenue, fair value of financial instruneerdepreciation and amortization, useful lives emplairment of assets,
accrued expenses, and contingencies. Estimategsandptions are periodically reviewed and the effetany material
revisions are reflected in the financial statemémtie period that they are determined to be rszogs

Revenue Recognitior-The Partnership earns revenue by providing adecetse network (access revenue) and for usage
of the network (airtime/usage revenue), which idelsiroaming and long distance revenue. In gersgedss revenue is
billed one month in advance and is recognized vd@ned; the unearned portion is classified in ackdnillings.
Airtime/usage revenue, roaming revenue and longuaie revenue are recognized when service is redderd included i
unbilled revenue until billed. Equipment sales reveassociated with the sale of wireless handsetaecessories is
recognized when the products are delivered to anéed by the customer, as this is considered todeparate earnings
process from the sale of wireless services. Inraese with the provisions of Emerging Issues Temke (“ETIF”) Issue
No. 00-21 Accounting for Revenue Arrangements with Multipidii2rablesthe Partnership recognizes customer
activation fees as part of equipment revenue. dheing rates charged by the Partnership to Cethoood necessarily
reflect current market rates. The Partnership aafitinue to re-evaluate the rates on a periodisifase Note 5). The
Partnership’s revenue recognition policies areccoedance with the Securities and Exchange Comom'ss{“*SEC”) Staff
Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 101Revenue Recognition in Financial Stateme®# No. 104 Revenue Recognition,
and EITF Issue No. 00-21.
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The Partnership reports taxes imposed by goverrahaunthorities on revenue-producing transactiomaden the
Partnership and our customers, that are withirstiogpe of EITF No. 06-3jow Taxes Collected from Customers and
Remitted to Governmental Authorities Should Be érexd in the Income Statemantthe financial statements on a net
basis.

Cellular service revenues and expenses resultimg &ell site agreements with affiliates of Cellee eecognized based
upon a rate per minute of use. See note 5.

Operating Costs and ExpensesOperating expenses include expenses incurredtlfitecthe Partnership, as well as an
allocation of certain administrative and operatiogts incurred by Cellco or its affiliates on béludithe Partnership.
Employees of Cellco provide services performed emalif of the Partnership. These employees aremplayees of the
Partnership and therefore, operating expensesdadirect and allocated charges of salary and graplbenefit costs for
the services provided to the Partnership. The GéRartner believes such allocations, principadigdd on the
Partnership’s percentage of total customers, custgmoss additions or minutes-of-use, are reasendblke roaming rates
charged to the Partnership by Cellco do not necsseflect current market rates. The Partnershilbcontinue to re-
evaluate the rates on a periodic basis (see Note 5)

Retail Stores—The daily operations of all retail stores locatdthim the Partnership are managed by Cellco. Howeale
income and expenses incurred by these retail stweesecorded in the financial statements of thénBeship.

Income Taxes—The Partnership is not a taxable entity for febanal state income tax purposes. Any taxable income
loss is apportioned to the partners based on thgjirective partnership interests and is reportetthday individually.

Inventory —Inventory is owned by Cellco and held on consigniniey the Partnership. Such consigned inventonpts
recorded on the Partnership’s financial stateméiien sale, the related cost of the inventoryaagferred to the
Partnership at Cellco’s cost basis and includatiénraccompanying Statements of Operations.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts—The Partnership maintains allowances for uncalbéeiaccounts receivable for
estimated losses resulting from the inability o$touners to make required payments. Estimates aezllimn the aging of
the accounts receivable balances and the histarii@-off experience, net of recoveries.

Property, Plant and Equipment—Property, plant and equipment primarily representts incurred to construct and
expand capacity and network coverage on Mobilepfelae Switching Offices and cell sites. The cogiraperty, plant
and equipment is depreciated over its estimatefililife using the straight-line method of accoungti Leasehold
improvements are amortized over the shorter of #simated useful lives or the term of the reldéade. Major
improvements to existing plant and equipment api#taiized. Routine maintenance and repairs thatatextend the life
of the plant and equipment are charged to expenhgearred.

Upon the sale or retirement of property, plant eqdipment, the cost and related accumulated degitior amortization
is eliminated from the accounts and any related geioss is reflected in the Statements of Openati
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Network engineering costs incurred during the aoiesion phase of the Partnership’s network and éstdte properties
under development are capitalized as part of ptppelant and equipment and recorded as constrnatigprogress until
the projects are completed and placed into service.

Other Assets —Other assets consist of a customer list acquir@d@8. The Partnership amortizes the customeovist
its expected useful life of 6 years using a metbmasistent with historical customer turnover ratesof December 31,
2008, the gross carrying value is $182 and theraatated amortization is $42. As of December 31,8®0e scheduled
amortization of the customer list for the next fixears is $32 for 2009 and $27 for the years 2Bddugh 2013.

FCC Licenses The Federal Communications Commission (“FCC")ésslicenses that authorize cellular carriers to
provide service in specific cellular geographio/gar areas. The FCC grants licenses for terms ¢b tign years. In 1993
the FCC adopted specific standards to apply taleellenewals, concluding it will reward a liceneaewal to a cellular
licensee that meets certain standards of pastrmpeaftce. Historically, the FCC has granted licemseewals routinely. All
wireless licenses issued by the FCC that authdnizd>artnership to provide cellular services acenged on the books of
Cellco. The current term of the PartnerskipCC license expires in October 2010 and April2@ellco believes it will k
able to meet all requirements necessary to seenmemal of the Partnership’s cellular license.

Valuation of Assets— Long-lived assets, including property, plant &edipment and intangible assets with finite lives,
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or gharn circumstances indicate that the carryinguarhof the asset
may not be recoverable. The carrying amount ohg-loved asset is not recoverable if it exceedsstiva of the
undiscounted cash flows expected to result fromueeand eventual disposition of the asset. Thaimmgnt loss, if
determined to be necessary, would be measurea asrtbunt by which the carrying amount of the asgeteds the fair
value of the asset.

As discussed above, the FCC licenses under whePRdntnership operates are recorded on the bodkslizb. Cellco
does not charge the Partnership for the use oF&@ license recorded on its books (except for tireial cost of $30
related to the spectrum lease, as discussed in3yokowever, Cellco believes that under the Pastrip agreement it has
the right to allocate, based on a reasonable metbgg, any impairment loss recognized by Cellcodibiticenses include
in Cellco’s national footprint. Accordingly, the Bdicenses, including the license under which thdrrship operates,
recorded on the books of Cellco are evaluatednfigairment by Cellco, under the guidance set fartBtatement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 1&jodwill and Other Intangible Assets.

The FCC licenses are treated as an indefiniterttngible asset under the provisions of SFAS M@. dnd are not
amortized, but rather are tested for impairmentafin or between annual dates, if events or cirdantes warrant. All of
the licenses in Cellco’s nationwide footprint agsted in the aggregate for impairment under SFASIMD.

Cellco evaluates its wireless licenses for potémti@airment annually, and more frequently if inations of impairment
exist. Cellco tests its licenses on an aggregatis hia accordance with EITF No. 024Fnit of Accounting for Testing
Impairment of Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assetssing a direct value methodology in accordandb ®EC Staff
Announcement No. D-108)se of the Residual Method to Value Acquired Asstber than Goodwill The direct value
approach determines fair value using estimatesatafé cash flows associated specifically with theeless licenses. If the
fair value of the aggregated wireless licensesds than the aggregated carrying amount of thdegBdicenses, an
impairment is recognized. Cellco evaluated its lese licenses for potential impairment as of Decanild, 2008 and
December 15, 2007. These evaluations resulted impairment of Cellco’s wireless licenses.
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Fair Value Measurements —SFAS No. 157Fair Value Measurementdgfines fair value, expands disclosures about fair
value measurements, establishes a framework fosumieg fair value in generally accepted accountirigciples and
establishes a hierarchy that categorizes and pzesithe sources to be used to estimate fair valoder SFAS No. 157,

fair value is defined as an exit price, represegntite amount that would be received to sell antasggaid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between margatticipants. SFAS 157 also establishes a thrediigearchy for inputs
used in measuring fair value, which prioritizes ittpguts used in the valuation methodologies in meag fair value:

Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets for id=aitassets or liabilities
Level 2 — Observable inputs other than quoted prineactive markets for identical assets and |l
Level 3 — No observable pricing inputs in the marke

On February 12, 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. F#vs2] Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 4#7ich delays the
effective date of SFAS No. 157 for one year fomalhfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilitiescept those that are
recognized or disclosed at fair value in the finahstatements on a recurring basis. The Partreedbcted a partial
deferral of SFAS No. 157 under the provisions oPF®. 157-2 related to the measurement of fairevaked when
evaluating wireless licenses and other long-liveskss for impairment. On October 10, 2008, the FASSBed FSP

No. 157-3,Determining the Fair Value of a Financial Asset \Wlilee Market for That Asset Is Not Actiwghich clarifies
application of SFAS No. 157 in a market that is active. FSP No. 157-3 was effective upon issuaincijding prior
periods for which financial statements have nontissued. The impact of partially adopting SFAS &7 on January 1,
2008 and the related FSP No. 157-3 was not matertak financial statements.

Effective January 1, 2009, as permitted by FSP1§@-2, the Partnership adopted the provisions #&SHNo. 157 related
to the nonrecurring measurement of fair value used when ewialg certain nonfinancial assets, including wisslécense
and other long-lived assets, in the determinatidompairment under SFAS No. 142 or SFAS No. 144) when
measuring the acquisition-date fair values of nuariicial assets and nonfinancial liabilities in aibass combination in
accordance with SFAS No. 141(Bsiness Combinations (Revised)

Concentrations—To the extent the Partnership’s customer recegésabkcome delinquent, collection activities comreenc
No single customer is large enough to presentrafsignt financial risk to the Partnership. ThetRarship maintains an
allowance for losses based on the expected cdiiffstiof accounts receivable.

Cellco and the Partnership rely on local and loistadce telephone companies, some of whom aredetatrties, and
other companies to provide certain communicationises. Although management believes alternative
telecommunications facilities could be found innagly manner, any disruption of these servicesapattentially have an
adverse impact on the Partnership’s operating tesul

Although Cellco attempts to maintain multiple verslfor its network assets and inventory, whichiamgortant
components of its operations, they are currentijuaed from only a few sources. Certain of thes®lpcts are in turn
utilized by the Partnership and are important congmts of the Partnership’s operations. If the Sepphlre unable to meet
Cellco’s needs as it builds out its network infrasture and sells service and equipment, delaysramndased costs in the
expansion of the Partnership’s network infrastreetar losses of potential customers could resuiicivwould adversely
affect operating results.

Financial Instruments—The Partnership’s trade receivables and payabéeshmrt-term in nature, and accordingly, their
carrying value approximates fair value.

Due from General Partne—Due from General Partner principally represenésRartnership’s cash position. Cellco
manages all cash, inventory, investing and finameictivities of the Partnership. As such, the cleanglue from General
Partner is reflected as an investing activity financing activity in the Statements of Cash Flalepending on whether it
represents a net asset or net liability for tharfeaship.
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Additionally, administrative and operating coststirred by Cellco, as well as property, plant, aggigment transactions
with affiliates, are charged to the Partnershipuigh this account. Interest income or interest Bgpés based on the
average monthly outstanding balance in this accandtis calculated by applying the General Parsn@verage cost of
borrowing from Verizon Global Funding, a wholly-oeah subsidiary of Verizon Communications, Inc., Whicas
approximately 3.9%, 5.4% and 5.4% for the yearsdridecember 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectivedyided in net
interest income is interest income of $240, $278$207 for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2002006,
respectively, related to the due from General Rartn

Distributions — Distributions are made to partners at the discneticthe General Partner based upon the Partnésship
operating results, cash availability and finanaiegds as determined by the General Partner aateetidistribution.

Recently Issued Accounting PronouncementB April 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. FAS 14D8termination of the
Useful Life of Intangible Asset$SP 142-3 removes the requirement under SFASAbto consider whether an
intangible asset can be renewed without substasd&ilor material modifications to the existingrsrand conditions, and
replaces it with a requirement that an entity cdeisits own historical experience in renewing samdrrangements, or a
consideration of market participant assumptiorthénabsence of historical experience. FSP 142e3ratyuires entities to
disclose information that enables users of findratetements to assess the extent to which theceegbéuture cash flows
associated with the asset are affected by theyenititent and/or ability to renew or extend theaagement. The
Partnership is required to adopt FSP 142-3 effectanuary 1, 2009 on a prospective basis. The iadogt FSP 142-3 on
January 1, 2009 did not have an impact on the fiahstatements.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 1Bikclosures about Derivative Instruments and Heddhativities — an
amendment of FASB Statement No. 1BBis statement requires additional disclosuresiéivative instruments and
hedging activities that include how and why antgnises derivatives, how these instruments andelaged hedged items
are accounted for under SFAS No. 133 and relategpretations, and how derivative instruments @tated hedged iten
affect the entitys financial position, results of operations anchdémwvs. SFAS No. 161 is effective for financiahtement
issued for fiscal years and interim periods begigrafter November 15, 2008. The adoption of SFASI%4 on

January 1, 2009 did not have an impact on the fiahstatements.
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In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 14EHR3jness Combinations (Reviseth replace SFAS No. 141,
Business CombinationsSFAS No. 141(R) requires the use of the acqaisithethod of accounting, defines the acquirer,
establishes the acquisition date and broadenstpego all transactions and other events in whitdh entity obtains
control over one or more other businesses. Thisraent is effective for business combinations angactions entered in
for fiscal years beginning on or after December2l)8. The adoption of SFAS No. 141(R) on JanuaB009 did not
have an impact on the financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. Nefcontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financ&thtements — an
amendment of ARB No. 58FAS No. 160 establishes accounting and repostiaugdards for the noncontrolling interest in
a subsidiary and for the retained interest and galoss when a subsidiary is deconsolidated. $taitement is effective f
financial statements issued for fiscal years bdgmon or after December 15, 2008 prospectivelgepkfor the
presentation and disclosure requirements whichbeilapplied retrospectively for all periods presdnfThe adoption of
SFAS No. 160 on January 1, 2009 did not have amétpn the financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. T8& Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Fical Liabilities.
SFAS No. 159 permits entities to choose to meaaligible items at fair value, and to report unreadi gains and losses in
earnings on items for which the fair value opti@s bbeen elected. The Partnership adopted SFASH9ceflective
January 1, 2008 and the impact of adoption dichage an impact on the financial statements.
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3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment consists of the fahg as of December 31, 2008 and 2007:

Useful Lives 2008 2007

Buildings and improvemen 1C-40 year $ 5,91¢ $ 5,65(
Cellular plant equipmet 3-15 year 22,04: 25,77(
Furniture, fixtures and equipme 2-5 year: 34¢€ 69¢
Leasehold improvemen 5 year 1,06¢ 93C

29,37 33,04t
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize 16,95¢ 20,67:
Property, plant and equipment, | $  12,41¢ $ 1237

Capitalized network engineering costs of $126 at@bdvere recorded during the years ended Decenih@088 and
2007 respectively. Construction-pregress included in certain of the classificatishewn above, principally cellular ple
equipment, amounted to $154 and $1,283 at Dece®iIh&008 and 2007 respectively.

4. CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consigheffollowing as of December 31.:

2008 2007
Accounts payabl $ 1,78t $ 2,03t
Accrued liabilities 38¢ 358
Accounts payable and accrued libilit $ 2,17¢ $ 2,38¢

Advance billings and customer deposits consisheffvllowing as of December 31:

2008 2007
Advance billings $ 2,22( $ 1,93t
Customer deposit 172 162
Advance billings and customer depo: $ 2,392 $ 2,097
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5. TRANSACTIONS WITH AFFILIATES AND RELATED PARTIES
Significant transactions with affiliates (Cellcodhits related entities) and other related partiesduding allocations and
direct charges, are summarized as follows for #evyended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006:
2008 2007 2006
Service revenues (. $ 15,72 $  13,70: $  18,06:
Equipment and other revenues 1,06¢€ 1,08¢ 1,24¢
Cost of service (c 29,43¢ 25,80: 30,31¢
Cost of equipment (c 1,35¢ 1,08¢ 75€
Selling, general and administrative 17,04( 15,88¢ 13,73:
(&) Service revenues include roaming revenuesimglto customers of other affiliated markets glaiistance, data and
allocated conti-revenues including revenue concessi
(b) Equipment and other revenues include cellishaevenues, sales of handsets and accessodesdlacated contra-
revenues including equipment concessions and corglates
(c) Cost of service includes roaming costs netatb customers roaming in other affiliated marketgitch costs, cell sharing
costs and allocated cost of telecom, long distasee handset applicatior
(d) Cost of equipment includes handsets, accessoridsalbbcated warehousing and freic
(e) Selling, general and administrative expeirsgade salaries, commissions and billing, andcaited office telecom,

customer care, sales and marketing, advertisirdjcammissions

All affiliate transactions captured above, are base actual amounts directly incurred by Cellcdhehalf of the
Partnership and/or allocations from Cellco. Reverared expenses were allocated based on the Phipiesercentage of
total customers or gross customer additions or tamaf use, where applicable. The General Parlarves the
allocations are reasonable. The affiliate traneastiare not necessarily conducted at arm’s length.

On January 1, 2008, the Partnership purchased&it8roers from an affiliate for $182.

The Partnership had net purchases involving pfaoperty, and equipment from affiliates with a hebk value of $1,234,
$2,740 and $1,710 in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respytiv

The Partnership is involved in several cell shadggeements with related affiliates in which thetfarship receives

revenues from affiliates for the use of the Paghigr's cell sites and incurs costs for the useffilfaes’ cell sites. Cell
sharing revenues were $1,419, $1,447 and $1,73hdoyears ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and g&jictively.
Cell sharing costs were $2,240, $1,880 and $2,60thé years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 andr28p6ctively.

On January 1, 2007, the Partnership entered iaselagreements for the right to use additionaltapeoowned by Cellco.
The initial term of these agreements is ten yektrs.2008 and 2007 annual lease commitment of $82a8 respectively
represents the costs of financing the spectrumdard not necessarily reflect the economic valubetervices received.
No additional spectrum purchases or lease commisrieave been entered into by the Partnership Beoémber 31,
2008.
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6. COMMITMENTS

The General Partner, on behalf of the Partnersimig the Partnership itself have entered into oppeyétases for facilities,
equipment and spectrum used in its operations.d_eastracts include renewal options that includ egpense
adjustments based on the Consumer Price Indexlaasv@nnual and end-of-lease term adjustmentst &grense is
recorded on a straight-line basis. The noncancelabke term used to calculate the amount of thgbktline rent expens
is generally determined to be the initial leasent@ncluding any optional renewal terms that assomably assured.
Leasehold improvements related to these operatemel are amortized over the shorter of their asgruseful lives or
the noncancelable lease term. For the years endeeniber 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, the Partnerstmgmézed a total of
$1,100, $853 and $1,040, respectively, as rentresepeelated to payments under these operatingsleabech was
included in cost of service and general and aditnatise expenses in the accompanying Statemer@pefations.

Aggregate future minimum rental commitments und@raancelable operating leases, excluding renewlrepthat are
not reasonably assured, for the years shown dsdlaws:

Years Amount

2009 $ 794
2010 64¢€
2011 47€
2012 34¢
2013 25¢€
2014 and thereaftt 39¢
Total minimum payment $ 2,927

From time to time the General Partner enters intghm|mse commitments, primarily for network equipten behalf of th
Partnership.

7. CONTINGENCIES

Cellco is subject to various lawsuits and otheinataincluding class actions, product liability, @at infringement,
antitrust, partnership disputes, and claims invajvielations with resellers and agents. Cellcdsis defending lawsuits
filed against itself and other participants in tiiecless industry alleging various adverse effasta result of wireless
phone usage. Various consumer class action laneietge that Cellco breached contracts with conssywiolated certain
state consumer protection laws and other statumesiefrauded customers through concealed or misigéilling
practices. Certain of these lawsuits and othemdanay impact the Partnership. These litigationtensimay involve
indemnification obligations by third parties andédfiliated parties covering all or part of any @otial damage awards
against Cellco and the Partnership and/or insuraacerage. All of the above matters are subjeatdoy uncertainties,
and outcomes are not predictable with assurance.

The Partnership may be allocated a portion of Hreapes that may result upon adjudication of thesitens if the
claimants prevail in their actions. Consequentig, tiltimate liability with respect to these mattar®ecember 31, 2008
cannot be ascertained. The potential effect, if amythe financial statements of the Partnershighé period in which
these matters are resolved, may be material.

114




Table of Contents

In addition to the aforementioned matters, Celtcslibject to various other legal actions and claimtbe normal course
business. While Cellco’s legal counsel cannot gissurance as to the outcome of each of these mattenanagement’s
opinion, based on the advice of such legal coutiselyltimate liability with respect to any of tleeactions, or all of them
combined, will not materially affect the financ&thtements of the Partnership.

8. RECONCILIATION OF ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

Balance at Additions Write-offs Balance at
Beginning Charged to Net of End
of the Year Operations Recoveries of the Year
Accounts Receivable Allowance
2008 $ 154 $ 48< $ 412) $ 22¢
2007 202 27¢ (32€) 154
2006 10& 29C (299 20z

*kkkkk
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Partners of GTE Mobilnet of Texas #17 Limifartnership:

We have audited the accompanying balance she&3BfMobilnet of Texas #17 Limited Partnership (tRartnership”) as of
December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related staterokoperations, changes in partners’ capital,aash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 3B.2these financial statements are the resporigibilithe Partnership’s
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these financial statements based on outsaud

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighaBioUnited States).
Those standards require that we plan and perfoenatidit to obtain reasonable assurance about whbe#hénancial statemen
are free of material misstatement. The Partneiishipt required to have, nor were we engaged iope, an audit of its
internal control over financial reporting. Our atudicluded consideration of internal control ovieahcial reporting as a basis
for designing audit procedures that are appropimatle circumstances but not for the purpose pf@ssing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Partnership’s internal contradr financial reporting. Accordingly, we expregssuch opinion. An audit
also includes examining, on a test basis, evidsnpgorting the amounts and disclosures in the filahstatements, assessing
the accounting principles used and significannestés made by management, as well as evaluatirgyérall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such financial statements presainlyf in all material respects, the financial gimsi of the Partnership as of
December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the results op#sations and its cash flows for each of the tlgesers in the period ended
December 31, 2008, in conformity with accountinipgiples generally accepted in the United State&roérica.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Atlanta, GA
March 16, 2009
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GTE MOBILNET OF TEXAS #17 LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2008 AND 2007
(Dollars in Thousands)

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $385 aBiti3
Unbilled revenu
Due from General Partn
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Total current asse
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMEN—Net
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS’ CAPITAL
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit
Advance billings and customer depo:
Total current liabilities
LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Total liabilities
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (see Notes 6 and
PARTNERS CAPITAL

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS CAPITAL

See notes to financial statements.
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2008 2007
3,38¢ 3,00€
1,051 957
6,32 7,40z

20 8
10,77¢ 11,36¢
50,71 40,06:
61,49t 51,43

1,89¢ 1,57¢
94C 77
2,83¢ 2,35z
33¢ 27C
3,171 2,62
58,32 48,80¢
61,49t 51,43
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GTE MOBILNET OF TEXAS #17 LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008, 2007 AND 2006
(Dollars in Thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES (see Note 5 for Transactionwffiliates
and Related Parties
Service revenue
Equipment and other revent

Total operating revenut

OPERATING COSTS AND EXPENSES (see Note 5 for Tratisas
with Affiliates and Related Parties
Cost of service (excluding depreciation and amatitin related to
network assets included belo
Cost of equipmer
Selling, general and administrati
Depreciation and amortizatic

Total operating costs and expen
OPERATING INCOME

OTHER INCOME:
Interest income, ne

Total other incomi

NET INCOME

Allocation of Net Income
Limited partners
General Partne

See notes to financial statements.
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2008 2007 2006
$ 55,37¢ $ 48,09¢ 45,29t
5,081 4,341 4,00¢
60,45 52,43. 49,29¢
17,327 15,02¢ 13,53¢
6,60¢ 5,08t 3,70¢
16,13: 14,14: 12,40!
6,01 5,02( 4,491
46,08! 39,27¢ 34,13
14,37¢ 13,16 15,161
142 55C 472
14z 55C 472
$ 14,51¢ $ 13,71: 15,63¢
$ 11,61« $ 10,97( 12,50«
$ 2,90/ $ 2,742 3,12¢
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GTE MOBILNET OF TEXAS #17 LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN PARTNERS’ CAPITAL
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008, 2007 AND 2006
(Dollars in Thousands)

General
Partner Limited Partners
San Eastex Consolidated ALLTEL San
Antonio Telecom  Telecomr Communications Communications Antonio  Total
MTA, Investments Supply, Transport Investments, MTA, Partners’
L.P. L.P. Inc. Company L.P. Capital
BALANCE—January 1,
2006 $ 7,29 $ 6,201 $ 6,207 $ 6,207 $ 6,207 $ 4,34¢ $ 36,46«
Distributions (1,207 (2,02  (1,02) (1,027 (1,027 (715) (6,000
Net income 3,12¢ 2,66( 2,66( 2,66( 2,66( 1,864 15,63
BALANCE—December 3:
2006 9,22( 7,84¢ 7,84¢ 7,84¢ 7,84¢ 5,49: 46,097
Distributions (2,200 (1,872) (1,872 (1,8772) (2,872 (1,317 (11,000
Net income 2,742 2,33¢ 2,33¢ 2,33¢ 2,33¢ 1,63¢ 13,71:
BALANCE—December 3:
2007 9,76 8,30¢ 8,30¢ 8,30¢ 8,30¢ 5,81°F 48,80¢
Distributions (1,000 (851 (8571) (851 (85)) (596) (5,000
Net income 2,90¢ 2,471 2,471 2,471 2,471 1,73( 14,51¢
BALANCE—December 3:
2008 $11,66¢ $ 9,92¢ $ 9,92t $ 9,92¢ $ 9,92¢ $ 6,94¢ $ 58,32]

See notes to financial statements.
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GTE MOBILNET OF TEXAS #17 LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008, 2007 AND 2006
(Dollars in Thousands)

2008 2007 2006
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 14,51¢ $ 13,71: $ 15,63:
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortizatic 6,01: 5,02( 4,491
Provision for losses on accounts receiv: 93€ 887 717
Changes in certain assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl (1,319 (2,297 (937)
Unbilled revenu (99 95 (13¢)
Prepaid expenses and other current a: (12 5 1
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit 542 (149 76
Advance billings and customer depo: 167 152 4
Long term liabilities 65 24 10¢
Net cash provided by operating activit 20,81 18,45¢ 19,95¢
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditures, including purchases fronliaféis, ne: (16,895 (20,799 (10,049
Change in due from General Partner, 1,08: 3,34 (3,919
Net cash used in investing activiti (15,817) (7,45%) (13,95¢6)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Distributions to partner (5,000 (11,000 (6,000)
Net cash used in financing activiti (5,000 (11,000 (6,000
CHANGE IN CASH — — —
CASH—Beginning of yea — — —
CASH—ENd of yeal $ — $ — $ —
NONCASH TRANSACTIONS FROM INVESTING AND FINANCINC
ACTIVITIES:
Accruals for capital expenditur: $ 17¢ $ 24z $ 214

See notes to financial statements.
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GTE MOBILNET OF TEXAS #17 LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008, 2007 AND 2006
(Dollars in Thousands)

1. ORGANIZATION AND MANAGEMENT
GTE Mobilnet of Texas #17 Limited Partnership-GTE Mobilnet of Texas #17 Limited Partnership (tRartnership”)
was formed on June 13, 1989. The principal actioftthe Partnership is providing cellular servindhe Texas #17 rural
service area.

The partners and their respective ownership peagestas of December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 $oHags:

General Partne

San Antonio MTA, L.P.? 20.000%%
Limited Partners

Eastex Telecom Investments, L 17.021%

Telecom Supply, Inc 17.021%

Consolidated Communications Transport Comg 17.021%

ALLTEL Communications Investments, Ir 17.021%

San Antonio MTA, L.P.? 11.9140%

*  San Antonio MTA, L.P. (“General Partner”) isnnolly-owned subsidiary of Cellco Partnership (“I€el) doing business
as Verizon Wireles:

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Use of Estimates—The preparation of financial statements in confgrwith accounting principles generally accepted i
the United States of America requires managememiatce estimates and assumptions that affect tleetezbamounts of
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of cgeatitt assets and liabilities at the date of thenfifed statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses dugngpiorting period. Actual results may differ fréimose estimates.
Estimates are used for, but not limited to, theoaoting for: allocations, allowance for uncolletilaccounts receivable,
unbilled revenue, fair value of financial instrunt&rdepreciation and amortization, useful lives emplairment of assets,
accrued expenses, and contingencies. Estimategsandptions are periodically reviewed and the effetany material
revisions are reflected in the financial statemémtie period that they are determined to be rszogs

Revenue Recognitior-The Partnership earns revenue by providing adecetse network (access revenue) and for usage
of the network (airtime/usage revenue), which idelsiroaming and long distance revenue. In gersoegss revenue is
billed one month in advance and is recognized vd@ned; the unearned portion is classified in ackdnillings.
Airtime/usage revenue, roaming revenue and longuaég revenue are recognized when service is redderd included |
unbilled revenue until billed. Equipment sales rexeassociated with the sale of wireless handsetaecessories is
recognized when the products are delivered to anéded by the customer, as this is considered todeparate earnings
process from the sale of wireless services. Inraese with the provisions of Emerging Issues Temke (“EITF”) Issue
No. 00-21 Accounting for Revenue Arrangements with Multipt#iirables, the Partnership recognizes customer
activation fees as part of equipment revenue. dheing rates charged by the Partnership to Cethoood necessarily
reflect current market rates. The Partnership eaiitinue to re-evaluate the rates on a perioditsligee Note 5). The
Partnership’s revenue recognition policies arectoedance with the Securities and Exchange Comoniss{(“*SEC") Staff
Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 10IRevenue Recognition in Financial Statemei@8B No. 104Revenue Recognition
and EITF Issue No. 00-21.
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The Partnership reports taxes imposed by goverrahaunthorities on revenue-producing transactiomaden the
Partnership and its customers that are within tiope of EITF No. 06-3F1ow Taxes Collected from Customers and
Remitted to Governmental Authorities Should Be érexd in the Income Statemeimtsthe financial statements on a net
basis.

Operating Costs and ExpensesOperating expenses include expenses incurredtlfitecthe Partnership, as well as an
allocation of certain administrative and operatiogts incurred by Cellco or its affiliates on béludithe Partnership.
Employees of Cellco provide services performed emalif of the Partnership. These employees aremplayees of the
Partnership and therefore, operating expensesdadirect and allocated charges of salary and graplbenefit costs for
the services provided to the Partnership. The GéRartner believes such allocations, principatigdd on the
Partnership’s percentage of total customers, custgmoss additions or minutes-of-use, are reasendblke roaming rates
charged to the Partnership by Cellco do not nedéssaflect current market rates. The Partnershilpcontinue to re-
evaluate the rates on a periodic basis (see Note 5)

Income Taxes—The Partnership is not a taxable entity for fetanal state income tax purposes. Any taxable income
loss is apportioned to the partners based on tbgrective partnership interests and is reportetthday individually.

Inventory —Inventory is owned by Cellco and held on consigniniey the Partnership. Such consigned inventonpts
recorded on the Partnership’s financial statemaien sale, the related cost of the inventoryasagferred to the
Partnership at Cellco’s cost basis and includatiénraccompanying Statements of Operations.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts—The Partnership maintains allowances for uncalbdéeiaccounts receivable for
estimated losses resulting from the inability o$touners to make required payments. Estimates aegllan the aging of
the accounts receivable balances and the histaritg@-off experience, net of recoveries.

Property, Plant and Equipment—Property, plant and equipment primarily represeptss incurred to construct and
expand capacity and network coverage on Mobilepfelae Switching Offices (“MTSOs”) and cell sitehelcost of
property, plant and equipment is depreciated dsezstimated useful life using the straight-linetloe of accounting.
Leasehold improvements are amortized over the eshofttheir estimated useful lives or the termtaf telated lease.
Major improvements to existing plant and equiprestcapitalized. Routine maintenance and repaditsdih not extend
the life of the plant and equipment are chargeskjfmense as incurred.

Upon the sale or retirement of property, plant agdipment, the cost and related accumulated degie@eior amortization
is eliminated from the accounts and any related geioss is reflected in the Statements of Openati

Network engineering costs incurred during the aoiesion phase of the Partnership’s network and éstdte properties
under development are capitalized as part of ptppplant and equipment and recorded as construatigprogress until
the projects are completed and placed into service.

FCC Licenses— The Federal Communications Commission (“FCC")ésslicenses that authorize cellular carriers to
provide service in specific cellular geographic/gar areas. The FCC grants licenses for terms ob tign years. In 1993,
the FCC adopted specific standards to apply taleellenewals, concluding it will reward a licensaewal to a cellular
licensee that meets certain standards of pastmpeaftce. Historically, the FCC has granted licemsewals routinely. All
wireless licenses issued by the FCC that authtiizd®artnership to provide cellular services acended on the books of,
and owned by, Cellco. The current term of the Rastnip’'s FCC license expires in December 2009.cGddelieves it will
be able to meet all requirements necessary toseenewal of the Partnership’s cellular license.
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Valuation of Assets— Long-lived assets, including property, plant @edipment and intangible assets with finite lives,
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or ghann circumstances indicate that the carryinguarhof the asset
may not be recoverable. The carrying amount ohg-oved asset is not recoverable if it exceedsstiva of the
undiscounted cash flows expected to result fromueeand eventual disposition of the asset. Thaimmgnt loss, if
determined to be necessary, would be measurec asrthunt by which the carrying amount of the asse¢eds the fair
value of the asset.

As discussed above, the FCC license under whicRa@nmership operates is recorded on the bookelddC Cellco does
not charge the Partnership for the use of any F&®se recorded on its books (except for the antngtlof $76 related to
the spectrum lease, as discussed in Note 5). How@€edico believes that under the Partnership agese it has the right
to allocate, based on a reasonable methodologyingmsirment loss recognized by Cellco for all lisea included in
Cellco’s national footprint. Accordingly, the FCigdnses, including the license under which therfeaship operates,
recorded on the books of Cellco are evaluatednfigairment by Cellco, under the guidance set fartBtatement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 1&odwill and Other Intangible Assets

The FCC licenses are treated as an indefiniterttngible asset on the books of Cellco under togipions of SFAS

No. 142 and are not amortized, but rather areddstempairment annually or between annual dafes;ents or
circumstances warrant. All of the licenses in Gefimationwide footprint are tested in the aggredat impairment under
SFAS No. 142.

Cellco evaluates its wireless licenses for potémti@airment annually, and more frequently if inations of impairment
exist. Cellco tests its licenses on an aggregatis hia accordance with EITF No. 024Fnit of Accounting for Testing
Impairment of Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assetssing a direct value methodology in accordandd $EC Staff
Announcement No. D-108)se of the Residual Method to Value Acquired Assther than Goodwill The direct value
approach determines fair value using estimatesatafé cash flows associated specifically with theeless licenses. If the
fair value of the aggregated wireless licenseess than the aggregated carrying amount of thdegsdicenses, an
impairment is recognized. Cellco evaluated its l@se licenses for potential impairment as of Deaamis, 2008 and
December 15, 2007. These evaluations resulted impairment of Cellco’s wireless licenses.

Fair Value Measurements —SFAS No. 157Fair Value Measurementdgfines fair value, expands disclosures about fair
value measurements, establishes a framework fosumieg fair value in generally accepted accountirigciples and
establishes a hierarchy that categorizes and presithe sources to be used to estimate fair valoder SFAS No. 157,

fair value is defined as an exit price, representire amount that would be received to sell antasgegaid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between margatticipants. SFAS 157 also establishes a thrediigearchy for inputs
used in measuring fair value, which prioritizes ittpguts used in the valuation methodologies in meag fair value:

Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets for id=aitassets or liabilities

Level 2 — Observable inputs other than quoted prineactive markets for identical assets and sl

Level 3 — No observable pricing inputs in the marke
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On February 12, 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. P&s2] Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 4#7ich delays the
effective date of SFAS No. 157 for one year fomalhfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilitiescept those that are
recognized or disclosed at fair value in the finahstatements on a recurring basis. The Partreedbcted a partial
deferral of SFAS No. 157 under the provisions oPF®. 157-2 related to the measurement of fairevaked when
evaluating wireless licenses and other long-liveskss for impairment. On October 10, 2008, the FAsSBed FSP

No. 157-3,Determining the Fair Value of a Financial Asset \Wltlee Market for That Asset Is Not Actiwghich clarifies
application of SFAS No. 157 in a market that is active. FSP No. 157-3 was effective upon issuaincijding prior
periods for which financial statements have nonliesued. The impact of partially adopting SFAS M8/ on January 1,
2008 and the related FSP No. 157-3 was not matertak financial statements.

Effective January 1, 2009, as permitted by FSP18@-2, the Partnership adopted the provisions #&$SHNo. 157 related
to the nonrecurring measurement of fair value used when ety certain nonfinancial assets, including wisslécense
and other long-lived assets, in the determinatidompairment under SFAS No. 142 or SFAS No. 144] when
measuring the acquisition-date fair values of nuariicial assets and nonfinancial liabilities in aibass combination in
accordance with SFAS No. 141(Bysiness Combinations (Revised)

Concentrations—To the extent the Partnership’s customer recegésabkcome delinquent, collection activities comreenc
No single customer is large enough to presentrafsignt financial risk to the Partnership. ThetRarship maintains an
allowance for losses based on the expected cdiifggtiof accounts receivable.

Cellco and the Partnership rely on local and loistadce telephone companies, some of whom aredetetrties, and
other companies to provide certain communicationises. Although management believes alternative
telecommunications facilities could be found innagly manner, any disruption of these servicesapuottentially have an
adverse impact on the Partnership’s operating tesul

Although Cellco and the General Partner attempbaintain multiple vendors for its network assetd mventory, which
are important components of its operations, theycarrently acquired from only a few sources. Geré these products
are in turn utilized by the Partnership and aredrtgnt components of the Partnership’s operatiifitise suppliers are
unable to meet Cellco’s needs as it builds outetsvork infrastructure and sells service and egeipindelays and
increased costs in the expansion of the Partnésshgtwork infrastructure or losses of potentiadtomers could result,
which would adversely affect operating results.

Financial Instruments—The Partnership’s trade receivables and payalbéeshert-term in nature, and accordingly, their
carrying value approximates fair value.

Due from General Partne—Due from General Partner principally represenésRartnership’s cash position. Cellco
manages, on behalf of the General Partner, all, éagbntory, investing and financing activitiestbé Partnership. As
such, the change in due from General Partnerlisctefl as an investing activity or a financingattiin the Statements of
Cash Flows depending on whether it represents asset or net liability for the Partnership.

Additionally, administrative and operating coststirred by Cellco on behalf of the General Partagnyell as property,
plant, and equipment transactions with affiliate® charged to the Partnership through this acctntetest income or
interest expense is based on the average monttdtaading balance in this account and is calculayedpplying the
General Partner’s average cost of borrowing from2éa Global Funding, a wholly-owned subsidiaryarizon
Communications, Inc., which was approximately 3.8%4% and 5.4% for the years ended December 3B, 2007 and
2006, respectively. Included in net interest incaosiaterest income of $148, $554 and $477 foryders ended
December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectivelteelto the due from General Partner.

Distributions —The Partnership is required to make distributi@ni¢st partners on a quarterly basis based upon the

Partnership’s operating results, cash availabdlitg financing needs as determined by the Genertdd?at the date of the
distribution.
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Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncementén April 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. FAS 14D8termination of th
Useful Life of Intangible Asset$SP 142-3 removes the requirement under SFASAto consider whether an
intangible asset can be renewed without substartilor material modifications to the existingrierand conditions, and
replaces it with a requirement that an entity cdeisits own historical experience in renewing samdrrangements, or a
consideration of market participant assumptionthéabsence of historical experience. FSP 142&3rafyuires entities to
disclose information that enables users of findratetements to assess the extent to which theceegbéuture cash flows
associated with the asset are affected by they&nititent and/or ability to renew or extend theaagement. The
Partnership is required to adopt FSP 142-3 effectanuary 1, 2009 on a prospective basis. The iadapit FSP 142-3 on
January 1, 2009 did not have an impact on the fiahstatements.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 1Bikclosures about Derivative Instruments and Heddhativities — an
amendment of FASB Statement No. 1BBis statement requires additional disclosuresiéivative instruments and
hedging activities that include how and why antgnises derivatives, how these instruments andeflaged hedged items
are accounted for under SFAS No. 133 and relatedpiretations, and how derivative instruments afated hedged iten
affect the entitys financial position, results of operations anchdémswvs. SFAS No. 161 is effective for financightgment
issued for fiscal years and interim periods begigrafter November 15, 2008. The adoption of SFAST%4 on

January 1, 2009 did not have an impact on the fiahstatements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 14HR3iness Combinations (Reviset) replace SFAS No. 141,
Business Combinations$SFAS No. 141(R) requires the use of the acqaisithethod of accounting, defines the acquirer,
establishes the acquisition date and broadenstpego all transactions and other events in wbighentity obtains
control over one or more other businesses. Thierstnt is effective for business combinations angactions entered into
for fiscal years beginning on or after December2®8. The adoption of SFAS No. 141(R) on JanuaB009 did not
have an impact on the financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. Nafcontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financ&htements — an
amendment of ARB No. 58FAS No. 160 establishes accounting and repostaugdards for the noncontrolling interest in
a subsidiary and for the retained interest and galoss when a subsidiary is deconsolidated. Staitement is effective fi
financial statements issued for fiscal years bagmon or after December 15, 2008 prospectivelgepxkfor the
presentation and disclosure requirements whichbeilapplied retrospectively for all periods presdnihe adoption of
SFAS No. 160 on January 1, 2009 did not have amdéinpn the financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. T8®& Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Fioal Liabilities.
SFAS No. 159 permits entities to choose to measligible items at fair value, and to report unreadi gains and losses in
earnings on items for which the fair value opti@s bbeen elected. The Partnership adopted SFASH9ceflective
January 1, 2008 and the impact of adoption dichage an impact on the financial statements.

125




Table of Contents

3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment consists of the fahg as of December 31, 2008 and 2007:

Useful lives 2008 2007

Buildings and improvemen 1C-40 year $ 18,79( $ 16,29(
Cellular plant equipmet 3-15 year 54,39¢ 51,26¢
Furniture, fixtures and equipme 2-5 year: 75 75
Leasehold improvemen 5 year 3,56: 3,11¢

76,82« 70,751
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize 26,10t 30,68¢
Property, plant and equipment, | $  50,71¢ $  40,06:

Capitalized network engineering costs of $565 adithdvere recorded during the years ended Decenih@088 and
2007, respectively. Construction-in-progress inellich certain of the classifications shown abovimgipally cellular
plant equipment, amounted to $3,570 and $5,784atmdber 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

4. CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consigheffollowing as of December 31.:

Accounts payabl

Non-income based taxes and regulatory
Texas margin tax payah

Accrued commission

Accounts payable and accrued liabilit

Advance billings and customer deposits consisheffvllowing as of December 31:

Advance billings
Customer deposit

Advance billings and customer depo:
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551 $ 74¢
60C 61¢
52C —
22¢ 212
1,89¢ $ 1,57¢
2008 2007
732 $ 59¢
20€ 17¢
94C $ 773
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5. TRANSACTIONS WITH AFFILIATES AND RELATED PARTIES

Significant transactions with affiliates (Cellcodhits related entities) and other related partiesduding allocations and
direct charges, are summarized as follows for #evyended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006:

2008 2007 2006
Service revenues (. $  15,45¢ $ 13,03t $  15,81¢
Equipment and other revenues (289 (259) (27¢)
Cost of service (c 13,517 11,90¢ 10,83¢
Cost of equipment (c 1,14(C 1,03i 531
Selling, general and administrative 9,18( 8,33( 6,712

(a) Service revenues include roaming revenues rel&imgstomers of other affiliated markets, longatise, paging, data a
allocated conti-revenues including revenue concessi

(b) Equipment and other revenues include salésuwofisets and accessories and allocated contrauevéncluding equipment
concessions and coupon reba

(c) Cost of service includes roaming costs netpto customers roaming in other affiliated markpéging, switch usage and
allocated cost of telecom, long distance and harajggications

(d) Cost of equipment includes handsets, accessoridsalbbcated warehousing and freic

(e) Selling, general and administrative expemsgade commissions and billing, and allocatedagffielecom, customer care,
billing, salaries, sales and marketing, advertisargl commission:

All affiliate transactions captured above, are base actual amounts directly incurred by Cellcdhehalf of the
Partnership and/or allocations from Cellco. Reverared expenses were allocated based on the Phipiesercentage of
total customers or gross customer additions or tamaf use, where applicable. The General Parlarves the
allocations are reasonable. The affiliate traneastiare not necessarily conducted at arm’s length.

The Partnership had net purchases involving pfaoperty, and equipment with affiliates with a hebk value of $5,940,
$3,235 and $2,695 in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respbygtiv

On January 1, 2005, the Partnership entered ilgase agreement for the right to use additionattspen owned by
Cellco. The initial term of this agreement was gear, with annual renewal terms. The Partnershipwed the lease
through June 23, 2015. The annual lease commitofe$it6 represents the costs of financing the spettand does not
necessarily reflect the economic value of the ses/received. No additional spectrum purchasesasel commitments
have been entered into by the Partnership as ofibeer 31, 2008.

6. COMMITMENTS

The General Partner, on behalf of the Partnersinig the Partnership itself have entered into opeyétases for facilities,
equipment and spectrum used in its operations.d_eastracts include renewal options that incluch expense
adjustments based on the Consumer Price Indexlhasvennual and end-of-lease term adjustmentst &grense is
recorded on a straight-line basis. The noncancelaelbke term used to calculate the amount of thiglstdine rent expens
is generally determined to be the initial leasenténcluding any optional renewal terms that agesomably assured.
Leasehold improvements related to these operatemek are amortized over the shorter of their asgiruseful lives or
the noncancelable lease term. For the years endeeniber 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, the Partnerstiygmé&ed a total of
$2,511, $1,811 and $1,601, respectively, as rgmerse related to payments under these operatisgdeahich was
included in cost of service in the accompanyingedients of Operations.
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Aggregate future minimum rental commitments underaancelable operating leases, excluding renewgdrapthat are
not reasonably assured, for the years shown dmlaws:

Years Amount

2009 $ 2,42%
2010 1,35(
2011 1,00(¢
2012 8532
2013 737
2014 and thereaft 1,901
Total minimum payment $ 8,26¢

From time to time the General Partner enters intghm|mse commitments, primarily for network equipten behalf of th
Partnership.

7. CONTINGENCIES

Cellco is subject to various lawsuits and otheint$aincluding class actions, product liability, @at infringement,
antitrust, partnership disputes, and claims invajvielations with resellers and agents. Cellcdsis defending lawsuits
filed against itself and other participants in tiiecless industry alleging various adverse effasta result of wireless
phone usage. Various consumer class action lanallége that Cellco breached contracts with conssnwinlated certain
state consumer protection laws and other statumesiefrauded customers through concealed or misigéilling
practices. Certain of these lawsuits and othemdanay impact the Partnership. These litigationensimay involve
indemnification obligations by third parties andédfiliated parties covering all or part of any gotial damage awards
against Cellco and the Partnership and/or insuraacerage. All of the above matters are subjeotdaoy uncertainties,
and outcomes are not predictable with assurance.

The Partnership may be allocated a portion of #aafjes that may result upon adjudication of thesttens if the
claimants prevail in their actions. Consequentig, tiltimate liability with respect to these mattar®ecember 31, 2008
cannot be ascertained. The potential effect, if amythe financial statements of the Partnershighé period in which
these matters are resolved, may be material.

In addition to the aforementioned matters, Celtcslibject to various other legal actions and claimtke normal course
business. While Cellco’s legal counsel cannot gissurance as to the outcome of each of these mattenanagement’s
opinion, based on the advice of such legal coutiselultimate liability with respect to any of tleegctions, or all of them
combined, will not materially affect the financithtements of the Partnership.
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8.

Accounts Receivable Allowance

2008
2007
2006

RECONCILIATION OF ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

Balance at Additions Write -offs Balance at

Beginning Charged to Net of End

of the Year Operations Recoveries of the Year

$ 373 $ 93€ $ 929 % 38t

$ 32¢ $ 887 $ (84%) e
38t 717 (773) 32¢

*kkkkk
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&i{(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyidthas duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the usideied thereunto duly authorized.

Consolidated Communications Holdings, Inc.
(Registrant)

Date: March 16, 2009 By: /s/ Robert J. Currey
Robert J. Currey
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgl Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following
persons on behalf of the Registrant and in theatpsa indicated thereunto duly authorized as ofdfial6, 2009.

Signature Title

/s/ Robert J. Currey President , Chief Executive Officer and Director
Robert J. Curre (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Steven L. Childers Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Steven L. Childer (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

/s/ Richard A. Lumpkin Chairman of the Board of Directors

Richard A. Lumpkir

/s/ Jack W. Blumenstein Director
Jack W. Blumenstei

/sl Roger H. Moore Director
Roger H. Moore

/s/ Maribeth S. Rahe Director
Maribeth S. Rah
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Exhibit
Number

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Description

2.1

3.1

4.1

10.1

10.2

10.c

10.4

10.5

10.€

10.7

10.¢

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of Jul@@72by and among Consolidated Communications
Holdings, Inc., North Pittsburgh Systems, Inc. &adt Pitt Acquisition Sub Inc. (incorporated byerdnce
to Exhibit 2.1 to Current Report on Forr-K dated July 12, 2007

Form of Amended and Restated Certificate of Incaapon (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to
Amendment No. 7 to Form-1 dated July 19, 200&

Form of Amended and Restated Bylaws, as amendedrfiarated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Current
Report on Form -K dated September 11, 200

Specimen Common Stock Certificate (incorporateddigrence to Exhibit 4.1 to Amendment No. 7 to
Form &1 dated July 19, 2005

Credit Agreement, dated December 31, 2007, amomg@idated Communications Holdings, Inc., as
Parent Guarantor, Consolidated Communications, @ansolidated Communications Acquisition Texas,
Inc. and Fort Pitt Acquisition Sub Inc., as Co-Ruvers, the lenders referred to therein, WachoviakBa
National Association, as administrative agent,irggank and swingline lender, CoBank, ACB
syndication agent, General Electric Capital Corpona as co-documentation agent, The Royal Bank of
Scotland PLC, as co-documentation agent, and Wazl@apital Markets, LLC, as sole lead arranger and
sole bookrunner (incorporated by reference to Bkhib.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K dated
December 31, 2007

Form of Collateral Agreement, dated December 30728y and among Consolidated Communications
Holdings, Inc., Consolidated Communications, I@onsolidated Communications Acquisition Texas,,Inc.
Fort Pitt Acquisition Sub Inc., certain subsidiargd Consolidated Communications Holdings, Incnided
on the signature pages thereto, in favor of Wach®enk, National Association, as Administrative Age
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to FA@-K for the period ended December 31, 20(

Form of Guaranty Agreement, dated December 31,,20@de by Consolidated Communications Holdings,
Inc. and certain subsidiaries of Consolidated Cominations Holdings, Inc. identified on the signatur
pages thereto, in favor of Wachovia Bank, Natioksdociation, as Administrative Agent (incorporabsd
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Form-K for the period ended December 31, 20!

Lease Agreement, dated December 31, 2002, betw&€&EL, LLC and Consolidated Market Response,
Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1Ftwym <-4 dated October 26, 200:

Lease Agreement, dated December 31, 2002, betw&€EL, LLC and lllinois Consolidated Telephone
Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@dlBorm ¢4 dated October 26, 200:

Master Lease Agreement, dated February 25, 20@&ebke General Electric Capital Corporation and TXU
Communications Ventures Company (incorporated fgreace to Exhibit 10.13 to Form S-4 dated
October 26, 2004

Amendment No. 1 to Master Lease Agreement, datbdubey 25, 2002, between General Electric Capital
Corporation and TXU Communications Ventures Compdayed March 18, 2002 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.14 to Forn-4 dated October 26, 200-

Amended and Restated Consolidated Communicatiofdings, Inc. Restricted Share Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.11 to Amendment No. 7 tonfr§-1 dated July 19, 200E
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Exhibit
Number Description
10.¢ Form of 2005 Long-term Incentive Plan (incorporabgdeference to Exhibit 10.12 to Amendment Nao 7 t
Form &1 dated July 19, 200&
10.1(C Stock Repurchase Agreement, dated July 13, 2008ntdyamong Consolidated Communications Holdings,
Inc., Providence Equity Partners IV L.P. and Preuick Equity Operating Partners IV L.P. (incorpaidig
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Forr-K dated July 17, 2006
10.11 Form of Employment Security Agreement with certafirthe Companys executive officers (incorporated
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Forn-K dated February 23, 200"
10.1z Form of Employment Security Agreement with the Camys and its subsidiaries vice president and
director level employees (incorporated by referandexhibit 10.12 to Form 10-K for the period ended
December 31, 2007
10.1: Executive Long-Term Incentive Program, as revisedd¥l 12, 2007 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Form -K dated March 12, 2007
10.1¢ Form of 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan PerformanteISGrant Certificate (incorporated by referenze t
Exhibit 10.2 to Form -K dated March 12, 2007
10.1¢ Form of 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan Restricteac8tGrant Certificate (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to Form -K dated March 12, 2007
10.1¢€ Form of 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan Restricteac&tGrant Certificate for Directors (incorporated b
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Forn-K dated March 12, 2007
10.1% Description of the Consolidated Communications kad, Inc. Bonus Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.5 to Form -K dated March 12, 2007
10.1¢ Letter Agreement, dated March 31, 2008, by WachBwaak, National Association, and agreed to and
acknowledged by Consolidated Communications Hoklihge., Consolidated Communications, Inc.,
Consolidated Communications Acquisition Texas, &rad North Pittsburgh Systems, Inc. (formerly known
as Fort Pitt Acquisition Sub Inc.) (incorporatedreference to Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K dated MaBdh
2008).
10.1¢ Letter Agreement dated August 6, 2008 by WachowdakB National Association, and agreed to and
acknowledged by Consolidated Communications Hoklihgc., Consolidated Communications, Inc.,
Consolidated Communications Acquisition Texas, &rad North Pittsburgh Systems, Inc. (formerly known
as Fort Pitt Acquisition Sub Inc.) (incorporatedriference to Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q for theiqer
ended June 30, 200¢
21 List of Subsidiaries of Consolidated Communicatibtwddings, Inc.
23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.
23.2 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant $ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chieinancial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of thebBaes-

Oxley Act of 2002
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EXHIBIT 21
List of Subsidiaries of Consolidated Communicationgioldings, Inc.

Unless otherwise noted, all subsidiaries are 100#ted (directly or indirectly) by Consolidated Commuations Holdings, In
(the “Company”).

Subsidiary State of Organizatior
Consolidated Communications, Ir lllinois

Consolidated Communications of Texas Comg Texas

Consolidated Communications of Fort Bend Comg. Texas

Consolidated Communications Services Comy. Texas

Consolidated Communications Enterprise Services, Delaware
Consolidated Communications of Pennsylvania, | Delaware

East Texas Fiber Line, Incorporated (63% owners Texas

lllinois Consolidated Telephone Compe lllinois

Multi, Inc. (50% ownership Pennsylvani:

The Company indirectly owns 49.5% of Boulevard Caminations, L.L.P., a Pennsylvania limited lialyilgartnership
(“Boulevard™). Multi, Inc., a 50% subsidiary of tli@mpany, is the general partner of Boulevard.



EXHIBIT 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statements (i) on Form S-8 (No. 333410) pertaining to the
Consolidated Communications, Inc. 401(k) Plan and€0lidated Communications 401(k) Plan for TexagBiaing
Associates and (ii) on Form S-8 (No. 333-128934)gdeing to the Consolidated Communications Holdingc. 2005 Long-
Term Incentive Plan of our reports dated March2®)9, with respect to the consolidated financialeshents and schedule of
Consolidated Communications Holdings, Inc. andetfiectiveness of internal control over financigboeting of Consolidated
Communications Holdings, Inc. included in this AahReport (Form 10-K) for the year ended Decemlie2808.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

St. Louis, Missouri
March 13, 2009



EXHIBIT 23.2
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference ini®egion Statements No. 333-135440 and 333-128@3Borm S-8 of
Consolidated Communications Holdings, Inc. of aparts dated March 16, 2009, relating to the fir@ratatements of GTE
Mobilnet of Texas #17 Limited Partnership, Pennagla RSA 6(1) Limited Partnership, and Pennsylvd&A 6(11) Limited
Partnership as of December 31, 2008 and 2007,@rehth of the three years in the period endedeee31, 2008,
appearing in this Annual Report on FormK@f Consolidated Communications Holdings, Inc.tfoe year ended December
2008.

/sl Deloitte & Touche LLP

Atlanta, Georgia
March 16, 2009



Exhibit 31.1

Certification Pursuant To

18 U.S.C. ss. 1350,

As Adopted Pursuant To

Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Robert J. Currey, certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Consolidated Communications Holdings, Ir

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaio any untrue statement of a material fact oit torstate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statements wade, not
misleading with respect to the period covered ligy tport;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, tesaf operations and cash flows of the registeenof, and for, the periods
presented in this repol

The registrant’s other certifying officer anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a}Hxd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finaheporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and phaess, or caused such disclosure controls and guoes to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that materiarmédion relating to the registrant, including itmsolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others with@se entities, particularly during the period ihigh this report is
being preparec

(b) Designed such internal control over finahcgporting, or caused such internal control divemcial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readeradsurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples,
and

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regmtsadisclosure controls and procedures and preddntthis report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disesantrols and procedures, as of the end of thiegpeovered by
this report based on such evaluation,

(d) Disclosed in this report any change inrdgistrant’s internal control over financial repogt that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regidts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an admeaport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to erélly affect, the registrard’internal control over financial reportir
and

The registrant’s other certifying officer anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evaluafiinternal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorgldhe audit committee of the registrant’s boardicéctors (or persons
performing the equivalent function:

(&) All significant deficiencies and materiadaknesses in the design or operation of internarabover financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversafgct the registrant’s ability to record, processnmarize and
report financial information, ar

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, thatatves management or other employees who havendisamnt role in the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

March 16, 2009 /s/ Robert J. Currey

Robert J. Currey
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

Certification Pursuant To

18 U.S.C. ss. 1350,

As Adopted Pursuant To

Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Steven L. Childers, certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Consolidated Communications Holdings, Ir

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaio any untrue statement of a material fact oit torstate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statements wade, not
misleading with respect to the period covered ligy tport;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, tesaf operations and cash flows of the registeenof, and for, the periods
presented in this repol

The registrant’s other certifying officer anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a}Hxd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finaheporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and phaess, or caused such disclosure controls and guoes to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that materiarmédion relating to the registrant, including itmsolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others with@se entities, particularly during the period ihigh this report is
being preparec

(b) Designed such internal control over finahcgporting, or caused such internal control divemcial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readeradsurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples,
and

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regmtsadisclosure controls and procedures and preddntthis report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disesantrols and procedures, as of the end of thiegpeovered by
this report based on such evaluation,

(d) Disclosed in this report any change inrdgistrant’s internal control over financial repogt that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regidts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an admeaport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to erélly affect, the registrard’internal control over financial reportir
and

The registrant’s other certifying officer anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evaluafiinternal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorgldhe audit committee of the registrant’s boardicéctors (or persons
performing the equivalent function:

(&) All significant deficiencies and materiadaknesses in the design or operation of internarabover financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversafgct the registrant’s ability to record, processnmarize and
report financial information, ar

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, thatatves management or other employees who havendisamnt role in the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

March 16, 2009 /sl Steven L. Childers

Steven L. Childers
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer and Chief Accountindfider)



Exhibit 32.1

Certification Pursuant To

18 U.S.C. ss. 1350,

As Adopted Pursuant To

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adoptedi@oir$so Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act @220Section 906},
Robert J. Currey and Steven L. Childers, PresidedtChief Executive Officer and Chief Financial iGéf, respectively, of
Consolidated Communications Holdings, Inc., eactifgehat to his knowledge (i) the Annual Report Borm 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2008 fully comphigh the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(djhef Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended and (ii) the informationtaged in such report fairly presents, in all mateespects, the financial
condition and results of operations of Consolida&@edmunications Holdings, Inc.

/sl Robert J. Currey

Robert J. Currey

President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

March 16, 200¢

/sl Steven L. Childers

Steven L. Childers

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer and Chief AccountingfiCer)
March 16, 200¢




